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China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 22 February 2013. The Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) are a fast-growing manufacturer of recycled copper
products, also known as copper semis, in Southwest China. The shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 February 2014 (the
“Listing Date”).

We process recycled scrap copper and, to a lesser extent, electrolytic
copper, to manufacture a range of copper products, including copper
wirerods, copper wires, copper plates and copper granules. Beginning
in 2013, we also sell a range of communication cables and power
transmission and distribution cables using copper wirerods that we
produce as the principal raw material. We are increasing our production
capacity and plan to broaden our product range and pursue
opportunities for further vertical integration. In light of favourable
development trends in China and our advantages in raw material
supply, facility location and preferential governmental policies, we
believe we are well positioned to become a leading integrated recycled
copper product supplier in China covering the key value-creating
activities in the industry chain.

We currently own and operate three production facilities for recycled
copper products. The facilities of our subsidiaries Mianyang Jinxin
Copper Co., Ltd. ("Jinxin"), Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd.
("Tongxin"), Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Xinshiji") and
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe
Taiyue") are located in Mianyang, Sichuan Province and the facility of
our subsidiary Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., Ltd. (“Xiangbei") is
located in Miluo, Hunan Province. The production facility of Baohe
Xinshiji was completed and production commenced during the second
quarter of the year. The production facility of Baohe Taiyue was also
completed and production commenced in the fourth quarter of 2014.
Our Jinxin, Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji, Baohe Taiyue and Xiangbei facilities
are currently in commercial production.
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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available
on the Company's website at http://www.cmru.com.cn/.
Shareholders who have chosen to receive the corporate
communications of the Company (the “Corporate Communications”)
in either the English version or the Chinese version may request for
a copy in the other language. The annual report in the requested
language will be sent free of charge by the Company upon request.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s)
(either English only or Chinese only or both languages) of Corporate
communications.

Shareholders may send their request to change their choice of
language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company with
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd. at 17M Floor
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited ("CMRU" or the “Company”), | hereby
present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the twelve months ended 31
December 2014.

Last year, the industry faced challenges in light of the weakened
economic growth in China and the tightening of liquidity in financial
markets. Fortunately, the Central People’s Government of the People’s
Republic of China still attached high degree of importance to the scrap
metal recycling industry and supported its development by launching
favorable policies and other initiatives such as VAT refunds, government
grants and subsidies. Our versatile and flexible integrated business
model and the capabilities and efforts of our management team
enabled the Group to grow steadily despite the uncertain economic
environment.

During the year, the Group has expanded its production facilities,
seeking to broaden its product range. The expansion of annual
production capacity of Xiangbei by 30,000 metric tons was completed
during the second quarter of 2014. Its enameled wires production
facility at Tongxin was also completed during the second quarter. The
production facility of Baohe Xinshiji was completed and production
commenced during the second quarter. The production facility of Baohe
Taiyue was also completed and production commenced in the fourth
quarter of 2014.

As liquidity was tightened in the Chinese banking system last year, to
lower its credit risk exposure, the Group has strategically increased the
sales of upstream recycled copper products and reduced the sales of
mid-down-stream power transmission and distribution cable as well as
communication cable products, which effectively shortened the
receivables turnover days. An analysis of the business segment revenue
breakdown shows that recycled copper products still accounted for the
largest proportion of the Group's total turnover in 2014 at 91.9%, with
revenue of RMB3,548.3 million, a substantial growth of 65.5% from
2013. Sales volume of recycled copper products also surged by 79.3%
to 84,776 metric tons as the Group used the increased working capital
to expand production capacity.
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As for mid-down-stream businesses, turnover from sales of power
transmission and distribution cable products amounted to RMB181.5
million with a decrease of 65.7% from 2013, as affected by the 60.6%
decrease in sales volume. Turnover from sales of communication cable
products amounted to RMB104.0 million with a decrease of 58.5% from
2013, as affected by the 21.1% decrease in sales volume.

The trend towards consolidation and M&A in the industry has added
momentum to drive the Group's rapid growth. Tongxin, a subsidiary of
the Group, has completed the acquisition of a 65% equity interest in
Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials Co., Ltd. (“Jin Xunhuan”). Jin
Xunhuan focuses on the sales and production of anodic copper using
scrap copper as raw materials as well as trading electrolytic copper.
The Group plans to sell these products in the Shanghai Futures
Exchange and other professional e-commerce platforms. By trading its
products in such innovative platforms, the Group expects to enlarge its
sales volume, strengthen its liquidity and create synergies through
utilising the Group's existing resources in raw materials, logistics and
technical know-how.

The Chinese government has implemented a series of measures to
sustain economic growth, and an improvement in the operating
environment can be seen by the more favourable liquidity conditions in
the financial market since the fourth quarter last year. At the same
time, new infrastructure projects have been announced by the China
government, including investment in the power grid etc.. These policies
are expected to boost the mid-to-long-term domestic copper demand.
Therefore, we remain cautiously optimistic of the business environment
this year. Currently, we are seeking acquisition opportunities along the
supply chain, such that we can further integrate and enhance our
operations, boost business growth and generate satisfactory returns for
our shareholders.

Mr. Yu Jianqiu
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EHREWRESh

We are a fast-growing manufacturer of recycled copper products, also
known as copper semis, in Southwest China. We process recycled
scrap copper and, to a lesser extent, electrolytic copper, to
manufacture a range of copper products, including copper wirerods,
copper wires, copper plates and copper granules. Beginning in 2013,
we have also been selling a range of communication cables and power
transmission and distribution cables using copper wirerods that we
produce as the principal raw materials. We have constructed our own
production facilities, seeking to broaden our product range and pursue
opportunities for further vertical integration. In light of the favorable
development trends in China and our advantages in raw materials
supply, facility location and preferential governmental policies, we
believe that we are well positioned to become a leading integrated
recycled copper product supplier in China covering the key value-
creating activities in the industry chain.

Our financial performance in 2014 was strong with the turnover
increased by 30.4% from 2013. Net profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB248.5 million, remaining
stable as compared to 2013. The fact that it was achieved on the back
of a difficult operating environment during the second quarter when
liquidity significantly tightened in the financial markets in China
demonstrated the strengths of our business model and the capability
and dedication of our management team. In particular, our integrated
business model enabled us to efficiently alter our product mix and
minimize any adverse impact on our overall business from reduced
liquidity in the market environment. The growth in turnover was
principally due to the greater production capacity at our Tongxin and
Xiangbei facilities and was also the main driver for the increase in net
profit.

Moreover, with all of our copper semis production facilities enjoying the
benefits of VAT refunds, we continued our strategy to conduct our
operations in order to fully utilize such benefits. Our VAT refunds under
the Adjustment and Improvement of VAT Policies for Products and
Labor Services Relating to Comprehensive Utilization of Resources (Cai
Shui [2011] No. 115) jointly issued by the PRC State Administration of
Taxation and Ministry of Finance in 2014 amounted to RMB311.6 million,
representing a significant increase of 67.7% from 2013.

Xiangbei's annual production capacity expansion of 30,000 metric tons
was completed during the second quarter of 2014. The production
facility of Baohe Xinshiji was completed and production commenced
during the second quarter of the year. The production facility of Baohe
Taiyue was also completed and production commenced in the fourth
quarter of 2014.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENT

On 25 September 2014, Tongxin completed an acquisition of 51% and
14% equity interest in Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials Co., Ltd.
(B ERESBMEAR AR (Jin Xunhuan”) from Shenzhen YinTai
Copper Co., Limited (IR Z= A2 F R A 7)) (“Shenzhen YinTai") and
Tianjin Jili Recycling of Renewable Resources Co., Limited (KZETZF
BAEBRRIUWF AARAQR) (‘Tianjin Jili) respectively, in which a cash
consideration of approximately RMB15,300,000 and RMB4,200,000 was
paid respectively. Jin Xunhuan will focus on the sales and production of
anodic copper from scrap copper as raw materials and trading
electrolytic copper. The Group plans to sell these products through Jin
Xunhuan in the Shanghai Futures Exchange and other professional
e-commerce platforms. By trading its products in such innovative
platforms, the Group expects to (1) enlarge its sales volume; (2)
strengthen its liquidity by shortening the overall trade receivable
turnover days; and (3) capture the synergy effect by making use of the
Group's existing sources of raw materials, logistic system and technical
know-how. Jin Xunhuan was still under construction at the end of 2014
and it is expected to commence operations in the third quarter of 2015.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 September
2014 for further details.

On 19 December 2014, the Company, Shanghai Baohe Properties
Development Co., Ltd. (E /8 R 71 B ¥ % E B R 2 7A) ("Baohe
Development”) and Sichuan Xijiulong Investment Co., Ltd. (F8)I|& 7
BB AR AT) (“Xijiulong”) entered into a non-legally binding letter of
intent in relation to the possible acquisition by the Company of 15.3%
and 14.7% of the equity interest of Sichuan Baohe Fushan Resources
Recycling Development Co., Ltd. (FBJI|ERMEILBEERAZEFRA
A]) ("Baohe Fushan”) from Baohe Development and Xijiulong,
respectively. Baohe Fushan is principally engaged in the operation and
the development of an industrial park in the PRC, which currently
accommodates Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue, all of which
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and other metal
recycling related companies. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 19 December 2014 and 22 April 2015 for further details.
Subsequently, the Company, Baohe Development and Xijiulong and
their respective ultimate owners entered into the agreements on 22
April 2015 to acquire in aggregate 30% interest in Baohe Fushan.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS/OUTLOOK

Recently, the PRC government has adopted a series of policies, striving
to maintain its targeted economic growth rate. Since the fourth quarter
of 2014, liquidity in the financial markets in China improved as a result
of interest rate cuts and reduction of bank reserve requirements. On
the fiscal front, the PRC government also announced a spate of new
infrastructure projects which includes, among others, further
investments in the power grid network. Such measures are expected to
provide additional support to the demand of copper in China in the near
to medium term.

As such, we are cautiously optimistic that our business environment
will continue to improve in the coming year. Meanwhile, we are actively
seeking acquisition opportunities for further integration along our
industry supply chain, seeking to achieve good growth in our business
and to provide attractive returns to our shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

Our turnover represents the fair value of consideration received or
receivable for sales of goods and services in the ordinary course of
business. Turnover is shown net-of-VAT and other taxes, returns and
discounts after eliminating sales within our Group.

The following table sets forth an analysis of our turnover:
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2014 2013

2014 F 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARETT

Sales of recycled copper products THE B4 IRE S 3,548,268 2,144,429
Sales of power transmission and HEXALEE

distribution cables 181,490 528,629

Sales of communication cables HEBEEE 104,037 250,776

Sales of scrap materials HEREZEM B 22,524 31,177

Contract manufacturing income & REERA 2,624 3,993

3,858,943 2,959,004

Turnover for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
RMB3,858.9 million, representing an increase of 30.4% from RMB2,959.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This increase was mainly
due to the increase in the sales volume of recycled copper products,
though it has partially offset by a decrease in the average selling price
for recycled copper products.

HE20U4FN2ANBLEFENEEBEAEAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Turnover from recycled copper products amounted to RMB3,548.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing an increase
of 65.5% from RMB2,144.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, reflecting mainly an increase of 79.3% in the sales volume of
recycled copper products from 47,293 metric tons for the year ended
31 December 2013 to 84,776 metric tons for the year ended 31
December 2014. The increase in sales volume was mainly generated by
an increase in our production as a result of the availability of more
working capital. The overall average selling price of our recycled copper
products decreased by 7.7% from RMB45,344 per metric ton for the
year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB41,855 per metric ton for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Turnover from sales of power transmission and distribution cables
amounted to RMB181.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
representing a decrease of 65.7% from RMB528.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013, reflecting a decrease of 60.6% in sales
volume from 13,404 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2013
to 5,276 metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2014, and a
decrease of 12.8% in average selling price of RMB39,438 per metric ton
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB34,401 per metric ton for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Turnover from sales of communication cables amounted to RMB104.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2014, representing a decrease
of 58.5% from RMB250.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2013,
which was a result of a decrease of 21.1% in sales volume from 3,106
metric tons for the year ended 31 December 2013 to 2,452 metric tons
for the year ended 31 December 2014, and a decrease of 47.4% in
average selling price of RMB80,739 per metric ton for the year ended 31
December 2013 to RMB42,435 per metric ton for the year ended 31
December 2014. The decrease in the average selling price was primarily
caused by changes in product mix.

The decreases in sales of power transmission and distribution cables
and communication cables were due to the Group's strategy to focus
on recycled copper products, in which its receivables turnover days are
shorter than those of power transmission and distribution cables and
communication cables in order to minimize credit risk exposure amid
the tightening of liquidity in the banking system in China during 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2014 totaled RMB3,817.2
million, representing an increase of 34.9% from RMB2,828.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase was mainly due to the
increase of 79.3% in the sales volume of recycled copper products,
though partly offset by the decrease of 60.6% and 21.1% in the sales
volume of power transmission and distribution cables and
communication cables, respectively.

The cost of raw materials increased by 35.9% from RMB2,678.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB3,639.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2014. Direct materials cost was the largest
component of the Company’s cost of sales, accounting for
approximately 94.7% and 95.4% of the total cost of sales for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Cost of sales, other than raw materials and finished goods purchased,
was RMB177.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2014,
representing an increase of 17.8% from RMB150.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The increase was mainly attributable to an
increase in VAT-surtax from RMB45.7 million to RMB73.2 million. Such
VAT-surtax is calculated with reference to the amounts of net VAT paid
to the tax authorities and such net VAT amount was directly related to
the turnover from sales of our products.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit was RMB41.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, representing a decrease of 67.9% from RMB130.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. Our gross profit margin for the year
ended 31 December 2014 decreased to 1.1% from 4.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The deterioration in gross profit margin was
mainly due to the decrease in average selling price of recycled copper
products by 7.7% without a comparable decrease in the average raw
materials costs. Furthermore, the decrease in the Group's gross profit
margin was also partly due to the decrease in the relative size of cable
segments, both communication cable segment and power cable
segment commands higher gross profit margin than that of recycled
copper products.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other revenue

Other revenue increased significantly to RMB439.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 from RMB280.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The increase was mainly due to VAT refunds under the
Comprehensive Utilization of Resources Policy, the amount of which
was directly related to the turnover from sales of our recycled copper
products.

Other net (loss)/income

Our other net loss for the year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB1.5
million as compared to a net income of RMB0.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. Our other net loss for the year ended 31
December 2014 mainly comprised a realized loss of RMBO0.7 million and
an unrealized loss of RMBO0.5 million on copper futures contracts trading
on the Shanghai Futures Exchange, and a loss of RMBO0.7 million from
disposal of property, plant and equipment. Our other net income for the
year ended 31 December 2013 mainly comprised a realized gain of
RMB2.4 million on copper futures contracts trading on the Shanghai
Futures Exchange and a loss of RMB1.2 million from disposal of
property, plant and equipment.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2014 were RMB22.6 million, representing an increase of 148.5% from
RMB9.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase was
primarily due to the increase in transportation expenses incurred since
the Company diversified its market by increasing sales of recycled
copper products to customers located in, among others, Shandong,
Anhui, Zhejiang and Guizhou, on top of Sichuan and Hunan where the
Company’s production facilities are located.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2014
were RMB102.2 million, representing an increase of 60.6% from
RMB63.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase
was primarily due to, among others, the recognition of share-based
compensation of RMB10.4 million as a result of the grant of share
options on 2 July 2014, the increase of salaries, wages and other
benefits by RMB19.3 million as a result of high expenditure on human
resources in areas such as compliance, finance and internal controls,
and the increase by RMB9.6 million in professional fees.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2014, the capital structure of the Group mainly
consisted of shareholders’ equity, bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. There are no material seasonality of
borrowing requirements for the Group.

The following table sets forth the interest rate profile of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings at the dates indicated:
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szo
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As at 31 December 2014 As at 31 December 2013

M2014512H31H

R2013F12 A31H

Weighted Weighted

average average

effective effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount

In#E¥15 N5
BRRAI=R o] ERFI= -
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
AR%T T ARETT

Fixed rate borrowings: EEMER

Bank loans and other borrowings — $R{TE R RE MK 9.49 690,670 9.87 424,374
Loans from related parties )il = - - 6.54 84,948
Obligations under finance leases &M E & 7.06 52,498 6.66 60,000
Total fixed rate borrowings TE BB AR 743,168 569,322

The following table sets forth the maturity profile of the Group's
interest-bearing borrowings at the dates indicated:

TREGIAE B B EHRHFUR B B0E EIE
R

As at 31 December 2014 As at 31 December 2013
#2014£12 A31H M2013F 127318
Loans Obligations Loans  Obligations
Bank and from under Bank and from under
other related finance other related finance
borrowings parties leases Total  borrowings parties leases
BITR BERET Rk HERET
HitfeS BEBEER Ef fax Hi HHE aff
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET: AEETT
Within one year or —Fn
repayable on demand EERER 390,670 - 16,471 407,141 304,374 84,948 12,000 401,322
After one year but within —EpF
two years BRENR 300,000 - 14,309 314,309 120,000 - 12,000 132,000
After two year but within MEN
five years BRENUR - - 21,718 21,718 - - 36,000 36,000
690,670 - 52,498 743,168 424,374 84,948 60,000 569,322
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank and cash balances
(excluding pledged deposits of RMB56.1 million) amounted to RMB145.8
million (as at 31 December 2013: RMB78.6 million).

The Group's inventories increased by RMB321.5 million to RMB461.7
million as at 31 December 2014 (as at 31 December 2013: RMB140.2
million). The inventory turnover days was 28.8 days as compared to
16.4 days in 2013. Increase in inventory turnover days was mainly due
to a significant increase in inventory level as at 31 December 2014 in
preparation for fulfilling expected huge sales orders that are usually
squeezed before Chinese new year holiday.

Trade and bills receivables increased by RMB70.0 million to RMB747.1
million as at 31 December 2014 (as at 31 December 2013: RMB677.1
million). Trade and bills receivable turnover days increased slightly to
67.4 days as compared to 62.1 days in 2013.

Trade and bills payables decreased by RMB156.8 million to RMB36.3
million as at 31 December 2014 (as at 31 December 2013: RMB193.1
million), the payable turnover days was 11.0 days, compared to 20.0
days in 2013. Decrease in the payable turnover days was due to an
increase in our advance payments to suppliers which were used to
offset the payment for goods upon suppliers’ delivery of goods. We
believe such advance payments help us secure raw materials. We
endeavor to keep our trade and bills payable turnover days relatively
low mainly because our prompt payment pattern enhances our
suppliers” willingness to supply raw materials to us and therefore helps
us secure raw materials.

The Group's total interest-bearing borrowings (including obligations
under finance leases) increased by RMB173.9 million to RMB743.2
million as at 31 December 2014 (as at 31 December 2013: RMB569.3
million). The increase mainly represented long term loans of RMB300.0
million from Mianyang Science Technology City Development
Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Mian-yang Development Group”), a state
owned enterprise. In respect of the Group's borrowings, the Group has
to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants and certain assets
were pledged as security.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

In February 2014, the Group had obtained bridge loans to repay in full
the loans from Gushan Environmental Energy Limited (“Gushan”) and
amounts due to Gushan, Carling Technology Limited (“Carling”) and Mr.
Yu Jiangiu prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on 21 February,
2014. Such bridge loans had already been fully repaid before 30 June
2014. Furthermore, loans from and amounts due to other related
parties had also been fully repaid during the six months ended 30 June
2014.

On 21 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”), the shares of the Company
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, pursuant to which
525,001,600 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at a price of
HK$1.13 per share by the Company, and the total gross proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$593.3 million (equivalent to RMB468.0
million). On 14 March 2014, the over-allotment option described in the
prospectus was partially exercised by the sole global coordinator (on
behalf of the international underwriters) in respect of an aggregate of
6,824,000 shares, representing approximately 1.1% of the offer shares
initially available under the global offering. The 6,824,000 shares were
issued and allotted by the Company at HK$1.13 per share, and the total
gross proceeds amounted to approximately HK$7.7 million.

The following table sets forth certain financial ratios of our Group as of
the dates indicated:
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As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Current ratio BN & 2.2 1.2
Quick ratio RN R 1.6 1.1
Debt to equity ratio* EIERERL R * 58.4% 97.8%
Net debt to equity ratio* R EIARERR LR 46.9% 85.0%
* (Total interest-bearing debts plus amounts due to related parties)/Total equity. * (BB R FENRE A RIBAA%E) 1B -
# (Total interest-bearing debts plus amounts due to related parties less cash and cash # (St EERENEE A RBRERRSLRSERE

equivalents)/Total equity.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources (Continued)

The improvements of current ratio and quick ratio as at 31 December
2014 compared to 31 December 2013 were primarily attributable to (i)
the repayments of certain loans from related parties and amounts due
to related parties by using bridge loans and the subsequent repayments
of such bridge loans by using part of the proceeds from the global
offering; (i) the repayments of certain loans from related parties and
amounts due to related parties by using part of the proceeds from the
global offering; (iii) the increase in cash and cash equivalents as a result
of the unused proceeds from the global offering; and (iv) the increase in
inventory and the decrease in trade payables by using operating cash
inflows and proceeds from new long-term bank loans during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

The improvements in debt to equity ratio and net debt to equity ratio as
at 31 December 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 were mainly
because of () the increase in equity as a result of the global offering;
and (ii) the net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Charge on assets

The following table sets forth the net book value of assets under pledge
for certain banking facilities, bills payable facilities, obligations under
finance leases and outstanding futures contracts as of the dates
indicated:

Annual Report 2014 20145 53R
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As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Inventories T8 57,011 78,612
Property, plant and equipment Y E REE 176,328 127,688
Lease prepayments EBENR 38,269 35,071
Government grants receivable FEUBU 478 B 35,015 12,766
Deposits with guarantee companies RERARNFER 27,100 2,500
Deposits with banks RERTTHIIF R 13,022 26,711
Deposit with lessor of finance leases REVEHRE R RIMNER 5,320 4,800
Deposits with securities broker REFELHTR 10,663 -
Bills receivables FEM R 4,000 -
366,728 288,148

]



16 China Metal Resources Utilization

HEBERNAERAT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Commodity risk

The major raw materials used in the production of our recycled copper
products and cable products are scrap copper. We are exposed to
fluctuations in the prices of raw materials as well as finished goods
which are influenced by global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. Fluctuations in the copper prices could adversely affect our
financial performance. The Group uses copper futures contracts to
mitigate part of its exposure against price fluctuations of copper. The
market value of futures contracts is based on quoted market price at
settlement or balance sheet date. The Group’s outstanding copper
futures contracts had a notional contract value of RMB62.0 million as at
31 December 2014 (as at 31 December 2013: Nil). Net loss of RMB1.2
million were recognized for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
net gain of RMB2.4 million).

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within our Group is
RMB and most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, we are
exposed to currency risk primarily related to the cash and cash
equivalents that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The balance of
cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2014 included HK$23.1
million and USD14,000 (in total equivalent to approximately RMB18.3
million) were held in banks in Hong Kong. During the year ended 31
December 2014, there was no material impact to the Group arising from
the fluctuation in the exchange rates of these currencies. As at 31
December 2014, all the Group's borrowings were denominated in RMB.
The Group did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31 December 2014.

However, with the closing of the subscription agreement for the issue
of convertible bond due 2017 (for further information, please refer to
“Issue of Convertible Bonds Due 2017" under “Events after the
Reporting Period”), we will be exposed to currency risk related to such
loans/financial instruments that are denominated in US dollars.

Significant investments held
Except for investments in subsidiaries, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital expenditures

Our planned future capital expenditures mainly include the purchase of
additional plant, machinery and land which we believe would facilitate
the growth of our business. Our capital expenditures represent
additions to property, plant and equipment (including construction in
progress) and lease prepayments on lands of approximately RMB184.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB230.0 million).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2014, the capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments on
lands contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to RMB133.4 million (2013: RMB81.4 million).

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2014.

Use of proceeds from the listing

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
the Listing Date and issued 531,825,600 new shares (including issue of
new shares upon the exercise of overallotment option) at HK$1.13 per
share. The net proceeds from the listing received by the Company are
approximately RMB420.0 million (after taking into account of provisions
for professional fees in relation to the listing) as at 31 December 2014.
These proceeds were intended to be applied in accordance with the
business plan set out in the Prospectus. The business plan and
schedule of use of proceeds disclosed in the Prospectus were based on
the best estimation of future market conditions made by the Group at
the time of preparing the Prospectus, while the proceeds were applied
in accordance with the actual development of the market.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the net proceeds from the
listing were applied as follows:

(i  RMB116.2 million for repaying the bridge loan which were
obtained for the purpose of repaying in full the loans from Gushan
and amounts due to Gushan, Carling and Mr. Yu prior to listing
and on repaying other loans from related parties and amounts
due to related parties;

(i) RMB151.9 million for funding a portion of our planned capital
expenditure in relation to additions to property, plant and
equipment, land use rights, and research and development
projects of Tongxin, Xiangbei, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue;
and

Bt 3% B B ()

BEXREX
BRPEAENAKRERAH T T ZRFEREEBEIN
WG - #hEs R Tt - IR AL R G B EEIE
FoHE2014FE12831BILEE RPN E
AHATREDE BERSE(BEEEZIR)
BMARTHHEEENR  ERSEANA
A R %184,000,0007T(2013F : A R ¥
230,000,0007T) ©

BEAREE

R2014F 128318 REYE - BE&KE
BRI HEBMNRZ BT OERNGE ME
wME B AN E NEE A A R 133,400,000 7T
(20134 : AR#81,400,0007T) °

KREE
PR2014F 12 A31H - REBY EEREAK
RAME-

LtHFRBRERER

ARRBRET A BEBRRAERLET - XAE
& 11378 7T 8 17 531,825,600 Az ¥ Az 1 (B 11T
R B ER A M B SR AT RO R AL AD ) © 20145 12
A318  ARAREWR EWAERIEFELA
E % 420,000,000 7T (0fk EMARREM EX &
&) - ZEMFHRIBRIZRBIREFEREBF
EIER - BIREMBRE RSB MAAEIARE
PRSI TD BN AR B AR SR A E B B R 2R
MRS EMGEHEL - RSABFACRED
BHERBERER -

HZE2014F12A3MBIEFE - EmAABHIAE
SRED AR TR

() AEKE®116,200000T ) BIEEERBEE
K (EISBIE & 5KH B 1) AR £ AR R
EBREREHENERUARENEE - %
RETFEEFIR) - WEE E MR T &K
Ne AN BB 07 3RO

(i) AEKH151,9000007T S AEREME
WE N L EAEARIRE M
it~ RAF A MR MZBAHTERE AT
BRABEAFAXNENER &



18 cChina Metal Resources Utilization

BEBERNBERAR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Use of proceeds from the listing (Continued)

(i)~ RMB29.5 million for repaying certain outstanding bank loans, all of
which are working capital loans.

Certain amounts of net proceeds of the global offering had not been
immediately used for the purposes described in the Prospectus, these
proceeds were placed as deposits with banks (pledged and unpledged)
and other financial institutions as at 31 December 2014,

Human resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 864 employees (2013:
621). The Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2014
were approximately RMB57.0 million (2013: RMB17.6 million). The Group
offers its staff competitive remuneration packages. In addition,
discretionary bonuses and share options may also be granted to eligible
staff based on individual and Group’s performance. The Group is
committed to nurturing a learning and sharing culture in the
organization. Heavy emphasis is placed on the training and
development of individual staff and team building, as the Group’s
success is dependent on the contribution of all functional divisions
comprising skilled and motivated professionals. The Group is also
committed to social responsibility by employing disabled staff and
providing appropriate working conditions and protection to them.

Events after the Reporting Period

Issue of Warrants

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 133,650,000 warrants to 7
subscribers. Each warrant will entitle its holder to subscribe for one
share of the Company at a subscription price of HK$1.30 per share. The
warrants will be vested in phases according to the vesting conditions.
The vesting condition is that the subscribers, who are also the Group’s
suppliers, shall carry out the transactions under their respective annual
procurement agreements, pursuant to which the suppliers, in
aggregate, agree to supply 49,500 tons of copper scrap raw materials to
the Group in 2015 at a fixed discount of RMB1,000 per ton. The
arrangements are expected to encourage such suppliers to achieve the
targeted amount to supply raw material and to maintain continued
cooperative relationship with the Group. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2014 for further
details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Issue of Warrants (Continued)

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued 102,000,000 warrants to 3
subscribers, each warrant will entitle its holder to subscribe for one
share of the Company at a subscription price of HK$1.50 per share. The
warrants will be vested in phases according to the vesting conditions.
The vesting condition is that the subscribers, who are also the Group’s
suppliers, shall carry out the transactions under their respective annual
procurement agreements, pursuant to which the suppliers, in
aggregate, agree to supply 30,000 tons of copper scrap raw materials to
the Group from 1 February 2015 to 31 January 2016 at a fixed discount
of RMB2,000 per ton. The arrangements are expected to encourage
such suppliers to achieve the targeted amount to supply raw material
and to expand the Group’s sources of raw materials. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 5 February 2015 for further
details.

Issue of Convertible Bonds Due 2017

On 27 March 2015 (after trading hours), the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Huarong (HK) International Holdings
Limited ("Huarong”) the (“Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which
Huarong agreed to subscribe and pay for convertible bonds due 2017 to
be issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount of
UsSD32,610,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB200 million) (the
“Convertible Bonds"). The Convertible Bonds are convertible in the
circumstances set out in the Terms and Conditions into ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the Company at an initial
Conversion Price of HK$1.40 per Share or the average closing price of
the 10 consecutive trading days prior to the signing of the Subscription
Agreement plus a 20% premium (whichever is lower).

Assuming full conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial
Conversion Price of HK$1.40 per Share, the Convertible Bonds will be
convertible into approximately 90,555,555 new shares which are to be
alloted and issued by the Company upon conversion of the Convertible
Bonds (“New Shares”) (based on a condition in the Terms and
Conditions of the Convertible Bonds which provides that based on the
agreed exchange rate, the principle amount of the Convertible Bond
shall be deducted by USD0.18 upon the issue of one Conversion Share),
representing approximately 4.30% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report and approximately 4.12% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the
New Shares. The conversion rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds
may only be exercised (in whole or in part) if after the exercise of
conversion rights: (i) the aggregate principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds already converted into Shares does not exceed USD16,300,000;
and (i) the public float will be not less than 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the New Shares. As
a term of the Convertible Bonds, the shareholding of Mr. Yu Jiangiu (and
his associates falling below 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company would trigger an event of default, pursuant to which the
Convertible Bonds will become due upon the Bondholders’ notice.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Events after the Reporting Period (Continued)

Issue of Convertible Bonds Due 2017 (Continued)

On 13 April 2015, all conditions precedent to the closing as set out in
the Subscription Agreement had been fulfilled or waived (as applicable)
and closing has taken place pursuant to the terms of the Subscription
Agreement.

The New Shares to be issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds
will rank pari-passu in all respects with the shares then in issue on the
relevant conversion date.

No listing of the Convertible Bonds will be sought in any jurisdiction. An
application will be made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the New Shares.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27 March
2015 and 9 April 2015 for further details.

Acquisition of 30% Equity Interest in Baohe Fushan

On 22 April 2015, the Company entered into the agreements to acquire
a 30% interest in Baohe Fushan (the “Acquisition”) from the
shareholders of Xijiulong (the “Xijiulong Vendors”) and the shareholders
of Baohe Development (the “Baohe Development Vendors”). The total
consideration for the Acquisition was approximately RMB135 million.
Completion of the agreements is conditional upon the fulfilment of the
certain conditions, including that, among others, the relevant
agreement, foreign registration document and other related legal
documents are approved by the relevant authority and necessary
approvals or certificates are obtained.

Further, the Company has agreed to procure Deda Holdings Limited
("Deda”), a wholly owned subsidiary, to issue to the Xijiulong Vendors
and the Baohe Development Vendors (or their respective designated
entities) 343 and 357 new shares respectively at a nominal value of
USD1.0 per share (the "Deemed Disposal”). Consequently, upon
completion of the Acquisition, Deda will cease to be a subsidiary of the
Company. The Company will legally and beneficially hold 30% of the
entire issued shares of Deda, which will in turn hold the entire issued
shares in Hongkong Fujian Investments Limited (“Fujian Investments”)
and Baohe Fushan.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Events after the Reporting Period (Continued)

Acquisition of 30% Equity Interest in Baohe Fushan (Continued)
Xijiulong is an investment holding company incorporated in the PRC
which is 95% and 5% controlled by Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu Jiajia,
respectively. Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu Jiajia are daughters and
associates of Mr. Yu Jiangiu, the Company’s chairman, director and
controlling shareholder, and are therefore connected persons of the
Company. Under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the Acquisition
and the Deemed Disposal constitute connected transactions of the
Company. As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in respect of the Acquisition and the Deemed Disposal are more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Acquisition and the Deemed Disposal
are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements, but are
exempted from the circular and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Baohe Fushan is principally engaged in the operation and the
development of Baohe Fushan Recycling Resources Industrial Park, an
industrial park in Youxian Economic Development Zone, Mianyang City,
Sichuan Province, the PRC, which currently accommodates Tongxin,
Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue, Taiyue, all of which are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and other metal recycling related
companies. The industrial park was listed as one of the fourth phase of
"Model Urban Mining Center” designated by China’s National
Development and Reform Commission in 2013. Baohe Fushan is also
licensed to operate in the collection, processing and sale of scrap
materials.

The Company expects that the Acquisition would provide a platform for
potential vertical expansion of the Group into the upstream scrap metal
business in the future. The Acquisition is expected to benefit the Group
by securing land in the industrial park for future expansion and
diversifying the Group’s business to broaden its revenue sources.

As at the date of this report, the Acquisition has not been completed.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22 April 2015
for further details.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Jianqiu (8T2%K), age 50, is the founder of the Group and the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the overall business and
strategy of the Group. He also serves as a director in all of the
subsidiaries of the Company except Deda and Fujian Investments.
Through his holdings in Epoch Keen Limited, Mr. Yu is a major
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu has over 20 years of
experience in corporate operations and management in the
petrochemical, automobile and renewable energy sectors. He was the
chairman and principal executive officer of Gushan, a company whose
American depositary shares were listed on the New York Stock
Exchange from December 2007 to October 2012. Mr. Yu also founded a
number of subsidiaries of the Gushan group between 1996 and 2008.
Mr. Yu received his degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) from Hautes Etudes Commerciales de Paris on
13 December, 2010. In 2002, he was elected as a member of the
Fuzhou Committee of the 10th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee and a member of the Santai County Committee of the 11th
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee. He was appointed
as a director of the Company on 22 February, 2013 and redesignated as
an executive director on 16 August 2013.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Liu Hanjiu (27£2), age 50, is an executive director of the
Company. He co-founded Jinxin in February 2009 and currently serves
as a director and the general manager of Jinxin and Tongxin. Mr. Liu is
also a director of Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal Materials Co., Ltd.
(B ERSBMBEAR2AA) (“in Xunhuan”). Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for the overall operation of the Group. Mr. Liu has over 30
years of experience in the metal recycling sector in Mianyang City,
Sichuan Province. In addition to Jinxin, he also founded Mianyang
Changjiu Metal Processing Co., Ltd. (43 R & BN T AR A A), the
principal business of which is the manufacture of copper granules, in
2003 and served as its general manager between 2003 and 2008.
Between 2000 and 2003, Mr. Liu held the position as the general
manager of Mianyang Longjiu Metal Recycling Co., Ltd. (435 EE A & /B
Bl ABR A 7)), the principal business of which is the manufacture of
copper granules, which was also established by him in 2000. Prior to
establishing his own companies which specialized in scrap metal
recycling and process, Mr. Liu was the factory chief of Mianyang
Mianzhong Metal Processing and Smelting Factory (4855t 42 & B il
TOR1RRR), the principal business of which is the refining of copper slag,
from 1990 to 2000 and Mianyang Fucheng District Jinfeng Smelting
Factory (#2F5 T 59 [E £ 18)5 iR ), the principal business of which is
the refining of copper slag, from 1986 to 1990. Mr. Liu was a sole
proprietor engaged in the recycling of waste and scrap materials
between 1983 and 1986, after he had acquired the techniques for
processing and smelting non-ferrous metal through his apprenticeship
between 1979 and 1983. Mr. Liu currently serves as a people’s
representative to the People’s Congress of Mianyang Nongke District
Songya Town Committee. He was also elected as a people’s
representative to the People’s Congress of Shitang Town, Fucheng
District, Mianyang City in 2002 and 2005, respectively. Mr. Liu studied in
middle school. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2013.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (B {&15), 49, is an executive director of
the Company. He is in charge of the corporate and strategic
development of the Company. Mr. Kwong is also a director of Engen
Investments Limited (“Engen”), Deda, True Excel Holdings Limited, Alpha
Legend Holdings Limited, Alpha Business Investments Limited, Alpha
Universe Group Limited and Fujian Investments. Mr. Kwong was the
President of Gushan. He is also an independent non-executive director
of C.banner International Holdings Limited, the principal business of
which is the manufacture and sale of branded fashion footwear, since
26 August, 2011, China Outfitters Holdings Limited, the principal
business of which is the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of
apparel products and accessories in China with a focus on menswear,
since 8 June, 2011, and Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited,
the principal business of which is the manufacture and sale of solar
wafers, solar cells, solar modules and related products as well as
developing and operating solar power plants, since 16 July 2014, which
are listed on the Stock Exchange since 23 September 2011, 9 December
2011 and 13 July 2011, respectively. Mr. Kwong has 12 years of
experience in corporate finance and equity capital markets in Asia,
having previously worked at a number of investment banks in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining Gushan in 2006, he was the managing director of
investment banking and he held the position as the head of Hong Kong
and China equity capital markets at CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited
since March 2004. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong was a director and
the head of equity capital markets for Cazenove Asia Limited, an
investment bank. After graduating from University of Cambridge,
England with a bachelor’s degree in Arts in 1987, he qualified as a
chartered accountant in the United Kingdom in 1991. Mr. Kwong is
currently an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountant
in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr.
Kwong was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 16
August 2013.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Huang Weiping (FE{&%), age 54, is an executive director of the
Ccompany. Mr. Huang co-founded Xiangbei in 2010 and is currently a
director and the general manager of Xiangbei. Mr. Huang is in charge of
production technology and engineering of the Group. Mr. Huang has
more than 10 years of experience in the PRC metal material industry.
Prior to the establishment of Xiangbei, Mr. Huang was a manager at
Fujian Lingzhi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (i@ % SREEIE A
fR 2 7)), the principal business of which is the design and construction
of environmental projects, from 2009 to 2011, Fuzhou Kebi Chemical
Materials Co., Limited (f&/M &bk TH & B R A7), the principal
business of which is the manufacture and sale of synthetic wax, from
2006 to 2009 and Tricon Chemicals Inc., the principal business of which
is the trade of chemicals and metal materials, from 2001 to 2005. He is
a fellow member of the Investment Casting Institute and an executive
member of China Precision Casting Branch Association of China
Foundry Association (F BIfEE R &R % FEES ®). Mr. Huang also
serves as an executive member of the Chinese and Foreign
Entrepreneurs’ Club of Fujian Province (f2i%& FAMPEKEES) and
the Association of Entrepreneurs of Private Companies of Fuzhou City
(EMHAREDERIBE). Mr. Huang was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 16 August 2013.

Ms. Zhu Yufen (%K E%), age 52, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in accounting and
financial management. She is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting and accounting affairs of the Company. Ms. Zhu is also vice
president in charge of the finance of Jinxin, since July 2009. Prior to
joining Jinxin, she was a vice general manager and the head of finance
department of Mianyang Santai Vise Co., Ltd. (@3 =& % atiaRA
A]), the principal business of which is the manufacture and sale of
vises, from 1978 to 2009. Ms. Zhu was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 16 August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREEHR

Mr. Pan Liansheng (), age 50, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Pan is engaged in non-ferrous metal and
carbon fiber composite materials research and possesses rich
knowledge on the non-ferrous metal industry. Mr. Pan also worked for
the Third Research Institute of the then Ministry of Astronautics of the
PRC (FF BIfR K T #2055 =#195kt), which is involved in the research of
aerospace metals and carbon fibre composite materials, between 1990
and 1993, focusing on research relating to non-ferrous metal and
carbon fiber composite materials. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Pan was
seconded to Sanwa Machinery Trading Co., Ltd., the principal business
of which is the design and manufacture of electrical machinery. From
1996 to 1998, Mr. Pan worked as an assistant professor at Waseda
University. From 1998 to 2008, Mr. Pan worked as a chief researcher in
the research and development center of Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd. (38
EHEkI &), the principal business of which is the research and
production of high-end electronic ceramic and silicon semi-conductors.
From 2008 to April 2013, Mr. Pan worked as the general manager at
Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd. Currently, Mr. Pan is the Chairman of
Thinkon Semiconductor Technology (Shanghai) Corporation (5 f - &2
BHR (L) B BRAF), the principal business of which is the supply of
semiconductor material technology, a position which he has held since
April 2013. Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor’'s degree from Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics where he focused on
research relating to non-ferrous metal and carbon fiber reinforced
composite in 1985. He further obtained his doctorate degree from
Waseda University in 1998. Mr. Pan was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 16 August 2013.

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny (Z=#&3#), age 47, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He was an independent director of
Gushan. He was the chief financial officer of NetEase.com, Inc., one of
the China’s leading internet and online game service providers from
2002 to 2007. Prior to joining NetEase.com, Inc., Mr. Lee worked in the
Hong Kong office of KPMG for more than ten years specializing in
auditing international clients. Mr. Lee currently serves as a director on
the board of NetEase.com, Inc., which is listed on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market and as an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of the audit committee of Qunar Cayman Islands Limited, a
Chinese search-based online travel company, which is listed on
NASDAQ Global Market. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director of New Oriental Education & Technology Group Inc.,
the provider of private educational services in China, and Concord
Medical Services Holdings Ltd., the principal business of which is the
operation of a network of radiotherapy and diagnostic imaging centers
in China, both of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lee was also an independent non-executive director of Acorn
International Inc., a media and branding company in China which is
listed on the New York Stock Exchange, between 2007 and 2010. Mr.
Lee graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and was awarded
the Professional Diploma in Accounting in November 1990. He is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 16 August 2013.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Continued)

Ms. Liu Rong (ZI%), age 50, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Ms. Liu is currently dean of the School of Public
Finance and Taxation of Southwest University of Finance and Economics
in China, a position she has held since 2008. Ms. Liu devoted almost her
entire 25-year career to the teaching and research on taxation and
fiscal science at the School of Public Finance and Taxation of Southwest
University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Liu has authored or co-
authored more than 10 taxation textbooks and has published a number
of articles and thesis regarding taxation policy and taxation system on
various nation-wide journals and publications such as Economic
Perspective ({47 £28h 8 )) and Public Finance Research (¢ BFEXAFZE)).
Her academic achievement has won her the Outstanding Research
Achievement Award (Band Il) handed down by the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC and the Chinese Tax Institute (R G4E B -
T2 e E SRR = % %) in 2003. In recognition of her
contribution, she was also selected as an academic and technical
leader (reserve candidate) of Sichuan Province (PO)11%& E1r & flr 728 A
% {5 A i®) in 2004. She has also received the accolade as a Famous
Teacher of Sichuan Province (P9)I|4 202 % E0) and as an Expert With
Extraordinary Contribution of Sichuan Province (79)1|1 &A= H BB ER).
Ms. Liu is currently a chartered PRC tax accountant and a fellow
member of the China Public Finance Society (7 B Bf B £ &), the
Chinese Tax Institute (f B % # £ &) and Sichuan Association of
Chartered Tax Accountants (P9JI1 R 75AM#HE ). She also serves as
vice president of the International Taxation Association of Sichuan
Province (/4 JIl /& B B% % Y 1% &) and the International Taxation
Association of Chengdu City (5 &5 1 B B2 £ Y 22 ). Ms. Liu obtained
her doctorate degree in fiscal science from Southwest University of
Finance and Economics in 1999. Ms. Liu was appointed as an
independent non-executive director the Company on 16 August, 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREEHR

Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (BRZ&5t), age 43, is the Chief Financial Officer of
our Company since September 2013. Mr. Chan is responsible for our
financial management. Mr. Chan has over 19 years of experience in
financial management, compliance and auditing. Since August 2007,
Mr. Chan was the principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer of Gushan. Prior to joining Gushan, Mr. Chan worked in the audit
division of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong from 1994 to 1999. He
also served as financial controller and company secretary of Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a company in the production and
distribution of Chinese medicine, from 2004 to 2007 and TopSearch
International (Holdings) Limited, a manufacturer of printed circuit
boards, from 2000 to 2003, both of which are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 9 July, 2010 and 21 June, 2002,
respectively. He has served as an independent non-executive director
of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a
company in the retail and wholesale of China medicine products, since
15 April, 2013, which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange since 7 May, 2013. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technologies with a bachelor’s degree
in business administration in 1994 and The Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a master’s degree in economics in 2003. Mr. Chan is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chen Wei (BR1&), age 35, is the Vice General Manager of our
Company and a director of Tongxin, Jinxin, Xiangbei, Baohe Xinshiji,
Baohe Taiyue and Jin Xunhuan. Mr. Chen is in charge of business risk
management. Mr. Chen has over 10 years of management experience
in automobile, renewable energy and environmental protection sectors.
Mr. Chen joined Gushan in 2008 and served as assistant to the chairman
of the board and head of the group office from 2009 to 2012. Since
January 2013, he has been the vice president of Gushan. Prior to joining
Gushan in 2008, Mr. Chen worked for Handan Gushan Bio-sources
Energy Co. Ltd., the principal business of which is the production and
sale of bio-diesel products in China, as assistant to general manager
from 2005 to 2008 and as acting general manager from 2008 to 2009.
Between 2002 and 2005, he was a sales executive at Fuzhou CTE Co.,
Ltd ({8 M i B LA R A F), the principal business of which is the
production and sale of wire and harness and electronic parts of vehicles
in China. Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s degree in management
from Zhengzhou Institute of Technology (currently known as Henan
University of Technology) in June 2002. He further obtained the
qualification of assistant economist from the Fuzhou City Human
Resources Bureau (&N A2 ) in January 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Luo Guidi (ZE#E5), age 40, is the controller of our Company. She
is mainly responsible for financial risk management. She has also been
appointed as the risk management officer of Company and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s compliance with bank loan
covenants. Ms. Luo has over 15 years of experience in accounting and
internal audit. Since January 2013, Ms. Luo was the manager of the
audit department of Gushan from 2008 to 2012 and has been a director
of the risk management unit at Gushan. Prior to joining Gushan in 2008,
she worked as an audit manager at Fujian Jianyou Certified Public
Accountants Limited (18 22K € 5tEI %A E R A 7)) from 2007 to
2008. Ms. Luo was an audit assistant and audit project manager at
Fujian Lixin Mindu Certified Public Accountants Limited (@321 R #B
& 5T AP = 55 BT A BR 2 &) from 2003 to 2007. From 1997 to 2002, she
worked as a cashier and accountant at Fuzhou Yaolong Chemical Group
Co., Ltd (481t T £ E A 7)), a manufacture of chemicals. Ms. Luo
obtained an undergraduate qualification in accounting from Fuzhou
University through self-study in June 2009. Ms. Luo is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and China Institute of
Internal Audit. She is also qualified as a land valuer and a Registered
Real Estate Appraiser in the PRC.

Mr. Wang Jun (E &), age 40, is the general manager and director of
Baohe Xinshiji, a subsidiary of our Company since June 2014. Mr. Wang
is responsible for formulating, overseeing and executing the day-to-day
management of the operation of Baohe Xinshiji. Mr. Wang has over 15
years of experience in the mechanical and electronic industry. Mr.
Wang currently serves as a director, the general manager and the legal
representative of Baohe Xinshiji. Prior to joining Baohe Xinshiji, Mr.
Wang worked at Sichuan Mianyang Huachi Direction Instrument Co.,
Ltd. (P9I 43R5 5= Bt 7 [ 4% B BR 2 &) (formerly known as The People’s
Liberation Army 9780 Factory) in various roles as a technical center
product development engineer and production department supervisor
from 1998 to 2014. Mr. Wang was appointed as the Chairman Secretary
in July 2005 and Sales Manager in December 2005. Since 2008, Mr.
Wang served as a general manager of the Company and the party
committee secretary until 2014. Mr. Wang graduated from Sichuan
Industrial Institute (now known as Xihua University) in 1998 in
automotive design and manufacturing and was awarded engineer at of
intermediate level.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREEHR

Mr. Fan Dunxian (3G82), age 46, is the general manager and
director of Baohe Taiyue, a subsidiary of our Company since November
2011. Mr. Fan is responsible for formulating, overseeing and executing
the day-to-day management of the operation of Baohe Taiyue. Mr. Fan
has over 5 years of experience in the cable industry. He currently serves
as a director, the general manager and the legal representative of
Baohe Taiyue. Mr. Fan was a founder of Guangzhou Taiyue, the
principal business of which is the manufacturing and sales of
communication cables in China, and has been a director and the
general manager of Guangzhou Taiyue since its establishment in 2007.
Mr. Fan completed his junior college education with Fujian Agriculture
University (currently known as Fujian Agriculture and Forestry
University) in July 1996, majoring in phytomedicine and medical science.

Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan (3RFE3#), age 55, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Cheung has over 21 years of experience in
financial management. Mr. Cheung was the financial controller of
Gushan since March 2006. Mr. Cheung also served from April 2001 to
March 2006 as the qualified accountant and company secretary of
Goldigit Atomtech Holdings Limited (currently known as Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd), a developer and producer of pesticides
in China which is listed on the Stock Exchange since 23 October 2003.
Mr. Cheung was an independent non-executive director of Auto ltalia
Holdings Limited, a company which has been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 16 July 1991 and whose principal business is the import,
marketing, distribution and after-sales services of high quality, branded
products in Asia including cars, electronic appliances, fashion apparels
and accessories, from November 2005 to May 2013, and has been an
independent non-executive director of Tian Shan Development (Holding)
Limited, a property developer in China, since 16 June 2010, Beijing
Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments Co., Ltd., the principal business of
which is the research and development, production and sales of
implantable orthopedic medical devices, effective 11 March 2015, which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 15 July 2010
and 11 March 2015. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung obtained a
diploma in fabric manufacturing from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in
1981. He was appointed as the company secretary on 8 March 2013.
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a manufacturer of recycled copper products, also known
as copper semis, in Southwest China. Beginning in 2013, the Group
started to sell a range of communication cables and power transmission
and distribution cables using copper wirerods produced by the Group
as the principal raw material.

DIRECTORS
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the directors of
the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors Appointed on
Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and 22 February 2013 and
chief executive officer) redesignated as an executive

director on 16 August 2013 and
reelected on 9 June 2014

Mr. Liu Hanjiu 16 August 2013 and reelected
on 9 June 2014

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 16 August 2013 and reelected
on 9 June 2014

Mr. Huang Weiping 16 August 2013

Ms. Zhu Yufen 16 August 2013

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Liansheng 16 August 2013

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 16 August 2013

Ms. Liu Rong 16 August 2013

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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32 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited » Bl & B &R B AR A 7

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 23, 33 and 35 respectively to the financial
statements, no director had a significant beneficial interest in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”, there was no change to any of the information required
to be disclosed in relation to any director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to
(e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i)
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO, or (i) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code") were as follows:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company
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(1) REQFROBHOEFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held shareholding™
EEME B EmME FERAHE #SAERES L
Mr. Yu Jiangiu Interest in a controlled corporation® 958,574,400 45.53%
BEMEE REHEEER?
Mr. Huang Weiping Interest in a controlled corporation® 270,915,400 12.87%
HIESESESE R EE RO
Mr. Liu Hanjiu Interest in a controlled corporation® 142,606,800 6.77%
ZERTAE R EE RS Y
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner 4,772,600 0.23%
MR R E E=BAA

Notes: BT -

(1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2014.

2) The shares were held by Epoch Keen Limited, a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Yu lJiangiu.

(3) 102,963,000 shares were held by Gold Wide Enterprises Limited and
167,952,400 shares were held by First Harvest Global Limited. Both
companies are wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Weiping.

4 103,205,200 shares were held by Silver Harvest Holdings Limited and
39,401,600 shares were held by Ocean Through Limited. Both companies are
wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Hanjiu.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(2)

Lon

g Position in the underlying shares of the

Company

Na

EEHR

Mr. Huang Weiping

me of Director

Capacity/Nature of interest
B REmttE

Beneficial owner®

HIESESESE R EEER O
Mr. Liu Hanjiu Beneficial owner®
ZIER A RPEEE RS ©
Ms. Zhu Yufen Beneficial owner?”
REFLL BERFEAAND

BEERFETHAEREARATRHE
HEEENR GO RAERAHES
RRE @)

(2) RELATEBRONER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held shareholding™
FrERGOEHE BOERADLE

2,000,000 0.10%
12,000,000 0.57%
10,000,000 0.48%

5)

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Huang Weiping
under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Liu Hanjiu under
the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

These equity derivatives were share options granted to Ms. Zhu Yufen under
the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, so far as is
known to any director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the directors or the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (i)
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

purs

uant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Saved as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company were granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by
them, nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (not being a director or
chief executive of the Company) had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Capacity in which

interests are held
BFAEEZENEH

Mianyang Science Technology
City Development Investment
(Group) Co., Ltd.@

Person having a security interest
in shares

HBISRIEREREE (RH) RRDEEERER 2 AT
ERAF®

Madam Mak Siu Hang Viola® Interest in a controlled corporation

BB+ RIEHLEBE R

VMS Holdings Ltd.®
SWKEEERERAAO
VMS Investment Group Ltd.®
SIREEBMARAGFO

ZPEEEE R
Beneficial owner
EmlEEA

Interest in a controlled corporation
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Long position in the shares of the Company (Continued)
Notes:

1 The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number of
the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2014.

2) On 15 August 2014, Silver Harvest Holdings Limited, Ocean Through Limited, First
Harvest Global Limited and Gold Wide Enterprises Limited, shareholders of the
Company, has each entered into share charges in respect of their respective
shareholding of 103,205,200, 39,401,600, 167,952,400 and 102,963,000 shares in the
Company in favour of Mianyang Science Technology City Development Investment
(Group) Co., Ltd. ("“Mianyang Development Group”) as the secured party. On 10
November 2014, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge with Mianyang
Development Group, pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to charge by way of first
fixed charge all its rights, title, interest and benefit in 200,000,000 ordinary shares in
the Company in favour of Mianyang Development Group as the secured party.

3) VMS Investment Group Limited is wholly owned by VMS Holdings Ltd., which is in
turn wholly-owned by Madam Mak Siu Hang Viola. Madam Mak Siu Hang Viola is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by VMS Investment Group Ltd.

Other then as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the directors
have not been notified by any person (not being the directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had 5% or more interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

WARRANTS

Details of the warrants of the Company which were issued on 19
January 2015 and 24 February 2015 are set out in Management
Discussion & Analysis and note 37 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2014, none of the directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The proposed final dividend is subject to the passing of an ordinary
resolution by the Company’s shareholders at the AGM. The record date
for entitlement to the proposed final dividend is 18 June 2015. For
determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from 16 June 2015 to 18
June 2015, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares can
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend
mentioned above, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 June 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set
out in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 71 and 72 respectively
of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company's Register of Members will be closed from 5 June 2015 to
9 June 2015 (both days inclusive), during such period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure all share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd., at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 30
to the financial statements.
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BANK LOANS
Bank Loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2014 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up to develop the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for remuneration of the directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

PENSION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) organized by the local
authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to the PRC Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries. Contributions to the PRC Schemes vest immediately. Under the
PRC Scheme, retirement benefits of existing and retired employees are
payable by the relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

The Group enrolled all employees in Hong Kong in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF") (together with the PRC Schemes, the
“Retirement Benefit Schemes”), which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs to the MPF subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000, and which contribution is matched by the employees. The
assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. Contributions from the employer are
100% vested in the employees as soon as they are paid to the MPF and
subject to certain conditions being met, all benefits derived from the
mandatory contributions must be preserved until the employee either
reaches the normal retirement age of 65 or meets certain specified
conditions whichever is earlier.
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PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

The Group's contributions to Retirement Benefit Schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2014 were RMB3,289,000 (2013: RMB2,378,000).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company's distributable reserves
available for distribution amounted to RMB527,251,000, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law (2012 Revision)
of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate purchases
attributable to our five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
our total cost of purchases.

Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the five largest customers were
customers of our recycled copper products, which included power
transmission and distribution cable manufacturers, copper processing
companies and trading companies. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the aggregate turnover of sales attributable to our five largest
customers contributed 32% of our consolidated turnover and the
turnover of sales attributable to our single largest customer is 10%.
None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers.

ErREstE (@)

REBREE2014F12 831 B IEEE AL
AREEHNERENTEERBARE
3,289,0007T (20134 : AR#¥2,378,0007T) °

BEEEN
RAFE  ARABLBBHRARRZHMREME
REMRBR IR FEAEERITRAL

EERTHD REE
AR NRANEBHE2014F 12831 B ILFE
R FEEE BB D RIS B SRR K7 30 K AR

AEHBDE -

R2014F 128318 » RIERSEERF)E(2012
FAEETH) MR TR E - AR A ] 5k 7 #
A AR 527 251,000 7T ©

FEEFRMERS

HrER

HE2014F12A3MALEFE  AAEEEE
FFATME AR EENBEREE 5 LD 30% °

TR

HE2014F12B3NBIEFE AARFP AR
MOBERNERER  PIEXREERER -
AT A RES AT - B E2014F12 A 31
AEFE AARFAFIGEEERHEESR
% RE—HAEFEEHEERALI0% - &
DNEEBYURENEMEEA S TABRER
BEEMANBEARNT D EITRAS% A LW
RE) B ERAEBAKRE S S TAER -



840 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited  fR B £ & &R FI A B R A A

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following transaction with
certain connected persons of the Company which constitute connected
transaction.

Connected transaction exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements

On 25 September 2014, Tongxin completed an acquisition of 51% and
14% equity interest in Jin Xunhuan from Shenzhen YinTai and Tianjin Jili
respectively, in which a cash consideration of approximately
RMB15,300,000 and RMB4,200,000 was paid respectively (the “Jin
Xunhuan Acquisition”). Jin Xunhuan focuses on the sales and
production of anodic copper from scrap copper as raw materials and
trading electrolytic copper. The Group plans to sell these products
through Jin Xunhuan in the Shanghai Futures Exchange and other
professional e-commerce platforms. By trading its products in such
innovative platforms, the Group expects to (1) enlarge its sales volume;
(2) strengthen its liquidity by shortening the overall trade receivable
turnover days; and (3) capture the synergy effect by making use of the
Group’s existing sources of raw materials, logistic system and technical
know-how. Jin Xunhuan was still under construction at the end of 2014
and it is expected to commence operations in the third quarter of 2015.

In light of the proximity in timing between the Jin Xunhuan Acquisition
and the acquisition of Jin Xunhuan by Shenzhen YinTai and Tianjin Jili
from Jin Xunhuan Electronic Trading Co., Ltd. (£ fEIRETFEREER A
Al), a company controlled by Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu lJiajia,
associates of Mr. Yu Jiangiu, our chairman and controlling shareholder,
and connected persons of the Company, Shenzhen YinTai and Tianjin
Jili are deemed connected persons of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in the circumstances, and the entering into the Jin
Xunhuan Acquisition constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
respect of the Jinxunhuan Acquisition are more than 0.1% but less than
5%, the Jinxunhuan Acquisition is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements, but is exempt from the circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 September
2014 for further details.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Following the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date, the transactions between the Group and
certain connected persons of the Group became continuing connected
transactions. The Company has applied for and the Stock Exchange has
granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the
announcement requirements in respect of certain continuing connected
transactions of the Group. Details of the continuing connected
transactions of the Group are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
Master Production Agreement with Guangzhou Taiyue

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Taiyue Master Production
Agreement dated 6 February 2014 to govern the terms and conditions
of the transactions between our Group and Guangzhou Taiyue in
connection with the provision of production and processing services for
our communication cable products. As Guangzhou Taiyue is 40% held
by Mr. Fan Dunxian, a director of Baohe Taiyue, the production and
processing arrangement between our Group and Guangzhou Taiyue
constitute continuing connected transactions of our Company.

The Taiyue Master Production Agreement took effect upon listing and
continued until 31 December 2014.

The Taiyue Master Production Agreement is subject to an annual cap of
RMB5.0 million for the financial year ending 31 December 2014. In
arriving at the annual cap, our Directors considered the following
factors:

o the monthly average of the historical transaction values and
volume of the production and processing service provided by
Guangzhou Taiyue for the nine months ended 30 September 2013,
and

. the expected termination of the production and processing
arrangement with Guangzhou Taiyue after the new production
facility of Baohe Taiyue commences commercial production,
which is currently expected to be in the second or third quarter of
2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been primarily
calculated by multiplying the monthly average of the historical
transaction values for the nine months ended 30 September 2013 by
four, and adding a buffer to provide the Company with some flexibility
to cater for any unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Group to Guangzhou Taiyue for the
provision of production and processing services for the year ended 31
December 2014 was nil.

The Taiyue Master Production Agreement expired on 31 December
2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
(Continued)

Master Production Agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Xinshiji Master Production
Agreement dated 6 February 2014 to govern the terms and conditions
of the transactions between our Group and Sichuan Xinshiji in
connection with the provision of production and processing services for
our power transmission and distribution cable products. As Mr. Chen
Hai, a director of Baohe Xinshiji, has de facto control over Sichuan
Xinshiji, the production and processing arrangement between our
Group and Sichuan Xinshiji constitute continuing connected
transactions of our Company.

The Xinshiji Master Production Agreement took effect upon listing and
continued until 31 December 2014. The Xinshiji Master Production
Agreement is subject to an annual cap of RMB30.0 million for the
financial year ending 31 December 2014. In arriving at the annual cap,
our Directors considered the following factors:

. the continuous increase in the historical transaction values and
volume of the production and processing service provided by
Sichuan Xinshiji in the nine months ended 30 September 2013,

. the actual sales of Baohe Xinshiji for the nine months ended 30
September 2013 and the expected continuing growth of our
power transmission and distribution cable business; and

° the expected termination of the production and processing
arrangement with Sichuan Xinshiji after the new production
facility of Baohe Xinshiji commenced commercial production,
which commenced in the second quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been primarily
calculated by multiplying the monthly average of the historical
transaction value for October and November 2013, which amount to
RMB7.8 million and RMB8.8 million, respectively, by three and adding a
buffer to the product to provide the Company with some flexibility to
cater for any unexpected increase in transactions. We believe that the
monthly average of the transaction values for October and November
2013 is @ more appropriate basis for determining the annual cap for the
Xinshiji Master Production Agreement as we expected the level of
transaction in October and November 2013, which is higher than the
level in the previous months in 2013, would continue in 2014.

BERXS %)
EReETBEIRENEREWISERE

X5 (%)

SR P I St A AR A EE I R

2014526 H - H AT A B R 201442
Ao BMFT AR REERZ  UEEASERE
it 2 B AR AR EEHERREHR
B RN T BRTS M #1732 5 MRS AR 1T -
R AL ERREEEEF D) EL
B FRIE M - NSRBI F A2 2 AR A
ERNTZHEBRARBNFERERS -

it B EEH N ETWRAES - WEEFR
HE2014F 128318 - ittt id @£ EpmA
REZE014ENRZANBILEMREEEFEE
LR AR®30,0000007C - EEFEZSFE L
fREF - EEEEETHEE

e HZE2013F9A308 (L SME R I )IF
RRENEERNTRENEL R HE
BERXHGERHBER

e HZE2013F9 A 308 (- S B R E
RHEREERE  ARAEBXAEE:
BRERFELER - R

o HEMJIIFEALNEERNTLZHEERR
PRI A EREMAREELE (B
RITREAMR 2014 F 5 —FE) R -

PhkEERAEK FELEREZZH2013F10
ARNMANELRSEENTATFHE(AA
R #7,800,000 7T & A ¥ 8,800,000 7T.) 7 5l 3
UN=FE WARENMAZEHE HARA
AR LB R EAEM A ELEENXZS
BE - HFIMEE 2013F10ARMNANKZS
BENEBATHEEEAEABEETELRLE
EMEFE FROEE  AARMEH2013F
1M0ARN ARRSKE(ER2013FBE A D
HI7KE) IS IEAE E 2014 4F o



Annu:%ort 2014 o 20145 F =R

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
(Continued)

Master Production Agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji (Continued)
The amount paid/payable by the Group to Sichuan Xinshiji for the
provision of production and processing services for the year ended 31
December 2014 was nil.

The Xinshiji Master Production Agreement expired on 31 December
2014.

Master Sale Agreement with Guangzhou Taiyue

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Taiyue Master Sale Agreement
to govern the terms and conditions of the transactions between our
Group and Guangzhou Taiyue in connection with the sale of copper
products (mainly copper wires). The Taiyue Master Sale Agreement took
effect upon listing and continued until 31 December 2014. As
Guangzhou Taiyue is 40% held by Mr. Fan Dunxian, a director of Baohe
Taiyue, the sale of copper products by our Group to Guangzhou Taiyue
constitute continuing connected transactions of our Company.

The Taiyue Master Sale Agreement is subject to an annual cap of
RMB17.0 million for the financial year ending 31 December, 2014. The
annual cap has been determined with reference to the market rates for
copper products which our Group sells to persons or companies which
are not connected persons of our Group or any of their associates
under the Listing Rules (“Independent Third Parties”). In arriving at the
annual cap, our directors have considered the following factors:

o the monthly average of the historical transaction values and
volume of the sale of products to Guangzhou Taiyue for the nine
months ended 30 September 2013; and

. the expected decrease in sales to Guangzhou Taiyue after the
new facility of Baohe Talyue commenced commercial production,
which commenced in the fourth quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been calculated
by multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction value
for the nine months ended 30 September, 2013 by four, and adding a
buffer to the product to provide the Company with some flexibility to
cater for any unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Guangzhou Taiyue to the Group for the
purchase of copper products for the year ended 31 December 2014
was approximately RMB1.7 million.

The Taiyue Master Sale Agreement expired on 31 December 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
(Continued)

Master Sale Agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Xinshiji Master Sale Agreement
to govern the terms and conditions of the transactions between our
Group and Sichuan Xinshiji in connection with the sale of copper
products including copper wirerods and copper wires. The Xinshiji
Master Sale Agreement took effect upon listing and continued until 31
December 2014. As Mr. Chen Hai, a director of Baohe Xinshiji, has de
facto control over Sichuan Xinshiji, the sale of copper products by our
Group to Sichuan Xinshiji constitute continuing connected transactions
of our Company.

The Xinshiji Master Sale Agreement is subject to an annual cap of
RMB50.0 million for the financial year ending 31 December 2014. The
annual cap has been determined with reference to the market rates for
copper products which our Group sells to Independent Third Parties. In
arriving at the annual cap, our directors have considered the following
factors:

o the monthly average of the historical transaction values and

volume of the sale of products to Sichuan Xinshiji for the nine
months ended 30 September 2013; and

. the expected decrease in sales to Sichuan Xinshiji after the new
facility of Baohe Xinshiji commenced commercial production,
which commenced in the second quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been calculated
by multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction value
for the nine months ended 30 September 2013 by three, and adding a
buffer to the product to provide the Company with some flexibility to
cater for any unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Sichuan Xinshiji to the Group for the
purchase of copper products for the year ended 31 December 2014
was approximately RMB28.8 million.

The Xinshiji Master Sale Agreement expired on 31 December 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
(Continued)

Master Purchase Agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Xinshiji Master Purchase
Agreement to govern the terms and conditions of the transactions
between our Group and Sichuan Xinshiji in connection with the
purchase of certain cable products including power transmission and
distribution cables. The Xinshiji Master Purchase Agreement took effect
upon listing and continued until 31 December 2014. As Mr. Chen Hai, a
director of Baohe Xinshiji, has de facto control over Sichuan Xinshiji, the
purchase of copper products by our Group from Sichuan Xinshiji
constitute continuing connected transactions of our Company upon
listing.

The Xinshiji Master Purchase Agreement is subject to an annual cap of
RMB55.0 million for the financial year ending 31 December 2014. In
arriving at the annual cap, our directors have considered the following
factors:

. the monthly average of the historical transaction values and
volume of the purchase of products from Sichuan Xinshiji for the
nine months ended 30 September 2013; and

. the expected decrease in purchases from Sichuan Xinshiji after
the new facility of Baohe Xinshiji commenced commercial
production, which commenced in the second quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap is calculated by
multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction value for
the nine months ended 30 September 2013 by three, and adding a
buffer to the product to provide the Company with some flexibility to
cater for any unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Group to Sichuan Xinshiji for the
purchase of power transmission and distribution cables for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was approximately RMB35.3 million.

The Xinshiji Master Purchase Agreement expired on 31 December 2014.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2014 is contained in note 33 to the
financial statements. Except as disclosed above, related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the group made during the year
are disclosed in note 33(a)(ii) to the financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2014 and have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
issued an unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in the annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules and confirmed the following:

1. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

3. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditor’s
attention that causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual value disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 11 February 2014 in respect of each of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to provide incentive and/or reward to eligible persons for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
our Company. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by
a written resolution of the then shareholders of the Company on 28
January 2014 and has came into effect upon the Company’s listing on
21 February 2014.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/or
reward to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, our Company.

Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options (“Options”) to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set
out in the Share Option Scheme to any director or employee of the
Group and any other person (including a consultant or advisor) who in
the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the
Group (“Eligible Persons”).

Further Details of the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of our Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 209,832,160 shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Our Company may at any time as the Board may think
fit seek approval from our shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit, save that the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of our Company shall not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by shareholders in
general meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed.

Our Company may seek separate approval from our shareholders in
general meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit
are granted only to the Eligible Person specified by our Company before
such approval is obtained. The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme shall not
exceed 30% of our Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of our Company if this will result in such
limit being exceeded.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Further Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of securities available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme of the Company in 2014 was 209,832,160 shares, which
was approximately 9.97% of the issued share capital as at the date of
this annual report.

No Option may be granted to any one person such that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to
the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of our Company’s issued share
capital from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within 10 years after the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme to offer the grant of an Option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe
at the subscription price for such number of shares as the Board may
(subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme) determine (provided
the same shall be a board lot for dealing in the shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an Option specify such conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit when making an
offer to an Eligible Person (including, without limitation, as to any
performance criteria which must be satisfied by the Eligible Person and/
or the Company and/or its Subsidiaries, and any minimum period for
which an Option must be held, before an Option may be exercised, if
any), provided that such conditions shall not be inconsistent with any
other terms or conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter
comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favor of our Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by our
Company on or before 30 days after the offer date. To the extent that
an offer is not accepted within the time stated in the offer for that
purpose, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined and shall
immediately lapse.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Further Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The subscription price in respect of any particular Option shall be such
price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time
of grant of the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the Option) but the subscription
price shall be at least the highest of:

(@ the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a business day;

(b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

()  the nominal value of a share.

An Option shall be exercised in whole or in part within the option period
which is the period to be determined and notified by the Board to the
grantee during which period the Option may be exercised and in any
event shall not exceed ten years commencing from the date on which
the offer in relation to such Option is accepted.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after
which no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any subsisting Options
granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year period or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Further Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements of the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31

December 2014 are as follows:

Category

Number
of share
options
held at 1
January
2014
R2014%
1818
BEz
BRE"A

Date of grant

RHAH

Granted
during
2014

Exercised
during
2014

12014 E
R

12014 &
1

Lapsed/
cancelled
during
2014

R2014%

BSR4
ERES B ES S ()
BZE2014E 128318 LEE - BRESE>
ZEHmT

Price of share
of the Company

KARRGBER
Number of
share
options
held at 31
December
2014
R2014%
128318
kA2
BREZA

at the
grant
date

of share
options

at the
exercise
date

of share
options

Exercise

price
of share
options

Exercise period
of share options

BRE
TR
HKS

BT

BhE
RHAH
HKS

A7

Rl

BRETEH TERH

Director

Bz

Mr. Liu Hanjiu 2July 2014 3luly2015to
2 July 2025

SED A 01457 A28 - 12,000,000 - - 12000000 201557A3R8% 113 1.07 -
2005%7A2H

Mr. Huang Weiping 2July 2014 3uly 2015 to
2.July 2025

BENAAE 01457 A28 - 2,000,000 - - 2000000 2015%7A368% 113 1.07 -
02557 A28

Ms. Zhu Yufen 2July 2014 3luly2015to
2 July 2025

KEFLL 2014%7 A28 - 10,000,000 - - 10000000 2015%7A38% 113 1.07 -
02557 A28

Employees in aggregate 2 July 2014 3luly2015to
2 July 2025

B8R 01457 A28 - 89,000,000 - 5610000 83390000 2015%7A3R% 113 1.07 -
2005%7A28

Total

FoH) - 113,000,000 - 5610000 107,390,000 -

Notes: B &

(1) The option period of the share options shall be 10 years from the date of grant.

2 The share options granted have a vesting period of 3 years, i.e. one-third of the share 2)
options shall be vested on the 1st anniversary (round down to the nearest share
option); one-third of the share options shall be vested on the 2nd anniversary (round
down to the nearest share option); and the remaining share options shall be vested

on the 3rd anniversary of the Date of Grant respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Further Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3) The closing prices of the shares of the Company on the date of grant (i.e. 2 July 2014)
was HK$1.07 per share.

(4) On 2 July 2014, a total of 113,000,000 share options were granted to 3 directors of
the Company and certain employees of the Group at an exercise price of HK$1.13
per share pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the “Relevant Share Options”). The
fair value of the Relevant Share Options was HK$10.5 million (HK$0.44 each,
equivalent to RMB0.35), and HK$35,078,000 (HK$0.39 each, equivalent to RMB0.31)
for executive directors and grantees other than executive directors respectively as at
2 July 2014.

The fair value of the Relevant Share Options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant (i.e., 2 July 2014) using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
Relevant Share Options were granted.

The following table sets out the inputs to the model used:

Share price:
HK$1.07

Exercise price:
HK$1.13

Risk-free interest rate
(based on Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes)(%):
2.059%

Expected life of options (year):
10 years

Expected volatility (%):
45.54%

Dividend yield (%):
3%

Early exercise behaviour:
280% for executive directors
220% for grantees other than executive directors

Post-vesting exit rate:
0% for executive directors
5.44% for grantees other than executive directors
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Further Details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

No other feature of the Relevant Share Options was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

The value of the Relevant Share Options is subject to the limitations of
the binomial model and a number of assumptions which are subjective
and difficult to ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

No share options have been cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2014. Further details relating to the Share Option Scheme
and share options granted thereunder are set out in note 2(q)(ii) and
note 31 to the financial statements and the announcement of the
Company dated 2 July 2014.

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10 November
2014, on 10 November 2014, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge
with Mianyang Development Group, pursuant to which Epoch Keen
agreed to charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title, interest
and benefit in 200,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company
(representing 9.50% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the 2014 Share Charge) in favour of Mianyang Development
Group as the secured party (the“2014 Share Charge”) as security for the
liabilities of Tongxin for the second tranche of an entrusted loan of an
aggregate principal amount of up to RMB600,000,000 entered into by
and among Tongxin (as borrower) and Mianyang Development Group (as
the lender by way of entrusted loan) by way of a co-operation
agreement dated 29 July 2014 (the “Loan”).

The first drawdown of the Loan in a principal amount of
RMB200,000,000 has occurred and the second drawdown of the Loan
shall be in a principal amount of RMB100,000,000 (the “Second Tranche
Principal®). The entering into the 2014 Share Charge is a condition
precedent to the drawdown of the Second Tranche Principal under the
Loan. As at the date of this annual report, the 2014 Share Charge has
not been released.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30 March
2015, on 30 March 2015, Epoch Keen entered into a share charge (“2015
Share Charge”) with Huarong, pursuant to which Epoch Keen agreed to
charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title and interest in
362,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company (representing 17.20% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the 2015
Share Charge) in favour of Huarong as the secured party.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
(Continued)

The 2015 Share Charge has been entered into as security for the
liabilities of the Company under a subscription agreement in relation to
the issue of convertible bonds due 2017 entered in to between the
Company and Huarong on 27 March 2015. For details of the convertible
bonds, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27
March 2015 and page 19 of this annual report.

As at the date of this annual report, the 2015 Share Charge has not
been released.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company from the Listing
Date up to 31 December 2014.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Yu Jiangiu and Epoch Keen Limited, being controlling shareholders
of the Company, entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-
Competition”) dated 6 February 2014, details of which have been set
out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Prospectus.

The Company has reviewed the annual declaration from the Parties on
compliance with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition have been complied with by the Parties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of the post balance sheet events are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

AUDITORS

KPMG has been appointed as auditor of the Company in 2014. KPMG
shall retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any shareholder is unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, it is advised to consult an expert.

By order of the Board

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
Yu Jianqiu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Company's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s success and sustainability. We are
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance as an
essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our
business.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has been in
compliance with the mandatory code provisions of the CG Code
throughout 31 December 2014, save as to the deviation from the code
provision A.2.1 which requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out
in writing. Currently, Mr. Yu liangiu is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group
and has extensive experience in operations and management, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu
taking up both roles for continuous effective management and business
development of the Group. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as details relating to the foregoing
deviation are summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. The Board’s main roles are to provide leadership and to
approve strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing
shareholder value. All directors carry out their duties in good faith and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

Directors have full and timely access to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently. Any director and Board Committee
may request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable
request to the Board.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees, namely the audit and
corporate governance committee (the "Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“"Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the "Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

BOARD COMPOSITION
As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Liu Hanjiu

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny

Mr. Pan Liansheng

Ms. Liu Rong

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Moreover, through active participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all independent
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The directors have been provided with the relevant training to ensure
that they have a proper understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities
and obligations as a director of a listed company as well as the
compliance practice under the Listing Rules.

The attendance record of professional training received by the directors
is as follows:

Date of attendance of

Director director’s training
Mr. Yu lJiangiu 23/12/2014
Mr. Liu Hanjiu 23/12/2014
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 23/12/2014
Mr. Huang Weiping 23/12/2014
Ms. Zhu Yufen 23/12/2014
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 23/12/2014
Mr. Pan Liansheng 23/12/2014
Ms. Liu Rong 23/12/2014
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Yu Jiangiu is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in corporate operations and management, the Board
believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking
up both roles for continuous effective management and business
development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
term of two years commencing on 21 February 2014.

The director’s fee specified in the letter of appointment of each of
independent non-executive Directors are HK$200,000.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and/or industry expertise and management experience
and have provided their professional advice to the Board.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment, retirement,
re-election and removal of directors are set out in the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. In accordance with the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM”"), at least one
third of the directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than,
onethird) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that each director
shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every three
years.

Any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall be subject to re-election at the
next AGM after his appointment.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the directors or Board committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When
directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a meeting,
they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are/will
be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held.

According to the Articles of Association, a director shall not vote nor be
counted in the quorum on any resolution of the Board approving any
contract or arrangement in which he or his associates is materially
interested.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT BOARD
MEETINGS

6 Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2014
and the attendance of the individual directors at these meetings is set
out below.

Attended/

Eligible to
Name of director Category attend
Mr. Yu liangiu Board meeting 6/6
Mr. Liu Hanjiu Board meeting 6/6
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Board meeting 6/6
Mr. Huang Weiping Board meeting 6/6
Ms. Zhu Yufen Board meeting 6/6
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny Board meeting 6/6
Mr. Pan Liansheng Board meeting 6/6
Ms. Liu Rong Board meeting 6/6

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Officers on terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code
as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the
existing directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2014 to the date of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are posted on the Company's website
"http://www.cmru.com.cn” and are available to shareholders upon
request. All Board committees report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Ccompany's expense.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr.
Pan Liansheng and Ms. Liu Rong (Chairperson) who are all independent
non-executive directors. The functions of the Nomination Committee
primarily are to: (i) review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors; (iv) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive; and to (v) determine the policy for the
nomination of directors, the nomination procedures and the process
and criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for
directorship.

On 16 April 2014 the Nomination Committee adopted a board diversity
policy in compliance with code provision A.5.6 (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy applies to the Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Nomination
Committee will review annually the structure, size and composition of
the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and will
make recommendation to the Board on the measurable objectives for
achieving board diversity. The Company aims to maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are
relevant to the Company business growth.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2014 to, inter alias, () review the size and composition of
the Board; (ii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors and to review that re-appointment of directors; and
(iii) discuss other matters related to the foregoing.

Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Number of
Name of director attendance
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 2/2
Mr. Pan Liansheng 2/2

Ms. Liu Rong 2/2
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The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of Mr.
Huang Weiping, Ms. Zhu Yufen as executive directors, and Mr. Pan
Liansheng as independent non-executive director of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny,
Mr. Pan Liansheng (Chairperson) and Ms. Liu Rong who are all
independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following: () to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; (ii) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives; (iii) either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, or to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management; (iv) to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive directors; (v) to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its
subsidiaries; (vi) to review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management for any 10ss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (vii) to review and
approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; (viii)
to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration; and (ix) to determine the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors, assess performance of executive
directors and approve the terms of executive directors’ service
contracts.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements
contained in this annual report.

Remuneration of senior management other than Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are as follow:

Total remuneration bands

R E

RMB1,000,000-2,000,000

Below RMB1,000,000 AR 1,000,000 7TIA T
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FMEES 2
RERNEZE2014F12 A31 B 1FFE & HEN
FBHI AN FRIABIHREMEY ©

HE20UF1N2ANBILFEIFESHESHRE
BEHMIT

Number of executive
ITHABEHHE
2014

20145

2013
20134

A% 1,000,000 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 -

Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during the
year ended 31 December 2014 to review the existing remuneration
packages of Directors and senior managements of the Company, to
recommend the proposed grant of share option and to recommend the
remuneration packages for Directors and senior managements of the
Company. The recommended remuneration packages have been
approved by the entire Board.

Number of
Name of director attendance
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 3/3
Mr. Pan Liansheng 3/3
Ms. Liu Rong 3/3

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee comprises of Mr. Lee
Ting Bun Denny (Chairperson), Mr. Pan Liansheng and Ms. Liu Rong who
are all independent non-executive directors.

In relation to reviewing the Company’s financial information, the Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee’s duties mainly are to (i) review
the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or external
auditors before submission to the Board; (i) review and monitor the
external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv)
review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system.

REBE2014F12A31BLFE  FWEES
BITTZRER  UBRARREENSAE
BEZHWNEFES BRREBEREARE
FARBDESASRERE HIENES -
Fig@c e E2BESa e -

EEsNS R
FEM A 3/3
EERBE 3/3
£y 3/3
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AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (continued)

In relation to its corporate governance functions, the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities are (i) to develop,
review and update the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices and to make recommendations to the Board, (ii) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, (iii) to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and
directors, and (v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Three meetings of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
were held during the Year. The work performed by the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee during the Year included the
following:

— reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013;

— reviewed the interim report and interim results announcements of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2014;

— reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and other financial reporting matters;

— reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with
external auditors on any significant findings and audit issues,

— reviewed the results of internal audit and had discussion with
internal auditors on any significant findings and internal control
issues;

— discussed with the external auditors before the audit commenced,
the nature and scope of the audit and the respective relevant

issues; and

— considered and approved the service contract of the auditors for

the Year.
Number of
Name of director attendance
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 3/3
Mr. Pan Liansheng 3/3

Ms. Liu Rong 3/3

RECKERBENS  EELREXERZRE
SHRES  ()FIF *ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ$’&—lﬂ’7¢
%Emﬂl%&%fﬁlﬁ%%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ (i e
HhEREENGREEENE JII&?—?% %
B (iR RERARBRETERIER
BMEMBEREER - (V) HIET - et RERER
RETIREERETTAIRARFM: RV
AARRERETEREBRERMRALEE
SAEHBEE

ERERRAEEAERTRBITIREE -
ERROEEAEBRRAFERTHIIER

EUATEIE:

— EFEAQATHZE2013F12A3MHIEFE

MEHRNEERE

— BHARFBEE2014F6A308 (F/XE
ARMPREBmE R REERS

— BEHAKREMRANE
HEMBHBER

SR KB P AN

—  EHIBEER  AREMERNERR
FETFEEINSRBENETH R

— HHAMEZNER  UREMERER
R ELAD R EDHE ) B B B AR BRI AE AT

*'_A.
A

—  REZFE AN R BN A R A
HERBEARZEHER &

— ERRMERFENZBERESL -

EsgR IR

FEBESLLE 3/3
EER T E 3/3
£l g 3/3



AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

KPMG was re- appointed as our external auditor by shareholders at the
2014 AGM until the conclusion of the 2015 AGM. It is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG is set out
below:

Audit services (audit fee for the year ended
31 December 2014 and 2013)

Other services H b RTS

Annual Report 2014 20145 53R

BT BN <=

EFRH ST EBAN 2014 FRFBFREGHE
PR EER RSMNB X EED - EHIE 2015 FF I RIA
FRERILE - EXBRBAERIEFREVBHR
RIBHE LIRS o

SR EN T RSB S E TS ST
AT

Year ended
31 December,
2013

H = 20134
12A31H
IEFE
RMB'000
ARBTFTL

Year ended
31 December,
2014
HZ2014%F

12A31H
IEFE
RMB’000
ARMT T

EAZIRTG (B ZE 20144 K 20134
12 A31BIEFE ZHEZRG)

2,646
1,854

1,437
4,471

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 which give a
true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

EERVBERRTFNVUBRERT
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board to
maintain an adequate internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assets and review the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and considers the internal control
system to be effective and adequate.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its directors.

UPDATES ON COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY
MATTERS DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS

As disclosed in the section headed “Business — Compliance” in the
Prospectus and the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2013, during the period ended 31 December 2010, the two financial
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 and the nine months ended
30 September 2013, there were certain incidents of the Group's
noncompliance with applicable regulations. As at 31 December 2014, all
incidents of non-compliance have been rectified.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Ccompany also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at “http://www.cmru.com.cn”, where extensive information and
updates on the Group's business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to
the Company as follows:

Address: Unit 908, China Merchants Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of Corporate Communications Department)
Fax: +852 2587 7199
Email:  ir@cmru.com.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with its investors.

Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group's developments.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders” meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting.

Under article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Company’'s
shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting or put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings pursuant to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the procedures
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company has not made any changes to its Articles of Association
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014. An up-to-date version of
the Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (http://www.cmru.com.cn) immediately after the relevant
general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

N

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA METAL RESOURCES UTILIZATION LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 71 to 172, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2014, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BE S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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Annu%ort 20140201455 M

er 2014 (Expressed in |
2 A 31 H1EFE (AR

2014 2013
2014 & 20134
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T T ARET T
Turnover =E 27 4 3,858,943 2,959,004
Cost of sales HEKAK (3,817,158) (2,828,880)
Gross profit EF 41,785 130,124
Other revenue H Uz 6(a) 439,898 280,565
Other net (loss)/income HAnF (BER), WA 6(b) (1,543) 428
Selling and distribution expenses HER DAY (22,634) (9,107)
Administrative expenses THRAX (102,179) (63,640)
Profit from operations F il 355,327 338,370
Finance costs B 15 Ak A 7(a) (57,630) (33,330)
Profit before taxation BAEF 7 297,697 305,040
Income tax FriS#i 8(a) (49,431) (59,492)
Profit for the year FERER 248,266 245,548
Attributable to: BUR ARG
Equity shareholders of the Company RN ARER IR 248,513 245,548
Non-controlling interests R (247) =
Profit for the year FREFA 248,266 245,543
Earnings per share SRER
Basic (RMB) EXR(ARET) 0.12 0.17
Diluted (RMB) B8 (AR®T) 0.12 0.17

The notes on pages 80 to 172 form part of these financial statements.

N
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2014 2013

2014 5% 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T

Profit for the year FREF 248,266 245,548
Other comprehensive income for the year £y HE b2 mHUkK S

Item that may be reclassified subsequently BEE AT EF T IEE

to profit or l0ss: Bz mIEE
Exchange differences on translation of BME IR BB BHRKT
financial statements of non-PRC entities EHER 2,952 4,935

Total comprehensive income for the year, £R2EUzE%E

net of nil tax (EBIEZFH) 251,218 250,483
Attributable to: BT ALHEL :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR BRERIRR 251,465 250,483
Non-controlling interests el g (247) -
Total comprehensive income for the year F£R2EKHELE 251,218 250,483

The notes on pages 80 to 172 form part of these financial statements. F 0B EF 172 B MM s B Bt = 19— =6

)

N



er 2014 (Expressed in

01447 12 5 31 B (KA

2014 2013

2014 5% 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥EFIT

Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MK 13 559,308 404,706
Lease prepayments GEN=SEA B 14 85,618 87,371
Intangible assets mAE 16 3,656 7,312
Goodwill FHE] 17 39,308 39,308
Pledged deposits BEIRFER 18 12,820 6,300
Other non-current assets EMIERIEE 19 34,134 52,834
Deferred tax assets RIEF A 2= 20(b) 774 145
e 735,618 597,976
Current assets nEBEE
Inventories e 21 461,699 140,160
Trade and other receivables B 5N EMEWR IR 22 1,021,829 848,666
Amounts due from related parties JE Uk B HE 5 2018 23 - 964
Pledged deposits BEIRER 18 43,285 27,711
Cash and cash equivalents WENHEESEEER 25(a) 145,765 78,615
e 1,672,578 1,096,116
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAbFE IR 26 339,216 420,671
Obligations under finance leases BERETHEMR 27 16,471 12,000
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREAMBERK 28 390,670 304,374
Amounts due to related parties FE S A HE 5 2018 23 - 30,200
Loans from related parties BaE 5 B 24 = 84,948
Current taxation BIER# X 20(a) 19,988 28,317
e 766,345 880,510
Net current assets FREBEE 906,233 215,606
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2014 2013

2014 5% 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥EFIT

Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Bank loans and other borrowings RITER R EMIER 28 300,000 120,000
Obligations under finance leases RERETHEMR 27 36,027 48,000
Deferred government grants IR SE BT 4 B 29 31,048 31,048
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEE & 20(b) 1,473 1,729
. =~ 368,548 200,777

NET ASSETS FEE 1,273,303 612,805
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E
Share capital R AN 30(c) 166,075 907
Reserves fEfE 30(d) 1,096,991 611,898
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARAFERRER

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF LA S

THE COMPANY 1,263,066 612,805
Non-controlling interests R 10,237 -
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,273,303 612,805

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 20154 3 A 25 A& = Be it RIS Tz o
March 2015.

Yu Jianqiu Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
AMEN BEE
Directors Directors
E E

The notes on pages 80 to 172 form part of these financial statements. F80BEEF 172 BRI sE B I 3R Ay — 26
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er 2014 (Expressed in |
0144612 531 A (AA R

2014 2013
2014 5% 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T

Non-current assets FRBEE
IEsimensetbsgaree wWDAEEES 5. i) . B
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIESE € 23(a) 384,731 61,609
Other receivables Hh fEUTRIR 22 228 -
Cash and cash equivalents He KRS EBIEB 25(a) 16,577 453
e LT L
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued expenses and other payables — FE=tEE sz M H {th FE A~ ZR I8 26 6,532 3,907
Amount due to a director JEf —fIZE EHFKIA 23(b) - 18,075
e S - 2l
Netcurrentassets  AmmEE 395,004 40,080
NET ASSETS FEE 693,326 338,402
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE 30(a)
Share capital N 166,075 907
Reserves 1] 527,251 337,495
TOTAL EQUITY B 693,326 338,402

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 120154 3 A 25 Bi&E =2 #h /R IR T3 -
March 2015.

Yu Jianqiu Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
BEMN BEE
Directors Directors
BZ BZ

The notes on pages 80 to 172 form part of these financial statements. %80 B 2 5 172 B BT 5E#8 Ak B 75 sl 3k 19 — 30
J_j\ o
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Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
£ i
Share-
hased Non-
Share Share Exchange Capital Statutory payment Retained controlling Total
capital premium resenve resernve reserves profits Total interests equity

B i ERR : REER
(Note 30(c)) ~ (Note 30(ci)) ~ (Note 30(c)())  (Note 30(d)(i)  (Note 30(d){iv))  (Note 30(d)v)
) (B 30(d)i) £ 30i))  (HEE30E)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTE  ARKTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTT

Balance at 1January 2013 20135151 Af&e 68 = 7435 132814 20,158 7,659 130,188 298322 = 298322

Changes in equity for 2013: 2013 FHRERE :

Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 245548 245,548 = 245,548
Other comprehensive income £ 2 E Wiz - - 4,935 - - - - 4,935 - 4935
Total comprehensive income  Eth 2 EHE A% = = 4935 = = = 245,548 250,483 = 250,483
Avrising from corporate rESEREE

reorganisation 759 - - (759) - - - - - -
Appropriations to statutory  EEZ £

Teserves 30(d)(iv) - - - - 29,248 - (29,248) - - -
Shares issued under share R EERER TR

option scheme 80 579 - - - (7,659 - 64,000 - 64,000
Balance at 20135124318

31 December 2013 ifg] 907 7,579 12370 132,055 49,406 = 346,488 612,805 = 612,805




Annu%ort 2014 ¢ 2014 FR T

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
rRERERRER
Share-
based Non-
Share Share Exchange Capital Statutory payment Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserve profits interests equity
NRHBE
2B
R BRBEE  ENRE  EARE  EERE  HRERE  REEA it FERER afs
(Note 30(c)  (Note 30(ci)  (Note 30(c))  (Note 30(a)il) (Note 30(d)iv)) ~ (Note 30(d)v))
(WEE30(c)  (RE30()  (WEE30(D)  (WE&E30(cNiD)  (MisE3o(di)  (RY&E30(d)v)
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2014 20145171 BfEEeh 907 71519 12,370 132,055 49,406 = 346,488 612,805 = 612,805

Changes in equity for 2014: 2014 ERRERE

Profitfor the year T = = = = = = 248,513 248,513 (247) 248,266
Other comprehensiveincome  E-fb 2 &k - - 2,952 - - - - 2,952 - 2,952
Total comprehensiveincome A2 kLS - - 2,952 - - - 248,513 251,465 (247) 251,218
Capitalisation issLie BRLES 30(c)i) 123,215 (123,215) - - - - - - - -

Issue of new shares underthe  RIEE RABRE
inital public offering (P0")  (TERABEE])
HTHRG 0 MM 391,063 - - - - - ddm -
Issue of new shares upon BEEAAREE
exercise of the over-alotment 77 R EE

option under the PO BHRG ()i 539 5,553 - - - - - 6,092 - 6,092
Share based compensation R AEEFERT

£XDenses 30w o = - - - 10,365 - 10,365 - 10,365
Dividend declared inrespect ~ SiAEEERZRS

of the current year 300) - (50,138) - - - - - (50,138) - (50,138)
Non-controling interest arising iz~ BARIE:

from acquisition of a subsidiary 7 3EfaRERE - - - - - - - - 10,484 10,484
Approprigtions tostatutory  EEZ A

Teserves 30(d)iv) - - - - 26,736 - (26,736) - - -
Balance at 20145128318

31 December 2014 il 166,075 294,842 15,322 132,055 76,142 10,365 568,265 1,263,066 10,237 1,273,303

The notes on pages 80 to 172 form part of these financial statements. E 80 B EF 172 B KM s HE K I F5 3Rk #) — &P
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2014 2013

2014 5% 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T

Operating activities RETEE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations & & (Fr A ), FrisR & 25(b) (123,864) 95,849
The People’s Republic of China (‘PRC") B e EE AR HH

Corporate Income Tax paid (MBI 2EMEH (58,645) (55,166)

Net cash (used in)/generated from &&5EE (FrfE),
operating activities Fr8FRE (182,509) 40,683

Investing activities REETE

Payment for the purchase of property, BEEW¥ - BE &R EHZIE

plant and equipment (172,368) (189,670)
Payment for lease prepayments S AEENK (11,595) (40,418)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEWHE - BERE

plant and equipment FriS 518 147 35
Payment for acquisitions of subsidiaries sz 1~ U B& Fff B A &) 8 71 8

(net of cash and cash equivalents (HBBEWENRES R

acquired) ReEEER) (18,846) -
Interest received B U B 1,150 1,647
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 1z s0m L (1 h0) 3,026 (14,666)

Net cash used in investing activities #&E8 A TEHES (198,486) (243,072)



/4
er 2014 (Expressed

2.8 31 BIEERE (HAR

2014 2013
2014 £ 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR® TR ARET T

Financing activities RESER
Proceeds from new bank loans and FIRITESR R

other borrowings E A & RATIS 5RIE 850,670 478,880
Repayment of bank loans and other BEERITER R EAEK

borrowings (584,374) (236,000)
Proceeds from sale of assets under HEERMERZHET

sale and leaseback arrangement BEFRBZHIE 5,500 60,000
Repayment of sale and leaseback BRI ERERBEDZHE

arrangement (13,365) -
Proceeds from advances from local B BB ETS IR

governments = 50,000
Repayment of advances from local B8 E M BUT R

governments (1,000) (7,640)
Increase in pledged deposits HHRF L N (25,120) (4,726)
Interest paid ERFIE (56,379) (27,122)
Dividend paid BEfRE (50,138) =
Repayment to related parties BIERE @ ER (116,220) (51,899)
Net proceeds from issue of shares BT Z FTS 5B F 3R 438,569 -

Net cash generated from financing REEEREZEEE

___activites aa8.143) @@ 2oees
Net increase in cash and cash REeERFESESHEEEHFEM
equivalents 67,148 59,104
cash and cash equivalents at FINEEeRASEEER
the beginning of the year 78,615 19,609

Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgse

changes 2 (98)
cash and cash equivalents at FRNEERASEEER
the end of the year 25(a) 145,765 78,615

The notes on pages 80 to 172 form part of these financial statements. F 0B EF 172 B M s B B S 3= 1y — =0
7_3\ o

N



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 February 2013. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of copper
and related products and the provision of contract manufacturing
in the PRC. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the

Stock Exchange”) since 21 February 2014.

Pursuant to the corporate reorganisation of the Group (“the
Corporate Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding

company of the Group on 19 March 2013.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IAS") and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”). These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and
the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements. The Group has not applied any
new or revised standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period. The revised and
new accounting standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the accounting period beginning 1
January 2014 are set out in note 36.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Engen Investments Limited (“Engen”) was incorporated on 6
August 2010 with the view of becoming the holding
company of the copper business of the Group when Engen
acquired Mianyang Jinxin Copper Co., Ltd. (“Jinxin") in
November 2010.

The Company, Engen and its subsidiaries that took part in
the Corporate Reorganisation were controlled by the same
ultimate equity shareholder, Mr. Yu Jiangiu both before and
after the Corporate Reorganisation and there were no
changes in the business and operations of Engen and its
subsidiaries. The Corporate Reorganisation only involved
incorporating the Company with no prior substantive
operations as the holding company of Engen and the
holding company of the Group. Accordingly, the Corporate
Reorganisation has been accounted for using a principle
similar to that for a reverse acquisition as set out in IFRS 3
“Business combinations” with Engen treated as the acquirer
for accounting purposes. The financial statements have
been prepared and presented as a continuation of the
consolidated financial statements of Engen and its
subsidiaries, with the assets and liabilities of the Group
recognised and measured at their historical carrying
amounts prior to the Corporate Reorganisation.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments (see note 2(f)) that are stated
at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 3.

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs and
one new Interpretation that were effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to these financial statements:

- Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

- Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

- Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in
IAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as they are consistent with the policies
already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to IAS 36 modify the disclosure
requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among
them, the amendments expand the disclosures required for
an impaired asset or cash generating unit whose
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal. The Group adopted the amendments to IAS 36 in
2014 which has no impact on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to IAS 39 provide relief from discontinuing
hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated
as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. The
amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the Group has not novated any of its
derivatives.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flow and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ZHZHEI AN RESE)

B SR ERISE 39 MR & F74£
TANKNBEE R E LA
B gt ERIE I RIEFTARER
NeaETHEELIEEE/E T TA
WITET AR B K LIRS
B o AR A KB & F B H M
TETR  BZEFTAHAEED
HERBHRRLBELE -

MEBARARAREIZEHNER -
MAEEAAZENERNZHER
EEMAZERNEAR - HNZF
AEEmTREAEN  WHENR
BEHZEENENMEEZFE
W AAREEZEGZER - ERTA
AEBREHRBENE  EEEE
EREMN(AAXAKEREMBALRE
B)e

IS
i\

RETBRRIRE B EFIREE
REIAGEMBRE  EREY
HBREBRL SEREBRERRS
MEeREREBRRIZMELN
AR B i F I AR B4R A B TS 3R
RESTBYHE KERXSMEL
HRE IR B RAIKH TR EARER
WaiERE - EENERERERER
BR °

FEREEREYIFAARAER
AEEEEMBLANER  MA
SERERERELESNTR
ARSI BEIMETR - AT BAL
ERENELERMAENE S/
BEEENEREY - UEBEEH
BH AEEREEA QT ESRIZ
FEEALRE SR (5 P B A B Y AT T 38l
BEAMEN N EART EIFEMER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
company.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method as at the acquisition date — i.e. when
control is transferred to the Group.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or group of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or 10ss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(K)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated

useful lives, being no more than

20 years after the date of completion

— Plant and machinery 5to 10 years
— Furniture, fittings and equipment 310 10 years
— Motor vehicles 4t0 10 years
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(k)). The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(v)).
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or l0ss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. Customer relationships are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are three years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments of such assets
are included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are
recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as
set out in note 2(g). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 2(k). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Ccontingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BiTHES) -

(iii)

(iv)

)

VN2 7=,

Sales and leaseback arrangement resulting in
finance lease

A sales and leaseback arrangement which results in a
finance lease is a means whereby the lessor provides
finance to the lessee with the asset as security. To
reflect the substance of the transaction, any excess of
sales proceeds over the carrying amount of the asset,
or any deficit of sales proceeds lower than the
carrying amount of the asset, is deferred and
amortised as an adjustment to the depreciation of the
asset.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal installments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

Impairment of trade and other receivables
Current and non-current trade and other receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor,

(iii)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment 10ss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BiTHES) -

)

(ii)

VN2 7=,

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subseqguent recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or 0ss.

Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment 10ss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- lease prepayments;

- non-current prepayments for property, plant and
equipment;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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(i)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, the recoverable
amount of goodwill is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
KUAE#SE)

(b= BiTHES) -

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment l0sses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 2(k)(i) and (ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(k)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using an effective
interest method.

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ZHZHEI AN RESE)

171 T IRAK AN R A B BE B B
%515 -

AR TSI I F ARG & - I
BIEFARBRA - B R i
FERTFRBER AR R RFFR
BARSUFTEE S BV EL AR AR

AR FEREREXKBETH
ET B E R A FT TR R A H 3
EMBETATRAA

EELTFER  ZEFENREE
EERER BB ANHAER R
X o B ERURE AT # R ENR
BMAA 78BS E IR
BIEANHANERSAX - E{FE
MR L SRR R TFES T
D - WHREE A RREFER A o

B 5 FEWGRIA K B i FE YR IR 1) 27
BRAFERR  HERERERMEX
VEYEH 3H PR A RUR BR R (B B A 71 BR
(R EE2(k)) - HE fidf & U SR TR TS [A]
RARE 5 ety o BB S A I AL
BEERXMEMEBANTEALTEXN
AIBHIGN - EZFBRT - BIGK
TR TR R AR R R R (B R R 51U B

A EERNFE R FEREIER S
PRANHERR - MV EFERIL - 5T BAE
ST IRH SH AR 0] 25 W AR & R
REFHMNMEERAERNELE
B2 REERZHE - EREREN
MERER - ERERAREIE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a share-based payment
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Option Pricing Model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purpose, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BiTHES) -
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VN2 7=,

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(s)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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(i)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

0]

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Contract manufacturing income
Contract manufacturing income is recognised when
the contract manufacturing services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv)  Government grants

An unconditional government grant is recognised in
profit or loss as other revenue when the grant
becomes receivable, other government grants are
recognised in the balance sheet initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other
than Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that operation with functional
currency other than Renminbi is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group'’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
KUAE#SE)

(b= BiTHES) -

(0)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the same third
entity, or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Note 34 contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to the fair value of financial
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BiTHES) -

VN2 7=,

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting
judgements:

0]

Impairment

Notes 17 and 34(a) contain information about the
assumptions and risk factors relating to the
impairment of goodwill and trade debtors. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain assets of the Group, the
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of
its fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate fair value because
quoted market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to its present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as turnover and operating
COSts.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability by the
management. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.
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(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
distribution expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles or changes in
market conditions. Management reassesses these
estimations at the balance sheet date to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Depreciation

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. Management reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives of the assets are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
Management carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of these transactions is
reconsidered periodically by taking into account all
changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for deductible temporary differences. As
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’'s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets, if any, are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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106 China Metal Resources

EBERNAERAT

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sales
of copper and related products and provision of contract
manufacturing services in the PRC.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to customers
less returns, discounts, and value added taxes and other sales
tax, and contract manufacturing income which is analysed as
follows:

EXH
ARSI B TR 1 o A K 6 AR
BRI A FBLERTS -

EERBRETEFPNEMMNIEEEER
RE - FH - BERMEMHERARE
RSLEWA - DT :

2014 2013

2014 5 20134

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFTT

Sales of recycled copper products $HE B A RE M 3,548,268 2,144,429
Sales of power transmission and HEXILEE

distribution cables 181,490 528,629

Sales of communication cables HEMEEE 104,037 250,776

Sales of scrap materials SHEREZEM B 22,524 31,177

Contract manufacturing income & REERA 2,624 3,993

3,858,943 2,959,004

One customer (2013: one customer) of the Group represents
more than 10% of the Group’s total turnover for the year ended
31 December 2014. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
turnover from the major customer amounted to RMB391,846,000
(2013: RMB304,351,000). Further details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from customers are set out in note 34(a).

HE2014F12A3NBILFE  AEE
—&((2013F : —R)BRFHEBEME
MmIEAEBBLEEEIONU L HE
2014F 12 ANBILEFEE  REEERF
B & 2 58 A A R # 391,846,000 7T (2013
£ AR#304,351,0007T) ° ARRE %
ERFHNEESETRRKRMNE—PFFIBH
A FE34(0) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by business operations. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has identified three reportable segments, namely
recycled copper products segment, power transmission and
distribution cables segment and communication cables segment.

(i)

(if)

(i)

Recycled copper products segment: use of scrap copper
and electrolytic copper for the manufacturing of recycled
copper products;

Power transmission and distribution cables segment: sales
of power transmission and distribution cables; and

Ccommunication cables segment:. manufacturing and sales
of communication cables.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit
after taxation”. To arrive at reportable segment profit, the
Group's profit is further adjusted for items not specially
attributed to individual segments, such as head office or
corporate administrative costs.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.
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108 cChina Metal Resources Utilization HEEBERFMAERAR

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 ZHBEE
(a) Segment results (Continued) (@) DEBEEZ(E)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as AREBNAEBEEAE RS K&
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management EOEBEELAENMERAER K
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of SRTHREREEN 2®H BER
segment performance for the current and prior years is set T
out below:

2014
20145
Power
transmission
Recycled and

copper  distribution Communication
products cables cables Total
BEEEM EREE BEEE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ET T AR%T T AR%T T ARET

Revenue from external customers 3k B 9ME8 & B 0 sk 3,573,416 181,490 104,037 3,858,943
Inter-segment revenue HE R 296,521 7,060 4,465 308,046
Reportable segment revenue BECrn6 3,869,937 188,550 108,502 4,166,989
Reportable segment profit AHREDEEF 249,861 20,594 23,872 294,327
Interest income FIEWA 561 17 205 783
Finance costs BT AN 52,489 1,790 2,878 57,157
Depreciation and amortisation  37& R4k 25,930 4,861 1,694 32,485

VAT refunds, government grants  $E{&%8 R 5 & BT
and subsidies B A aL 426,767 7,591 4,390 438,748
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 oHmE@E
(@) Segment results (Continued) (@) oWEEE)

2013
20134
Power
Recycled  transmission

copper and distribution - Communication

products cables cables Total
BERER KEEE BEEE Bat

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Revenue from external customers & B 9ME8 & B 0 sk 2,162,531 528,629 267,844 2,959,004
Inter-segment revenue HE KR 588,426 1,176 3,653 593,255
Reportable segment revenue BECrn6 2,750,957 529,805 271,497 3,552,259
Reportable segment profit AHREDEEF 201,313 32,725 40,792 274,830
Interest income FIEWA 1,636 11 - 1,647
Finance costs BT AN 27,226 38 452 27,716
Depreciation and amortisation  37& R4k 20,157 2,801 1,582 24,540

VAT refunds, government grants  $&{&%8 R 5 & BT
and subsidies B R A ah 272,636 4,222 2,060 278918
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 ZHBEE
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue (b) THKEFDBUSEEIERWEIR
and profit or loss

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue A s o HlE 4,166,989 3,552,259
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 445 2B Uk 25 (308,046) (593,255)
Consolidated turnover (see note 4) e kB (RWE) 3,858,943 2,959,004
Profit s F

Reportable segment profit derived from 28 B A& BN 2B F 1Y

the Group's external customers ] )2 5 2655 A 294,327 274,830
Unallocated head office and corporate RO FE4BI = E N %FHET
expenses (46,061) (29,282)

Consolidated profit for the year FAERE = 248,266 245,548
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 oEHHmE®
(c) Geographic information (c) HIBEH
The Group carried out its business operations in the PRC, no REBNPRBELS SR Bt E
separate geographical segment analysis based on the SMREEMTEHE DB E
location of assets is presented. DEAHT o
The following table sets out information about the TEREFHNBEBAREEREBHARR
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from external B INER R P R U s B i [ 2 B Y B
customers. The geographical location of customers is based B BRMEME TR TS
on the location at which the goods are delivered. 2|5 o

2014 2013
2014 F 2013 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETET

PRC R 3,832,104 2,907,115
Other countries H B 26,839 51,889
3,858,943 2,959,004

6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 6 HitlmkHEAMmFEWA
(a) Other revenue (a) EHburz=

2014 2013
2014 F 2013 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETRT

VAT refunds ERRT
— Employment of disabled staff (note (i) — f@ B%% B T (Bf#E () 7,679 13,472
— Comprehensive utilisation of — AP ER (M)

resources (note (ii) 311,578 185,742
Government grants (note (iii)) R 7 B (B & (i) 85,400 36,452
Government subsidies (note (iv)) R e B (BT EE (iv) 34,091 43,252
Interest income A B WA 1,150 1,647

439,898 280,565




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 55 30 3% P

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

Notes:

(iii)

The Group is entitled to government grants for value added tax (“VAT")
refunds in connection with the employment of disabled people under
Cai Shui [2007] No. 67 issued by the PRC State Administration of
Taxation.

The Group is entitled to government grants for refunds of 50% of the
net VAT paid/payable under the Adjustment and Improvement of VAT
Policies for Products and Labour Services Relating to Comprehensive
Utilisation of Resources (Cai Shui [2011] No. 115) jointly issued by the
PRC State Administration of Taxation and Ministry of Finance.

The amounts represent local government grants received by
operating subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC for the purpose of
providing immediate financial support to those subsidiaries for
general operating use with no future related costs. No specific
conditions are required to meet in connection with the grants.

In 2014, the Group was granted unconditional government subsidies
of RMB34,091,000 from Youxian District Finance Bureau, Mianyang
City, Sichuan Province. The subsidies were received through Sichuan
Baohe Fushan Resources Recycling Development Co., Ltd. (“Bache
Fushan”), a private company owned as to 49% by the daughters of
Mr. Yu Jiangiu, the controlling shareholder and key management
personnel of the Group. Baohe Fushan is principally engaged in the
operation and the development of an industrial park in Mianyang City,
Sichuan Province, where most of the Group's subsidiaries are located.

In 2013, the Group was granted government subsidies of
RMBA43,252,000 from Youxian District Finance Bureau, Mianyang City,
Sichuan Province in connection with meeting tax payment thresholds.
RMB33,000,000 of the subsidies were settled by offsetting against the
advances from the local government during the year ended 31
December 2013.

MR

(i)

(iif)

AEBEFEEBRBERRNEERBE
5 89 B %4 (2007167 5% 5t 1B A B2 IR A &=
BEEER (EER ] BB OBNRE
Bj o

REEFEERBEBRBERBLZ B
RIS EHNEARNARTEER
GATNAERRSBEEETBRMNRA
A (B7 £ [2011]111555% ) 45 48 7 50%
B/ A ERFENEBIEARK
FEED -

ZECHBEASER T HEERNHE
N FTURER Y 5 B R B - (E R
ZE KB AR B BN B R BY - LA
AR —REE  MARESERRIAR
B o BRSBTS & BRI

20144 - ANEEEM)I| B EB TS
Il B BB R R T RS fR B AR
#£34,091,0007T °  E BB FE B M
NEARMNELBEERAZEERAA
(MRAMEB L] AEBIZEBRBRRREEE
ABWER—BETEBREMEMLE
ZHAREBO%REZFLARFT) MK
B RFIELEZHREBNDE)IE &S
MEERAZETER - mASEHK
BRARIAIBANEZIER -

F2013 46 + AN B [ E B A0 7 P48
)14 &8 k5 TR E BT B B3R T I
T 4 Bh A B #43,252,0007C ° & =
2013 12ANAEEE ARK
33,000,000 7T Y 7 Bl 15 & B T B 3R AT
HEH o
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nbi unless otherwise.
b A B HES  HAR

6 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 6 HMWEREMBUAE)
(Continued)
(b) Other net (loss)/income (b) HfFE(&EE) WA

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETET

Net (loss)/gain on copper futures HHE S R EEBF

contracts upon settlement (B518) s (670) 2,367
Changes in fair value of copper futures $RERE & 492

contracts NEEES) (525) -
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) FIEN WS (E18) 362 (672)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand EE%% - HE R

equipment REREE (690) (1,184)
Others Hib (20) (83)

(1,543) 428
7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BiEnEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: FADEFI THHIBR A N SIBESH ¢

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETRT

(@) Finance costs (@) HEIHEA
Interest on bank loans and other HARAFANBEREEN
borrowings wholly repayable RITE R R E A&
within five years ZAIBSN 46,199 24,306
Interest on finance lease REREH S 5,403 =
Interest on loans from related parties R B BT M E R TS 458 6,270
Guarantee fees and other charges EREAREMKE 5,570 2,754
57,630 33,330
(b) Staff costs (b) BEIRA
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMEH 43,305 15,239
Contributions to defined contribution FTE HEFGR ARG B 894 50
retirement schemes 3,289 2,378
Share-based payment expenses LARR 1 AERER SR 10,365 -

56,959 17,617
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7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 7 BAn@A )

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, BIERRABLEHAREE  AEFR
the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined Fh B A T B A B 2 B | R 5 M R AR 4%
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) HNAEHZERERNAZI((2]) - B
organised by the local authorities whereby the subsidiaries are It B ARIRFNERESEREET S
required to make contributions to the Schemes based on a HEB DR EIERER - sHEIAHER
percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries for the year. @RI E - RiIEsT2 > HET2IE B
Contributions to the Schemes vest immediately. Under the BEAFA RENKNEE S NENRER - M
Schemes, retirement benefits of existing and retired employees REEBRTGEHRTI  BEXKEEME
are payable by the relevant scheme administrators and the Group fE -

has no further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

2014 2013
2014 & 20134

RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARETT

(c) Otheritems (c) HfEH
Cost of inventories* (note 21(b)) TFER A (FTsE21(0)) 3,817,158 2,828,880
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BB R EENITE
equipment 27,076 20,000
Amortisation of lease prepayments T ETET A S 1,753 884
Amortisation of intangible assets A E R 3,656 3,656
Auditor's remuneration ZEET N &
— Audit service — BZR 2,454 1,575
— Other service — HAb AR 428 -
Listing expenses* k> 14,658 22,313
Research and development costs 3 Ak X 1,623 2,751
# Cost of inventories includes RMB35,766,000 (2013: RMB21,421,000) relating to & FERARERSTIRA HEREHEHR
staff costs, depreciation and amortisation, which amount is also included in B A R %#35,766,0007T(20134F : A R #
the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 7(b) for 21,421,0007) - ZSEHRZBEMS * BH
each of these types of expenses. SEIME T A XM 7(0) BEN G EEE
A o
* The total listing expenses amounted to RMB56,888,000 (excluding L R 4% A A R ¥ 56,888,000 7T (TSR 1E
underwriting commissions). Of this amount, RMB14,658,000 (2013: BHEAS) o kSR A AR 14,658,000
RMB22,313,000) was charged to the consolidated income statement for the JC(20134F : A R #22,313,0007t ) R & =
year ended 31 December 2014. The balance of RMB19,917,000, together with 2014F12 A3 B IEFEMSRE KK IIE
the underwriting commissions were deducted from the share premium FREEM AR 19,917,000 T X B R ASE R

account. A&7 Vi (B AR A 40 RR o
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8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 HZEWHERANMEH
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) #HZEWBZRAWFHIER :
represents:

2014 2013
2014 5 2013 £

RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARETT

Current tax — PRC Corporate BEAFIE — PRI EEH
Income Tax
Provision for the year FNREE 60,660 67,650
Effect of reduction in tax rate for BAEFEMETHANTE
prior year (note (i) (B 5 (iii)) (10,344) (8,030)
50,316 59,620
Deferred tax EERE
Origination and reversal of temporary i Z= 588 A 4 L&D
differences (885) (128)
49,431 59,492

Notes: P E -

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the (i) BEREHSEREBREZHES (KB
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income BZES ) OANRAG - ANEEE
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. FERSEHS RRBRELESHMMIE

fIFTSHE ©

(ii) No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group (ii) P 7N 5 B A 75 8 A O 4 R ERZE 4
did not earn any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax BB RSB ERBER - &
during the current and prior years. The payment of dividends by Hong WERBBMEHIELEE - BFF
Kong incorporated subsidiaries are not subject to any Hong Kong 110 B 37 B BB R B R A5 AR BB A AN

withholding tax. ERBESEINR



>

116 China Metal Resources

8

EBERNAERAT

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement

represents: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Corporate Income
Tax at the statutory rate of 25%. In 2013, the Company’s subsidiaries,
Jinxin and Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd. (“Tongxin") applied for
preferential income tax treatment under the Notice on Taxation Policy
Issues concerning the In-depth Implementation of the Western
Development Strategy (Cai Shui [2011] No. 58) (“Western Development
Strategy”). In May 2013, each of the Company’s subsidiaries, Jinxin
and Tongxin obtained the approval from local tax authority and
became entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2020. Tax credits of RMB8,030,000
related to the preferential tax treatment for 2012 were recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.

In April 2014, the Company's subsidiaries, Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji
Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Xinshiji”) and Mianyang Baohe Taiyue
Communications Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Taiyue”) also obtained the
approval from local tax authority and became entitled to a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2020
under the Western Development Strategy. Tax credits of
RMB10,344,000 related to the preferential tax treatment for 2013 are
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2014.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(@)

(b)

8 HBAEWBERAMNAER @)

REWBRANWBIERE : (&)

: (#)

ANEESEKBEARBIRBEER
K 25% H NP B TSR - 2013
F o AREMBRARC BRGNS
RMEBRAARE ] RIBEERFEA
BB AR a AR K EEN
@A (81 %1 [2011] % 58 5% ) ([ 7838 K B4
BERDEAFEEMEHSFB B
2013F58 ' AAGHEAREER
MESaMEENBHHEEILE - &
201241 A1 H £ 2020412 A 31
BHIRZEE15% N EBRAERBE -
012FEERBFBENEARBER
AR 8,030,000 TR AH = 2013 F
12 A3 BIEFERER -

R2014F 48 - AARKHBRAME)I
RAFTH A R BB R F (MRt
L REGRIGZEEEEERRA
Al ([RANZR M ]) INERIS & H Bt B O #E
K BRERR A AFREERE ] R
201341 A 1H E2020512 A31 8
HEZEB15%NEBMEHRHME - 54
013 FEBEBRBHBNHBEREA
% 10,344,000 7T B 7 & 2= 2014 F 12
A3 BIEFERBERER

BBAXRREARRTEN
BRI ER

Profit before taxation AT 297,697 305,040
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  IZEEIR 7% Bl AR

calculated at the rates applicable FTRAMETER

in the tax jurisdictions concerned T B 4 ) A 46 E R 1R 61,029 65,483
Effect of non-deductible expenses R a2 454 1,173
Effect of non-taxable income IERFR U A RS2 (3,265) (2,635)
Effect of reduction in tax rate MERT AN E (10,344) (8,030)
PRC withholding tax on interest income x5 [ N & 42 ~ i

among entities within the Group BREFBUWARF ETENT 451 633
PRC withholding tax on re-investment of 4 R & & F| B E A

retained earnings to increase EIN—KHBE R T

registered capital of a subsidiary FET & AN B AR B FE A = 2,500
Others Hb 1,106 368
Actual tax expense B 49,431 59,492
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9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 78 of BIEE B E0E 622 EFHEE R T &5 Mt
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. RINFBISERBEREEOERERNA
622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong FHEBIE 161 IR BN ESES W T -

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

2014
UE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-hased
fee in kind bonuses contribution  Sub-total  payments

#ié 2HR B DV
FELE Edla Mgk 5 Mt EBRAR
(note 9(a))
(& 9(a))
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTn ARETn ARMTn ARETn

Executive directors #iEz
Mr. Yu Jiangiu fIEfEE - 2,361 825 13 3,199 - 3,199
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wison BlakxE - 1421 - 13 1,434 - 1,434
Mr. Liu Hanjiu AEnsE 136 9% 2,892 4 3,126 1,264 4,390
Mr. Huang Weiping REEE 136 14 2,892 - 3,169 m 3,380
M. Zhu Yufen RERIL 136 83 150 - 369 1,053 1422
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 408 4,100 6,759 30 11,297 2,528 13,825
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny FREBEE 136 - - - 136 - 136
s, Liu Rong AT 136 - - - 136 - 136
Mr. Pan Liansheng RERLE 136 - - - 136 - 136
408 - - - 408 - 408

816 4,100 6,759 30 11,705 2,528 14,233
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9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEMEw)
2013
N3
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Share-hased

fee inkind bonuses  contribution Sub-total Total
: RiRitE

EE )Y K 3t e EROER &zt

(note 9(a))

(PH£9(a)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT ARETR AREBTL  ARETT ARETR

Executive directors HTES

M. Yu Jiangju AR - 511 - 4 515 - 515
Mr. Kiwong Wai Sun Wilson BefRrE - 477 - 4 481 - 181
M. Liu Hanjiu Aggna - 64 - 5 69 - 9
M. Huang Weiping BRERLE - 113 - - 113 - 13
Ms. Zhu Yufen RER&T - 55 - - 55 - 5
- 120 - 13 1283 - 128

Independent non-executive BukHTES

directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny SERELE = = - - - - _
M. Liu Rong Rt = - - - _ _ _
Mr. Pan Linsheng EEkEE = = - - - _ _




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)(ii).
The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note
31.

Mr. Yu Jiangiu received total remuneration of RMB1,033,000
from Gushan Environmental Energy Limited (“Gushan”), the
holding company of Engen before the Corporate
Reorganisation, in his capacity as principal executive officer
of Gushan for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson received total remuneration of
RMB966,000 from Gushan in his capacity as president of
Gushan for the year ended 31 December 2013.

In connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange, Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Ms. Liu Rong
and Mr. Pan Liansheng have been appointed as the
Company’s independent non-executive directors effective
from 13 August 2013.

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ZHZHEI AN RESE)

ZEHEEEEEREREN G
BE - ZEBRENEEDREN
H20)) T A EE B BURGD B
EMONRR SO ST B2 -
ZEEDANENFB(BEEEL
BRENEIEGRREE) AW
31 EE -

HE2013F12A31BIEEE - &
BMAEENBIERHZIRBERE
Baal([Ga2])  ReESEHRAR
SHERAR) BRITEEIEN S
B AETRREGMEREARE
1,033,000 7T, °

HE2013F 128318 IEFE B
BEEEENBIEALTERENY
7D A A2 W BN e RE A R
966,000 7T °

RAT RO RAT BT it
LA BIR LT RIEEB L
HR2013FE8 A 13HELZEAKRRD
AIBMIENITES
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10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2013:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one
(2013: two) individuals are as follows:

10 RSHHMAL
BEBEHMALTEDELE (20134 « 3
EVEE  HFMRMEORE - K15
(20134 : 248) ALHH BN BENT -

2014 2013
2014 5 2013 £

RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments < & E A 3R B 101 514
Discretionary bonuses BISFEAL 220 =
Share-based payments AR 15 B EERER 3R 1,598 =
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIE SR 32 3

1,951 522

The above individuals" emoluments are within the following band:

A EAL R FIA T EE -

2014 2013

2014 & 2013 £

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T = 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 2,500,000 7 7T 1 =

11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB44,608,000 (2013:
RMB23,823,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

11 ARFEsRREART

ARAEBERREGGEE RN EEEE
A R #44,608,0007T (20134F : A R #
23,823,0007T) * Bt ARR A IR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB248,513,000 (2013: RMB245,548,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year. For the purpose of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share, the number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation reflected (i) the effects of the share
sub-division of Engen in February 2013; (ii) share exchange
in connection with the Corporate Reorganisation in March
2013 and (iii) the capitalisation issue which took place on 21
February 2014 in connection with the listing of the
Company’s shares on a retrospective basis as if the events
had occurred on 1 January 2013.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 7z T4 %5 A% 58 14 4 1l
of the Company (RMB'000) (AR¥ETFIT)

Issued ordinary shares at the beginning ~ FHI8I 2 31T E @A

of the year

Effect of share sub-division of Engenin 7201342 A#iH B2 R M A
February 2013 (note 30(c)(i)) 2 (M £ 30(C)())

Effect of share options exercised TR E’J?ﬁ’s
(note 30(c)(ii)) (B3E30(C)(i))

Effect of issue of new shares under the 124 ‘ﬁ/ﬂ’&ﬁaﬁ%ﬁf% LTI (0 8
IPO (note 30(c)(iv)) S22 (FFE30(C)(iv))

Effect of exercise of the over-allotment  {T{FHBEEACIRIEH 2
option (note 30(c)(iv)) (Fft3E30(0)(Iv))

Effect of share exchange in connection i EEHESHRNHNTE

with the Corporate Reorganisation (B EE30(C)(i))
(note 30(c)(i))

Effect of capitalisation issue BARLEITHR 2
(note 30(c)(iii)) (B3 30(c) (i)

Weighted average number of ordinary BT L AR INETIEE
shares in issue

53))

58
i
B

Basic earnings per share (RMB) REXZF(ARET)

(B ZHZHEI AN RESE)

BRERBF TIREAR G SR
B JE {1k &m A A R ¥ 248,513,000 7T
(20134 = AR#%245548,0007T) &
FARNE BT LR INETIIEE
fMmaEr&E o wt M’_Hx%l‘&%ﬁfﬁﬂ
FMmE FEMANTEEREE R
BT ()R 2013F 2 A B &R DI
(i) R 20134F 3 A Z (= 48 M i
LA K (i A AR Bl B3 7R 2014 £ 2 A
218 ERETHE N7 (R
BWEE) EESHBOER
2013F 1 H 1 HEEA&LEAE -

248,513 245,548
11,238,000 10,225
= 1,012,275

= 210,926
451,645,212 =
5,477,896 =
468,361,108 1,233,426
= 9,202,500

1,562,082,000 1,450,593,714

2,030,443,108 1,461,029,640

0.12 0.17
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
share for both years as all potentially dilutive potential
ordinary shares were anti-dilutive.

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 BRENE)

(b) #F
BRETRNERRABLAEEE
BETERmARRITEIING B
ZIEFHHEE - REEMESF
BEA - SRESANERNERE
BN FASMEEE#ENET
TR AREEER -

13 Y% BERRE

The Group A&
Furniture,
Plantand fittings and Motor Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BE %ER
ERY RBEREES e RE EEIR -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥Tn AR®Tr ARETR ARETn AR%Txn
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1 818 174,752 135,736 4,324 4,845 115,369 435,026
Additions E
—through business —BROEAM
combinations - - - - 79 79
—others —ffp 21,222 31,942 670 1,012 127,590 182,436
Transfers &% 88,327 52,958 - - (141,285) -
Disposals RE = (1,109) (5) (548) - (1,662)
7 7A7t7371ipqcieirr]t{eir 2014 - 3’3201 4@12 H31E| 7777777 284,301 219,527 4,989 5,309 101,753 615,879
Accumulated depreciation;  2itiE
At 1 January 2014 201451818 11,553 15,441 763 2,563 - 30,320
Charge for the year FRAk 9,358 15,898 798 1,022 - 27,076
Written back on disposals RERED - (373) (1) (451) - (825)
ANDember2  RAMENANE w9 0% S0 s - S
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2014 R20UE128318 263,390 188,561 3,429 2,175 101,753 559,308
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The Group (Continued)

Plant and
Buildings ~ machinery

BEY  EEREE
RMBOD  RMB'000

13 V¥ - BERKE#
REE (F)

Furniture,
fittings and Motor  Construction
equipment vehicles i progress Total
KR RER
B "E EEIRE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR

ARETT  ARMTR ARETT ARETR

Cost; A
At 1 January 2013 R2013%1A18 53,188 67,199 951 4,670 162,030 283,038
Additions NE
—through business —BBROEAH
combinations - - - - - -
— others —Hft 6,608 8179 3,450 29 139,587 158,120
Transfers #Y 114,956 71,292 - - (186,248) -
Net decrease arising from sales ~ HE&E R &M
and leaseback transaction EEZRD - (9,338) - - - (9,338)
Disposals RE = (1,59) (77) (121) - (1,794)
(At3iDecember2013  R0WBERANA Az 1%5% o A o3 AN
Accumulated depreciation:  Zii7E
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1A18 4,302 8,887 427 1,573 - 15,189
Charge for the year ERR 7,251 11,320 39 1,035 - 20,000
Written back on sales and FHEREAEER SEE
leasehack transaction = 4,294) = = = 4,294)
Written back on disposals I B R - (472) (58) (45) - (575)
 A31December2013  RWBERANA nss [l D O .. I - 030
Net book value: FHFE:
At 31 December 2013 2013128318 163,199 120,295 3,561 2,282 115,369 404,706

(@)  Allof the Group’s property, plant and equipment are located
in the PRC. At 31 December 2014, property, plant and
equipment with net book value of RMB176,328,000 (2013:
RMB127,688,000) were pledged for certain banking facilities
granted to the Group (see note 28(b)).

@ AEBEMAEYE - BEEZEY
IR E - R2014512 8318 -
BR TR (E A A R 176,328,000 70
(20134 : AR 127,688,0007T) HY
ME  BELREERETAER
WETHRITEEFEDER(EHME
28(h)) °
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13 Y% - BER®E &)

(b) At 31 December 2014, the Group has yet to obtain property (b) 2014F12A318 » K& B i K it
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an BRMEE(EA2%E A R ¥ 134,406,000 7T
aggregate net book value of RMB134,406,000 (2013: (20134 : AR 28,469,0007T ) &Y
RMB28,469,000). The amount of RMB134,406,000 (2013: ETEEYRERET - N20144F
RMB28,469,000) as at 31 December 2014 mainly 12 A 31 H&y£ 58 A K% 134,406,000
represented Jinxin's and Baohe Xinshiji's buildings with net J0(20134F : A R # 28,469,0007T )
book values of RMB25,869,000 (2013: RMB27,743,000) and FERSERRMFELHEED
RMB97,451,000 (2013: RMB Nil) respectively. The directors BWE@mEEY N AARK
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group owned 25,869,0007T (20134 : A R ¥&
the beneficial title to these buildings as at 31 December 27,743,0007T) K A & # 97,451,000
2014 and 2013. (20135 : ARBZ L) - "AF]

EEZRR/KREEN2014F %2013
FRANAHEBEZEEEYNER

14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 14 AEFRAMAR
The Group

FRHE
2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TRE ARBTT

Cost: AR :

At 1 January ®n1A18 88,631 9,708
Additions NE - 78,923
AU Deeember  wiZAEE ST SRS

Accumulated amortisation: R #E

At 1 January R1A1H 1,260 376

Charge for the year FAHR 1,753 884
_AtstDecember . RUASNE Rl ... 1260

Net book value: BRIENFE :

At 31 December M®12A318 85,618 87,371
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nbi unless otherwise.
b A B HES  HAR

14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 14 HERNSR @)
The lease prepayments represent costs of the land use rights in MERNFIER B R TR L (AR5
respect of land located in the PRC, on which the Group built its B7EE M i A ER R EEY)
production premises and buildings. The land use rights expire in Rt (5 PR A AR AN o -t {5 B A8 7R 2056
2056 to 2063. F 2 2063 FHEIH o
At 31 December 2014, land use rights with an aggregate carrying R2014%F 12 A31H > EEEAEAAR
amount of RMB38,269,000 (2013: RMB35,071,000) were pledged #38,269,0007T (20134E : A R ¥
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 28(b)). 35,071,0007T ) K L fF AR IR T A
SENETRITGEEELER(RHME
28(h)) °
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RMBARKNRE

The Company
AATE
2014 2013

2014 F 2013 £
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Unlisted shares, at cost FE LTI - RBAS 298,322 298,322
At 31 December 2014, the Company had direct or indirect R2014512 A31 8 » AR BRI B
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private NEIEE EE S EERER  ZENB AT
companies: HAEFART :

Place of Particulars of  Attributable equity
incorporation/ issued and interest held by the
Name of company establishment paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BRTRENR
NCIES TEMBSL, /B L B EXFHE EERQRMAERE 2 FEEE
Direct Indirect
H#E i
Engen Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands United States dollars 100% - Investment holding
("BVI") ("US$") 10,225
BEREBRAR EBRTHE 10,225 7T REZR
((RBRLEE])

True Excel Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding

REERERAT Bk 1REBR REER

Alpha Legend Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding

BERERARAF BE 1TREBK REEKR
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

DAER

Alpha Business Investments Limited
GEREBRRAR

Alpha Universe Group Limited
BHEEARLA

Deda Holdings Limited
EEERERA

Mianyang Jinxin Copper Co., Ltd.*

REERAEXERAR

Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co.,
Ltd.("Xiangbei")*

HERERLRXERAA
(e ))

Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd.*

BERREXERAA

Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable
Co., Ltd.*

POl R B A R A R

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

ML, A B

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
BB

BVI

RERIEE

The PRC

HE

The PRC

HE

The PRC

FE

The PRC

HE

Particulars of
issued and
paid-up capital
BRTRENR
EAHE

1 ordinary share
1 iR R

1 ordinary share
TRE AR

HK$1
187

Renminbi (‘RMB”)
100,000,000

ARB(TARE])
100,000,000 7

RMB80,000,000

AR%
80,000,000 7¢

RMB50,000,000

ARE

50,000,000t

RMB 150,000,000

AR%
150,000,000 7

Attributable equity
interest held by the
Company
BEARA R fiRE

Direct Indirect

HE %
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

15 RMTBABIMNKRE @)

Principal activities

FEEK

Investment holding
REZRK

Inactive
BEmE

Inactive
TEE%

Recycling of scrap copper for
the manufacturing of
recycled copper products

Bl EEBERER
FT R RE

Processing of scrap copper
and electrolytic copper for
the manufacturing of
copper related products

NI AEEFIERER
FiT R B8 8 R E AR 5

Recycling of scrap copper for
the manufacturing of
recycled copper products

B AEERERER
Fft PR B8 8

Manufacture and sale of
power transmission and
distribution cables

KEREEALEE
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15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15 RBLATMNRE &)
Place of Particulars of  Attributable equity
incorporation/ issued and interest held by the
Name of company establishment paid-up capital Company Principal activities
ERTRENK
NGRS TEMRBSL, B Lt B EXFHE EERQFMABRE 2 FEEE
Direct Indirect
HE M
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue The PRC RMB&0,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Communications Cable Co., Ltd.* communication cables
BERNZUAEREFRAR F ARE EERHEEREER
80,000,000 7T
Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Metal The PRC RMB30,000,000 = 65%  Manufacturing and sale of
Materials Co., Ltd. ("Jin Xunhuan") * anodic copper and trading
of electrolytic copper (not
yet commenced
operations)
BLeRREBMEERAR HE ARE EENHEEG RN
(Te@R]) 30,000,000 7 EETHIA
(MAERER)
* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official names * RNAHEBLEBEHRSE - ZFARNE

of these companies are in Chinese. 77 BB AR SR -
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 EBFEE
Customer relationships EFRE&

The Group
rEE
2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Cost: AR :

_At1lanuaryand 31December  R1ATEERLZANNE 10,968 10968

Accumulated amortisation: Sy

At 1 January W1A1H 3,656 -

Charge for the year FAHBR 3,656 3,656
_At31December ~  W12A¥A 7812 . Gt

Net book value: BREEE :

At 31 December R12H31H 3,656 7,312
Intangible assets represent customer relationships acquired by EREEREANS B IE R T L R
the Group in connection with the acquisitions of Baohe Xinshiji RFNZH (P 20124F 12 A 31 B 5ehk) Ffg
and Baohe Taiyue completed on 31 December 2012. The SHEPHRE - FRANEHE HA LS
amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative W RAm [1TREAXZ] -

expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
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17 GOODWILL 17 &&

The Group
AEH
2014 2013
2014 5 2013 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT

Cost and carrying amounts: RAEABETEE :

At 1 January and 31 December R1A1BK12A31H 39,308 39,308
Impairment tests for cash-generating units BEeHENBESEL SN IHE DR
containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUS) HENSRTAEE TIHNRESELSE
as follows: fi7 :

2014 2013
2014 & 2013 £

RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT

Jinxin fiox 16,081 16,081
Xiangbei yjiple 22,766 22,766
Baohe Xinshiji RINFTHAD 213 213
Baohe Taiyue RN ZR 248 248

39,308 39,308




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

The recoverable amount of the CGUSs is determined based on
value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. The growth
rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using pre-tax discount rates of 15% (2013: 15%) at 31
December 2014. Key assumptions used for the value in use
calculations are the gross margins, growth rates and the
availability of VAT refunds. Management determined the budgeted
gross margins and growth rates based on past performance and
its expectation for market development. When preparing the
financial budgets, management assumed that there would be no
changes to the existing government policies in respect of the VAT
refunds in connection with the employment of disabled staff and
under the Policies for Products Generated from Comprehensive
Utilisation of Resources (see note 6(a)). No other government
grants are assumed to be received in the value in use
calculations.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs based on the value-in-use
calculations is higher than its carrying amount as at 31 December
2014 and 2013. Accordingly, no impairment loss on goodwill has
been recognised in the consolidated income statement.

R EEBEMNMNAT DS EE2ENES
BETEEXNETE - ZSHEEXNFEAD
WEEEZENAFRYEEZEFRNIR
EHETEE - BBRFHZIRERETIE
AT RREY - MERENBRIACES
B REMEEBNRATERE - B
2014F12A31H - BERENFER A
15% (2013 4F : 15%) BBt A AR IR FR AL TR o
FREBETEEANETERIEBERNE
Mg RERIGEFRBAAITIE - B2
[E 122 FR B 11 3R 3R I H ¥ T 35 35 & /9 78 A7
ETHEEFNEREREK - SR ETE
i BEERLAEAREE THBEN
AR ERErE M AEEEMBER (RME
6(a)) T B3 E B R T &9 38 A BT BUR A
mEE) o R TFUERAEERTERNK
XA E AL BT A B o

R20144F 2013512 A31H » IR B {E
AEEFEEXNGSHNASEELEEND
el EEREREE - MUtk - BEE
RAERERANEREENRERE -
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18 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 18 BIEHFER

The Group
AEH

2014 2013
2014 5 2013 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETTT
Deposits with guarantee companies RIERATBFR 7,500 2,500
Deposits with banks RERTTHITF 5K 13,022 26,711
Deposits with lessors of finance leases REERE R F/FR 5,320 4,800
Deposits with securities broker RBEHF LML TR 10,663 -
Deposit with other company REM A THFER 19,600 -
56,105 34,011

Represented by: B :
Current BNER 43,285 27,711
Non-current JEBNER 12,820 6,300
56,105 34,011

Pledged deposits were placed with guarantee companies for the
purpose of obtaining bank loans of RMB40,000,000 (2013:
RMB20,000,000), which were guaranteed by the guarantee
companies.

Pledged deposits with banks were mainly placed as security for
bills payable of the Group (see note 26(b)).

Pledged deposit of RMB5,320,000 (2013: RMB4,800,000) was
placed as security for the obligations under finance leases as at
31 December 2014.

Pledged deposits with securities broker were pledged as deposits
for outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December 2014.

Pledged deposit of RMB19,600,000 was paid to a third party for
the purpose of obtaining bank loans of RMB70,000,000, which
were secured by the property, plant and equipment of that third

party.

FESRITE K AR #40,000,0007T(2013
2 : AR 20,000,0007%) i AR A
FHEMERER - ARRTERAERA
AR -

RIBITHEERFREIEZRAAKEN
N R B FRIERR R (RHEE26(0))

201412 318 - A B # 5,320,000
7t (20134 : AR #4,800,0007T) K 2 1K
HEARERBERE THE TFERER
e

R2014F12A31H  REFLLHNDIE
RERERRIHNRBE S WEME
RER o

AR #19,600,000 T8I B HEAFERE X fF
FE=ZF UBREBRITERARK
70,000,0007C * HBRZBE=THWE -
TGS K S A EHE AR o
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19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HMEREBEE

2014 2013
2014 & 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Prepayments for property, plant and equipment % - BE R BN

and land use rights = 5 FARE R TR X 31,178 48,834
Deferred differences arising froma salesand  E# MBI ZHELR
leaseback transaction (Note) EEER () 2,956 4,000
34,134 52,834
Note: Deferred differences arising from a sales and leaseback transaction represent Mizr: ERMARXSEANETESEARNAER
the deficit of sale proceeds over the net book value of the assets disposed of EMEAHAERSERE Y EEENRER
under the sales and leaseback transaction which resulted in a finance lease. BERAEEESFEFEANER - Fi=5
The differences are deferred and amortised as adjustments to the AU BENENAREEENTE AR
depreciation of the assets over their estimated useful lives. FEHIN T LURIE R o
20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 KREEEARRANMAER
BALANCE SHEET
(@) current taxation in the consolidated balance () REEERBEXRANWINBMHER
sheet represents: 15

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

At 1 January ®1A1H 28,317 23,863
Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax & j)Hh B 1 22 7 15 75 78 5

for the year 60,660 67,650
Reduction in tax rate for prior year BEFEMNHETH (10,344) (8,030)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BB EER (58,645) (65,166)

At 31 December M12A318 19,988 28,317
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20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 MEEEEBRANABH®
BALANCE SHEET (continued)
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised (b) ERBELERIE (EE) AE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities REAEEABRPEANELTT
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the B(EE) /BENHEKI D RREF
movements during the year are as follows: NEZB T -

Depreciation/
amortisation
allowances in
excess of the
related
depreciation/ Provisions
amortisation and accruals

itk =1

wEHE

#eHEEm

e
HeERE st
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January 2013 R2013F 1418 2,468 (756) 1,712
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZE (72) (56) (128)
At 31 December 2013 R 2013F 12 A31H 2,396 (812) 1,584
At 1 January 2014 R2014F 1818 2,396 (812) 1,584

Charged/(credited) to mer (Gt A) B

profit or loss 512 (1,397) (885)
At 31 December 2014 R2014512 H31 H 2,908 (2,209) 699

2014 2013
2014 & 2013 %

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT

Reconciliation to the consolidated Z4EEABRAR
balance sheet:

Net deferred tax assets recognised in =~ REE B BERERD

the balance sheet FRIERIBEE (774) (145)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in A& &= & E&R R
the balance sheet FRLERIBEEE 1,473 1,729

699 1,584
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20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 MEEEEBRANABH®
BALANCE SHEET (continued)
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) RERNELEHREEE
At 31 December 2014, temporary differences relating to the R2014F12A31H BEXREEH
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries B B B A B B ok 5 B ik A1) 5 S Y
amounted to RMB688,008,000 (2013: RMB419,654,000). No e B = %8 A A K % 688,008,000 7T
deferred tax liabilities in respect of these undistributed (20134 : AR ¥419,654,0007T) °
profits have been recognised as the Company controls the 18F 4 o 277 25 5k 5 it i K| e R R S F
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been BEE BERE2AD T ZEN
determined that these profits will not be distributed in the BARIMKREHE - BEARAE
foreseeable future. ERAEZERMNETEEAERR
RIRAIE
21 INVENTORIES 21 FE
(@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (@) HMEEEEBRANEEERRE:
comprise:

The Group

FRHE
2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

Raw materials R 239,450 64,201
Work in progress TR 32,146 13,597
Finished goods R T 75,292 24,256
Goods in transit T8 2 &m 114,811 38,106
461,699 140,160
At 31 December 2014, inventories of RMB57,011,000 (2013: R2014F12HA31H €8 AAR
RMB78,612,000) were pledged for banking facilities granted ¥ 57,011,000 70 (20134 : A R #&
to the Group (see note 28(b)). 78,612,0007C) WIF EEMIKX TR S

B RTTEE (RMEE28(0)) fEhE
# o



Annu%ort 2014 » 20144 F 4R

fr 5= B At A S

21 INVENTORIES (continued) 21 #& )
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRABIUFTAGZERER
recognised as an expense and included in the HNEESEIFTOT :

consolidated income statement is as follows:

2014 2013
2014 % 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFIT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENEEE 3,812,215 2,828,880
Write down of inventories WoRFEE 4,943 -
3,817,158 2,828,880
22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 B RHMEBWKIE

The Group The Company
EN- b N
2014 2013 2014 2013

2014 20134 2014 F 20134
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR AR®TT ARETR AR%TR

Trade debtors and bills receivable BoRT N EWEE 747,122 677,102 - -
Advance payments to suppliers BRI 141,993 74,755 - -
Government grants receivable PR T 8 B 108,540 85,953 - -
Other deposits, prepayments and Hiize « AR
receivables FEU R IE 24,174 10,856 228 -
1,021,829 848,666 228 -
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FEB S REMBURRERRR —FA
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. W ek iER R o
(a) At 31 December 2014, government grants receivable of (a) M2014F 128318 @8BAAR
RMB35,015,000 (2013: RMB12,766,000) was pledged for #35,015,0007C(2013F : A R ¥
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 12,766,000 7T ) &Y & W T 66 Bh 2 3t
28(D)). BETAEENE TRITEEELE

(R HEE28(0)) ©



»

136 China Metal Resources Utilization HEEBERFMAERAR

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22 ESRHMBUWRIE R
(b) Trade debtors and bills receivable included amounts due (h) E SR ENZE R e U R i
from related parties as follows: FHRBENOT :

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Guangzhou Taiyue Communications BMNmEBBERERR AR

Cable Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Taiyue”)  ([E&MZ=#]) 8,104 5,958
Sichuan Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. o)l 3t AL AR A PR A R
(“Sichuan Xinshiji”) (M)l 42 1) = 35,736
8,104 41,694
(c) Ageing analysis (c) ERERZHT
At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade REZEB - BHEERARERZEED
debtors and bills receivable, based on transaction date is, as ARECOMT (AR 5 B ER/REE) AT -
follows:

2014 2013
2014 & 2013 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT

Within 30 days 30RA 296,703 312,971
31 to 60 days 312 60K 161,238 270,981
61 to 180 days 612180~ 201,761 91,871
Over 180 days i@ 180 X 87,420 1,279
747,122 677,102
Trade debtors and bills receivable are normally due within BSERANRERERE —RNZHB
90 days from the date of transaction. Further details of the HEET OO RAEIE - REEMEE

Group's credit policy are set out in note 34(a). BURA#E — S e BRI 3 34() ©
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22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

22 EFREMEWFEIE#)
d) YTERENESEIREKE

B
A MERI A RE AR ENE S
REEREBROBRE DT

2014 2013
2014 & 2013 %

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETRT

Curent & 208479 236153
Less than 30 days past due BmHD 30K 220,081 262,744
31 to 60 days past due WEI31 R 60K 91,202 164,050
61 to 180 days past due #HEI61 180K 200,522 14,006
Over 180 days past due 11 HAER 8 180 K 26,838 149

_Amountspastdue  @fyxsm 538643 . 440,949

747,122 677,102

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. No impairment loss
on trade debtors and bills receivable was made during the
current and prior years.

R 380 HA R AR IR ML #O KUK TR SR T B
W BB RCSFOAEBE B

B 38 B8 ) AROR (B RO FE U SR IR B A
AEERFRIFBELENETE
VEFEH - REBELR  BE
B RSB AT F AR R (E B
H ARGEEERYELRENE
b MABARDEER SR 28K
B - REBWERZSERITHE
mEfm  MERAFREEF
EHEREMNEZRANEREED
HEEE
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23 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED PARTIES

(a)

(b)

Amounts due from/to related parties

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand at 31 December
2013.

The amounts due from/to related parties were settled after
the successful listing of the Company'’s shares on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21
February 2014.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

Amount due to a director
The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

24 LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES

23 PR FEAY AN TR

(@)

(b)

FEUL FE {5 BB 5 718
M2013%E12 8318 - fEU /et
RAl 5 0B A EEE - TE R KA
BRERIEE -

M2014F2 8218 + ARAGRMDIE
BEBMARIMER AR ERKY
Eg - YRR T IR
PR -

FEUT KT B A B89 R I8 A KA
RENBRBEREE -

BN —ESHNFIR
EN—NEFOFASERR 2
BRARERER -

24 REBRBLNER

2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Loans from Gushan RESEZHER 0} = 79,915
Loan from Silver Harvest Holdings REEIRZERERAFH
Limited =& (ii) - 5,433
- 84,948
Notes: BEE -

(ii)

At 31 December 2013, the loans from Gushan are unsecured, interest bearing
at 6.56% per annum and repayable within one year. The loan was repaid in
2014.

Silver Harvest Holdings Limited (“Silver Harvest”) is controlled by Mr. Liu
Hanjiu, a key management personnel of the Company. At 31 December 2013,
the loan from Silver Harvest is unsecured, interest bearing at 6.06% per
annum and repayable within one year. The loan was repaid in 2014.

(ii)

RELHZHERBEERT - K20135F12 A31
BIRERME656% (T8 URBAR—FRE
B ZEREN2014FEE -

YIRERERAR((LR)BHARREEE
BABRZERE ARG - RELRNER A
S - R 2013412 A 31 B R FE F R 6.06%
R UREAR—FAEE - ZEXER
2014 F{E3E -



25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(@) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

Annu%ort 2014 « 2014F 53R 139

balance sheet and consolidated cash flow
statement represent:

25 ReRRESEEHER

(a) REEEEBERERGEEHER
EXANBEERBEESEEER

=

The Group The Company
REE KT

2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 2014 & 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR¥TR ARETR
Deposits with banks RIRTTITER 68,000 = - =
Cash at bank and in hand ROGTHEFERS 77,765 78,615 16,577 453
Cash and cash equivalents BERREEEIER 145,765 78,615 16,577 453

At 31 December 2014, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group in the amount of RMB127,479,000 (2013:
RMB77,887,000) are denominated in RMB and are deposited
in banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

R2014F 128318 "NEBE £ %
A A B #127,479,000 7T (2013 4 :
AR#77887,0007C) WIS RIE L
ZEEBTUAARKEE - WERK
FERBEMRT AR AR
HBHEE  SLEHFRASH
] I 7 78 470 9 A B8 SINE 5 1) 3R Rl K
FRBIFTARR ©
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 25 RekBRELEEER @)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BARFELEFRESEESNY
generated from operations: BE :

2014 2013
2014 F 20134

RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Profit before taxation TR F 297,697 305,040
Adjustments for: KLATIER % -
Finance costs B 75 R AN 7(a) 57,630 33,330
Share-based compensation LARR {7 2= EHEH f (& 7(b) 10,365 -
Depreciation e 7(c) 27,076 20,000
Deferred expense TR 1,044 -
Amortisation of lease prepayments 8 & FE 1< 3R ##E 5 7(c) 1,753 884
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E R 7(c) 3,656 3,656
Interest income F 2 A 6(a) (1,150) (1,647)
Loss on disposal of property, BEVE - HEKR
plant and equipment FERESE 6(b) 690 1,184
Exchange differences ERZER 4,528 1,510
Write down of inventories GFEMR 4,943 -
Changes in working capital: EEEREY
Increase in inventories &N (326,482) (26,436)
Increase in trade and other B 5 R EH A FEUGRIBIE N
receivables (173,142) (382,550)
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 REARENFIE
and other payables CRA),/#Emn (32,472) 140,878
Cash (used in)/generated from HE(FA) FisHe

operations (123,864) 95,849
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26 ESRHEMEMNTIE
The Group The Company
AES PN

2014 2013 2014 2013

2014 % 20134 2014 F 20134

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREBTRT ARETT AR¥TR ARETT

Trade payables B S ENRIA 10,494 166,706 - -

Bills payable ADES 25,800 26,400 - =

Receipts in advance FBUFRIE 23,025 22,758 - -
Accrued expenses and HitnE B R ETER

other payables 279,897 204,807 6,532 3,907

339,216 420,671 6,532 3,907

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand.

(a) Trade payables included amount due to a related party as
follows:

Sichuan Xinshiji Ul 42

PBEE S REMBNFRERAR —FR
XITHEER DA - HBRBRERE -

(a) EPRAHESEA TR BELS
B -

The Group
ES 4
2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETT

2,517 =

Sichuan Xinshiji is a private company which is 19.5% owned
by Mr. Chen Hai, a key management personnel and a
beneficial minority shareholder of the Company who has de
facto control of the board of directors of Sichuan Xinshiji.

(b) Bills payable are normally issued with a maturity of not more
than six months.

At 31 December 2014, bills payable were secured by
pledged deposits of RMB12,900,000 (2013: RMB26,606,000)
placed with banks (see note 28).

ML RARARERERAS
RESZLBEBRRREBEEEHESR
19.5% AL E 2 E - KB
MUELNESSHAELRGE -

(b) ENZEZENIHE-—RTEBEN
@A -

R2014%512 A318 » BRI Z#H H
GBRETHERFERARE
12,900,000 7T (20134E : A B #&
26,606,000 7T) {EFER (R HIFE28) ©
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26 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 26 ESRHMENRE@)
(c) At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis (c) REEH EZREMENSR
of the trade and bills payable, based on EHNWERES>M(UARXRZBHAE
transaction date, is as follows: E)VIT :

The Group
REH
2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARKBTET

Within 30 days 30XA 4,386 102,572
3110 60 days 31EOKR 1,280 35,395
61t0 180 days 61%= 180K 27,615 33,739
Over 180 days i@ 180 X 3,013 21,400
36,294 193,106
(d) An analysis of accrued expenses and other (d) EiFZREMESRENS
payables is analysed as follows: M

The Group The Company
PN | PN
2014 2013 2014 2013

2014 F 20134 2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT AR%¥TR ARETT

Salaries, wages, bonus and e I8 4

other accrued benefits K E A ERTHRF 5,300 3977 3,870 8
Payables for the purchase of ~ BB - BER

property, plant and equipment  SREMER SE

and intangible assets R FE 5008 41,513 78,331 - -
Payables for land use rights 1 (5 PR FE A F0R = 11,595 - -
VAT payable FErTEETR 163,342 63,138 = =
Unearned government grants ~ JBUREY BT 7 B) 21,460 19,860 - -
Derivative financial instruments  $74€ g T A 525 - - -
Other taxes payable HAih IR 24,846 18,414 - -
Others Hitb 22,911 9,492 2,662 3,899
279,897 204,807 6,532 3,907

At 31 December 2013, payables for land use rights of R2014F12 A31H - £ i F B #E

RMB11,595,000 were repayable to Baohe Fushan within one B FE {5 3R I8 A R % 11,595,000 7T 28

year. R—FAEETERMEIL °
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27 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27 MMEHETNHWER
At 31 December 2014, the Group had obligations under finance R2014F 128318 ' XEBHEATE
leases repayable as follows: BEREHETHEMT:

The Group
REE
2014 2013
2014 & 20134
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE REHE RIEHEE RIEHEE
MIEMNRE I FIARIRE FIRMBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AR¥TR AREFT ARBFT

Withintyear  1®AM L] et s ahsr
After 1year but within 2 years ~ 14E7&{B 24X 14,309 15,986 12,000 15,398
After 2 years but within 5 years 2 E/&/B5F & 21,718 26,635 36,000 40,222

e 6,027 etz a8 3620

52,498 60,297 60,000 70,807
Less: total future interest B R B e
expenses (7,799) (10,807)

Present value of finance lease  BIEAHEEFHIRE

obligations 52,498 60,000
On 27 December 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with R2013F 12 A278 ' AEEE—HHEE
a leasing company to sell certain of the Group’s plant and RAIRE— D ABAFHNERER WE
equipment to the leasing company at RMB60,000,000 and LAA R ¥ 60,000,000 o M2 E R A HE
leaseback the plant and equipment for a five year period. The AEEETHE k& E%BHERDBZER
Group has the option to purchase the plant and equipment at a EREE e NEEHER  AEEEHERE
nominal price of RMB10,000 at the end of the lease period. NEZEBAREI10,000TEEZERE

R -
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27 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27 MEHEETHEE®

(Continued)

On 23 January 2014 and 27 February 2014, the Group entered into 201451238 k201442 H278 -
agreements with a leasing company to sell certain of Group’s AEEE-—HHEERAREIAH =K
plant and equipment to the leasing company at a total of E%ERBZE - LA HE ARES5,500,000
RMB5,500,000 and leaseback the plant and equipment for a three TTRAZHAERNRHEREERE THE K
year period. The Group has the option to purchase the plant and HEEBHLDZERE L&E  RNEE
equipment at a nominal price of nil at the end of the leasing R AEEERREUNSTSZREERE
period. ZEWE N

At 31 December 2014, the net book value of plant and equipment MR20146 12318 - REREHEREF
under finance leases included in property, plant and equipment B - BERRERDFEREARE
amounted to RMB61,655,000 (2013: RMB60,000,000). 61,655,0007T (20134 : AR ¥ 60,000,000

kiok/ E N S

28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28 MITERRHMMERK
(@) At 31 December 2014, the analysis of the (@ M2014%12A8318: BHW
carrying amount of borrowings is as follows: BREESFOT -

The Group
AEEH
2014 2013

2014 § 2013 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT

Bank loans IRITE

— secured — BER 313,970 207,380

— unsecured — EYE(R 20,000 60,000
333,970 267,380

Entrusted loans R ER

— secured —BER 300,000 =

— unsecured — EER 56,700 90,500
356,700 90,500

Other borrowings HEMERR

— unsecured — EER = 66,494
690,670 424,374

Represented by: Bp :

Current BN HA 390,670 304,374

Non-current JERNER 300,000 120,000

690,670 424,374
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28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28 RITERRHEMER @)
(Continued)
(b) The amounts of banking facilities and the (b) R2014%E12B31A BT E
utilisation at 31 December 2014 are set out as EERFEABRERTX :
follows:

The Group

ZS 3L
2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRT ARETTT

Banking facilities available ATARITIEERE
— secured —BER 351,270 253,780
— unsecured — IR 20,000 60,000
371,270 313,780
Amounts utilised EBANE
— bills payable — EREE 25,800 26,400
— bank loans — RITER 333,970 267,380
359,770 293,780
There are cross default provisions in certain banking ETHRTEEENER XELOK
facilities, the default on a loan by the Group would then X AEEER—BEEZESEM
cause a default on other loans which have cross default ERMBRZNELOBRXHEMER

provisions.
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28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28 SBITERRHEHMER @)

(Continued)

(b) The amounts of banking facilities and the (b) R2014%F12A31BHNRTE
utilisation at 31 December 2014 are set out as BEREABRENTX : (&)
follows: (Continued)

The banking facilities were secured by the following assets: EHEIRRITRERRUATEERR

The Group
rEH
2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment W% - B &R A (P 13(0)
(note 13(a)) 176,328 127,688
Lease prepayments (note 14) METER K (H5E14) 38,269 35,071
Inventories (note 21) FE (K=E21) 57,011 78,612
Government grants receivable (note 22) &Y B i Bh (Bt 3E 22) 35,015 12,766
Pledged deposits (note 18) EHEBEFR(KHIE18) 40,000 29,106
Bills receivables eSS 4,000 -
350,623 283,243

(c) At the balance sheet date, bank loans were () REER RTERNERE
repayable as follows: MU

The Group
AEH
2014 2013

2014 F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARBTT

With 1 year or on demand 1FEANHRIRERK 333,970 257,380
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&B2FR - 10,000
333,970 267,380
At 31 December 2013, bank loans of RMB40,000,000 were R2013F12A31H @B AAR
secured by the lease prepayments and property, plant and & 40,000,000 7T # $R 77 & 3k A3 A &2
equipment of Sichuan Gushan Vegetable Fat Chemistry e EEH R FLA R R H 1208
Co.,Ltd., a private company controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu. The fEILS2BR A MHEE TR KA
loans were repaid during 2014. ¥ BERZBEER - EXER

20145 EE -
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At 31 December 2014, bank loans of RMB20,000,000 was
secured by property, plant and equipment of Fujian Gushan.
Biodiesel Co., Ltd., a private company controlled by Mr. Yu
Jiangiu.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
obtained bank loans totaling RMB50,000,000 secured by
certain trade receivables of RMB66,802,000. Prior to the
maturity of the loans, the Group had collected the full
amount of the pledged trade receivables but did not comply
with the loan covenants which required the Group to obtain
written consents from the bank prior to using the funds for
its operations. In August 2013, the Group received waivers
from the banks in respect of noncompliance of the loan
covenants for these bank loans and the loans of
RMB50,000,000 were fully repaid at maturity by December
2013.

At 31 December 2014, bank loans of RMB70,000,000 was
secured by property, plant and equipment of a third party.
The Group paid RMB19,600,000 pledged deposit to this third
party in respect of such security.

At 31 December 2014, bank loans totaling RMB30,000,000
(2013: RMB10,000,000) were guaranteed by independent
guarantee companies to which the Group was charged a
total of non-recoverable guarantee fees of RMB1,170,000
(2013: RMB520,000) during the year ended 31 December
2014.

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ZHZHEI AN RESE)

R2014%F12A31H: A R ¥
20,000,0007¢ 2 $R 77 & FX B g M
LEEHNAARREBERZEY
LRBRARMNME - BE MEE
AR o

HE2013F12A3MB IEEE > K
SERSRTERBBEARKE
50,000,0007C * A& T & 5 & U3k
I8 A R # 66,802,000 7T /£ & HE 7 o
REFRENHA - AEEE 25 UWER
BEEHE S EINGKIE - B EESF
ERRHRTE  EASETHAZE
B EEEERSR - FHLEER
TEERE - R2013FE8 F » K&
BT ETZERITERNERHZ
FHBRITHRRE MZARE
50,000,000 Tt EFE M 2013F 12 A
B BARF R BN(EE

R2014F12A31B: A R #&
70,000,000 LI ERITERME=H
RV - BERRZEER - AEE
LA B T A R 19,600,000
TTHEERERTZEE=F -

R2014F12 8318 » A& B A%
A AR #30,000,000 7T (2013 4F = A
R #10,000,000 7T ) K ER1TE F R &
MERABRBER  MAKER
HE2014F12A31B It EEHZ
FZFRAEM T AAIKEIERE S &
A R #1,170,0007T (20134 : AR
# 520,000 7)) ©
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28 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)
(d) Significant terms and repayment schedule of
entrusted loans
At 31 December 2014, entrusted loans are repayable as

28 HMITERKREMMER &)
(d) EEERWEAGRREBERDY

N20145 12 A31H  ZEEFH

follows: BRERMAT :
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
2014 2013 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Within 1 year or on demand 1FRHIZEK 56,700 40,500
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F1EE2FR 300,000 50,000
356,700 90,500

At 31 December 2013, the entrusted loans were unsecured
and interest-bearing at 5.6% to 12% per annum.

At 31 December 2014, the entrusted loans were interest-
bearing at 10% to 12.0% per annum. Entrusted loans of
RMB56,700,000 were unsecured. During the current year,
the Group entered into an agreement with a state-owned
enterprise, pursuant to which the state-owned enterprise
agreed to provide a term loan in the aggregate principal of
up to RMB600,000,000 to the Group. The loan was drawn-
down by the Group in two tranches with the first tranche of
RMB200,000,000 and the second tranche of
RMB100,000,000 and the repayment term is two years from
the date of drawdown. This entrusted loan was secured by
142,606,800 and 270,915,400 ordinary shares in the
Company held by Mr. Liu Hanjiu and Mr Huang Weiping,
both are key management personnel of the Group,
respectively. The second tranche of this entrusted loan was
further secured by 200,000,000 ordinary shares in the
Company held by Mr. Yu Jiangiu. Pursuant to the
agreement, the draw-down date was expired as at 31
December 2014 and the remaining facility of
RMB300,000,000 was no longer available to the Group. The
aggregate amount of shares charged in respect of the above
entrusted loan represent 29.1% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

M20135F12A31H  ZEEXR A
EAE RIREF RS 6%E12%51 8.

MR20145 12 A31H » ZEEHIK
FEFKI10%E120%:F B - AR
56,700,000 T2 ZrtE R AR -
RAEE  AEEHE-—FHEEE
Rl B ZRERERE
REFHERTAEE  ASBFH
&% A AR 600,000,000 7T © A&
EoMERNER  BE—Z2£A5AR
#200,000,0007C * F_EAARK
100,000,000t * i FE AR B A 5
BEME - ERERUAREEEE
BEEABRERLERFRETLE
2 Al B B #9142,606,800% K
270,915,400 B A8~ &) 3@ AR 1E B 1K
e B_ELTERE—FUGE
Fk 45 A4 5 #9 200,000,000 AL AR A 7
TBREEE - BiIFZ = - RE
HEIE M2014F12 A318 25 -
& N8 E A R ¥ 300,000,000 7T~
BRETFAER - L LAEZTER
BB D EEEALEE EHTR
ZX29.1% ©
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As at 31 December 2013, a loan of RMB60,000,000 was
unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per annum and
repayable in February 2015. The amount was early repaid
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2013, a loan of RMB6,494,000 from Gold
Hero Holdings Limited was unsecured, interest bearing at
6.06% per annum and repayable within one year. The
amount was repaid during the year ended 31 December
2014.

In December 2013, the Youxian District Finance Bureau, Mianyang
City, Sichuan Province provided conditional government grants of
RMB31,048,000 to the Group. Such government grants are
conditional to meeting certain tax payment thresholds by the
Group for the three years ending 31 December 2015. Should the
tax payment thresholds not be met by the Group, the government
grants are repayable to Youxian District Finance Bureau, Mianyang
City, Sichucn Province by August 2016.

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B =57 HES - UALESE)

MR2013FE 12318 — AR
60,000,000 Tt I E R BB A - 1%
FFZ12% 5T B RAR2015F 2 B
B8 - ZHEEREE2014F 12 8
NBLEFERPERE -

MR2013F12A31H —%B8 %
SIZERAR A TR AR 6,494,000
LR E SR AEIR - IRFF26.06%
FTERBR—FRNERE - ZHELE
REZE2014F12A3MB ILFEER -

R 20134E12 B - /U114 4365 T 5 {1l 1= BF
B 5 [R) 2N &= B 2 4 5 1R 4K ) BRUAS # B A
R#31,048,0007T ° IRHZERFMELA
BAREBEHZE2015F12A31 B I =%
EER AT HHFIER - FAEE - iR
EERAEEIZEMT I AEBAER
2016 8 B RIS ZE BTt EE T 1|
BEEMHIIRMERE -
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND 30 EX - REERRBRE
(@) Movement in components of equity (a) EHZIHEH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AREBGEEZNS I EAY) R E
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated R BEHRNE RN G E RS E
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in ik o AN 7 8 Bl #E 25 280 R 5
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual B B AR R R Z BN F T A0 -

components of equity between the date of incorporation
and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company AAT

Share-

based
Share Share  Exchange Capital  payment Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses

AR (7

BEREN
RE  BbEE EARE EARE  (REE  ZHEB ELE)
Note  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'00D
M ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 22 February 2013 120134
(date of incorporation) 2A28
(Effekaz A E) - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive 2ERELE

income = - 97) = = (23,823) (23,920)
Transfer from Engenupon BRIk 24

replacement of share BEARS

option scheme 31 - - - (7,659) 7,659 - -
Issue of sharesuponthe M E S/

Corporate Reorganisation /77 30(0)() 827 - - 29749 - - 29832
Shares issued under share  1RIE B RRiEET 2]

option scheme BORRG 3000 80 71,579 - - (7,659) - 64,000

At 31 December 2013 R2013%F
12A318 907 71,579 97) 289,836 = (23,823) 338,402
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continuves) 30 B - FERKRE &)
(@) Movement in components of equity (Continued) (a) #ERILDEE (&)
The Company (Continued) AT (E)

Share-

based
Share Share  Exchange Capital  payment Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses

N

RE®N
Bx  BHRE EXRE EXRG  AREE  RHEA it
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
Wit AR®TR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARNTR

At 1 January 2014 ROUEIA1E 907 71,579 (97) 289,836 = (23,823) 338,402
Total comprehensive income - 2Tk % - - 736 - - (408 (43872)
Issue of new shares under — BEERARRE

the initial public offering ~ (T&RAR

("IP0"), net of listing BE|B

expenses ikt - Mk

isiil 53 30(C)iv) 41,414 391,063 = = - - 432477

Capitalisation isste EX{ET ) 123215 (123,215) = - - - -
Issue of newsharesupon — BEBRARRE

exercise of the over- Ife R RE

allotment option under BETHRG

the IPO 30(c)v) 539 5,553 = = - - 6,092
Share based compensation  IARR{) AERE

EXpENses BERX 0N - - = - 10,365 - 10365
Dividend declared inrespect  SAEE SR

of the current year ZBE 300) - (50,138) = - - - (50,138)

At 31 December 2014 R2014%
12A318 166,075 294,342 639 289,836 10,365 (68,431) 693,326




»

152 China Metal Resources

EBERNAERAT

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)
(b) Dividend
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

Interim dividend declared and paid
of HK3.0 cents (2013: HK nil cents)

30 EX - RERKRE @)

(b)) BE
FRAARR B R IRR B EAG A
BB

2014 2013
2014 % 20134

RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

Bk HR S B RE A 0.0378 T
(20134 : THT)

per ordinary share 50,138 -
Final dividend proposed after the end &R K BIRS B &A%Y L @A 0.03/8 T
of the reporting period of HK3.0 cents (20134 : =H L)
(2013: HK nil cents) per ordinary share 50,008 -
100,146 -

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

(c) Share capital
Authorised and issued share capital

RBEPRZ B EZRAREL E
RIEMRERRAIE -

(c) B=&
EERBBITRA

Nominal
value of
ordinary

No. of

Par value shares shares
H{E R A LZEREE

HKS$ HK$'000

BIT FATT

Authorised: EIE
At 22 February 2013 M2013%F2 A 22H

(date of incorporation) (FEffAIZ B HR) 0.10 3,000,000 300
Increase in share capital on R2013%F3 19 H

19 March 2013 NP AR 0.10 99,997,000,000 9,999,700
At 31 December 2013, M2013F 12 A31H -

1 January 2014 and 2014F 118 K

31 December 2014 201412 A31H 100,000,000,000 10,000,000

(equivalent to RMB8,071,000)
HER AR 8,071,0007T
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Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE :

At 22 February 2013 M2013F2 22 H
(date of incorporation) (FEMtAsz B ER)

Issue of shares upon the RIcEEHRE
Corporate Reorganisation BELTRRD

Issue of shares under share RIRFE AT &)
option scheme BEITRRD

At 31 December 2013 MR2013F 12 A31H

At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 818

Issue of shares under the IPO BRI E R ARESE
BTG
Capitalisation issue BAR(L BT
Issue of shares upon exercise of — 17{E A ZA AL A FE RS
the over-allotment option BTG

under the IPO

At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

()  The Company was incorporated on 22 February 2013
with an authorised share capital of HK$300,000 divided
into 3,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. On the same
date, one share of HK$0.1 was allotted and issued at
par. As part of the Corporate Reorganisation, all
shareholders of Engen transferred their holdings in
the issued share capital of Engen to the Company in
consideration for the shares allotted and issued by the
Company. Upon completion of the Corporate
Reorganisation on 19 March 2013, the Company
became the holding company of the Group. On 19
March 2013, the authorised share capital of the
Company increased to HK$10,000,000,000 by the
creation of additional 99,997,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each, rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares
of the Company in all respects. On the same date, a
total of 10,224,999 shares of HK$0.1 each were

allotted and issued at par.

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B ZHZHEI AN RESE)

EERBRITRA(A)
1 - -
10,224,999 1,022 827
1,013,000 101 80
11,238,000 1,123 907
11,238,000 1,123 907
525,001,600 52,500 41,414
1,562,082,000 156,208 123,215
6,824,000 683 539
2,105,145,600 210,514 166,075

(i)

KA E 201352 A22 8 5+
B Sz - 3% E B 7K & 300,000
7 7T 0 9 43,000,000 A% & A%
MERBIETHED - B
B —REEAR1ETH
DIZEERERET - (EAD
X¥SHEN—En B2 ER
B HERES B BITRAR
A R T AR A AR
BB MBEITRAOIERNRE - &
2013319 EEH T
DRt NN = PN = b2
AT 20133198 -
AN B FE 1 5% 99,997,000,000
% & A% E{E0.1 76 T AR 15 -
B Ex FE R &K =E
10,000,000,0007% 7t © % & i%
MRS FEHEARARNGIREE
BREERSMA - RE - &
10,224,999 j% & A% ™ {E0.1
BRI EREE D I &%
17 °
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RA 35 30 R P o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(b= BiTHES) -

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

VN2 7=,

(Continued)

At 1 January 2013, the share capital in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity
represented the share capital of Engen.

On 16 October 2013, the Chairman of the Group, Mr.
Yu lJiangiu exercised the share options of the Company
to subscribe for 1,013,000 shares in the Company at a
consideration of RMB64,000,000 of which RMB80,000
was credited to share capital and the balance of
RMB63,020,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

RMB7,659,000 has been transferred from the share-
based payment reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with policy set out in note 2(g)(ii).

On 21 February 2014, the Company capitalised an
amount of HK$156,208,000 (equivalent to
RMB123,215,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company by applying such
sum in paying up in full at par of 1,562,082,000 shares,
each of which to be allotted and issued to the
shareholders of the Company appearing on the
register of members of the Company on 28 January
2014 in proportion to their respective shareholding.

On 21 February 2014, the shares of the Company
became listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, pursuant to which 525,001,600 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of
HK$1.13 per share by the Company. The total gross
proceeds from the issue of these shares amounted to
HK$593,252,000 (equivalent to RMB467,954,000).
Proceeds of HK$52,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB41,414,000), representing the par value of the
shares issued, were credited to the Company's share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$495,895,000
(equivalent to RMB391,063,000 after deducting listing
expenses of RMB35,477,000), were credited to the
share premium account.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(%)

MR2013FE1A1H - e R
BERANKAIER B
Z'So

MR20134E 108168 * A&EH
FREEIEMNEEITHEARARE
1% 4 A 3R & 72K 2 71,013,000
ERH REABRARK
64,000,0007T + H R AR
80,000 JLE iE A BR A R B2 EE A
R # 63,020,000 7T & 58 A B% 15
T EER o

A # 7,659,000 7T &2 2 78 B
5 2(0)(if) A7 3% B9 B B DA B 1
BERONRBEREAZRS

B o

MN2014F2 8218 © &N R &
1R MR E R E RS
156,208,000 7L (FHER AR
#5123,215,000 7C) BT E A
WA BRERNZEEZE
& 2 1,562,082,000 i% B 17
ZERM IR A FRES A
B A% #E Lt ) B 3% & B2 1T TR
201441 A28 B % 5| A" A &
fE R AR R -

MN2014F2 8218 » &N R &
DR BRI ER £ B
It AR IR BIRARE 1.1378
JT 3% 77 525,001,600 A% &F P& &
BONB LA L BT o &%
TZERODMBRERES
593,252,000 7T (FHE R AR
M 467,954,000 7T) ° FT1S7RIA
52,500,000 7T (FHE R AR
#41,414,0007T ) R R B 877
EHzEE  EFf ARARZ
R Ao BT 8 3 IE #% B
495,895,000 7T (FHE RAR
391,063,000 © & K% £
S ARKS35,477,00070)
B ARG RER -
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(Continued)

On 18 March 2014, 6,824,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of HK$1.13 per
share by the Company pursuant to the partial exercise
of the over-allotment option by the sole global
coordinator. The total gross proceeds from the issue
of these shares amounted to HK$7,711,000 (equivalent
to RMB6,092,000). Proceeds of HK$683,000 (equivalent
to RMB539,000), representing the par value of the
shares issued, were credited to the Company's share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$7,028,000
(equivalent to RMB5,553,000) were credited to the
share premium account.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries with functional currency
other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(U).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises mainly capital
contributions from shareholder in respect of the
contingent considerations for the acquisition of Jinxin
and Xiangbei in November 2010 and August 2011
amounted to RMB33,226,000 and RMB11,555,000
respectively borne by the shareholder and the amount
due to shareholder of RMB77,700,000 waived by the
shareholder on 31 December 2012 which was
recognised as deemed capital contribution.

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

0]

(i)

(B ZHZHEI AN RESE)

R2014F3 188 @ 1R & B
REBRBAAIDDITERERE
ek #E - AR RIRBRRE
1.137% JT ¥ 176,824,000 f&
[ EEO.1E T Ay E BA% o &L
FREITZER DS IB4R5E
7,711,008 T (HHERAR
#6,092,0007T ) ° FT 15 1B
683,000 L (FH & KX AR %
539,0007L) REEEHTRMD 2
AfE ' Bt ARRBRA BT
1SR IE 458 7,028,000 7T (48
BN AR 5,553,0007T) 25t
AR = EAR o

bE S R

(R FREERRELIFAAR

ERIEEREOME QBT

BMERMELENMAINEE

B o Rkl IR IRPY S 2u) FTEL
VERTEREEE

=N
EXARFEEIEZBRRELRN
201011 A &201149F8 A I
BeERIENHARE(H
Bl A A K # 33,226,000 7T K& A
R ¥ 11,555,000 7T + B PR BR A&
E)EE - AEBRERR20124F
12 A 31 B# % IR R 5K IA
AR#77,700,0007C @ DA
BIERERIEE ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

(iii) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
the business.

(iv) Statutory reserves

According to the PRC rules and regulations, the
Company’s operating subsidiaries are required to
transfer 10% of the net income after tax, as
determined in accordance with general accepted
accounting principle in the PRC, to a general reserve
fund and an enterprise expansion fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the respective companies. The transfer to the
reserves must be made before distribution of
dividends to shareholders can be made. These
amounts are not available for distribution to
shareholders, except upon liquidation.

(v) Share-based payment reserve
Share-based payment reserve represents the portion
of the fair value of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group at grant date that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(q)(ii).

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB527,251,000 (2013:
RMB337,495,000).

(iii) MRADEE
BaERNERXRASRHS
REVEEE - REFSHER
Ak RIDRERNES A D
T ARARR - ERBEER
DIRBEZB& - NRBIER
ENRBREXRHBETFEER
HAfER o

(iv) EEREE
RIBHBRA RG] - AT
By & E M B A BIZA R E 10% &Y
MERPAREBEFEARZE
AHRAEE) BA—REFES
MERBRRES  BEREBE
FREZIG AR R EME AR
50% ° BE AR H VALK
RIRN R BATEH - BRBR
Sy RESE AN E TR
o

(v) ARG BEROSREE
B mEREE A R EREE
BT AEEREMAITERBR
BRE L BB QFEDE
o ZAFEDRRHME
2(q)i) & DA R A7 A5 B B 15 3R
PRERF B S 5T BORFER

R2014512 A31H » Al H ik 4
ARARBRENREBEEAARE
527,251,000 (2013 4 :
AR #337,495,0007T) °



30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDEND (continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurate with the level of risk
and by securing access to financing at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Group.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines
net debt as total interest bearing borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. The Group defines “capital” as all
components of equity.

The net debt-to-capital ratio was as follows:

inbi unless otherwise
BB HFHES  UAR

30 EX - RERKRE @)

(f)

EXERE
AEEEEEANER BIERER
AEEFELENE T RERR
RNREE AR EE L R A 2
MRARSRE  BESKRRKLE
i )25 AR B % 7 2K (2 SR AN A 28 o

AEEEEEEARERE  NERFK
R L& (A EB&SEEK
e E B BRI B AR P KA
BERRENFE  YREZER
SENLBERRE B ABENERE -

AEBRFEBER L R BELEEE
BEAGE -k E - AKEHK
FEBEE R EERAERER
eRBAEEFEERE - AKEL[E
A EBRRABRESERED

FEBEARLEMT

2014 2013

2014 5 20134

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

Bt aE ARBTRT ARKBTET

Bank loans and other borrowings RITE R R EADIER 28 690,670 424,374
Loans from related parties B T B 24 = 84,943
Obligations under finance leases BERETHNER 27 52,498 60,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BREeRREFEEE 25 (145,765) (78,615)
Net debt BT 597,403 490,707
Total equity B 1,273,303 612,805
Net debt-to-capital ratio SFEBE AR R 46.9% 80.1%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment
of certain covenants, neither the Company nor any of the
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

BHREETE TRENRITHE
O AR R RAERTHT B A R ER
BISNR AR I E AN TE TR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
28 January 2014 and has came into effect upon the Company’s
listing on 21 February 2014 whereby the directors of the
Company, are authorised, at their discretion, to invite any director
or employee of the Group and any other person who in the sole
discretion of the directors has contributed or will contribute to the
Group to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

On 2 July 2014, the Company granted 24,000,000 and 89,000,000
share options to three executive directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group respectively under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 28 January 2014. The
grantees are entitled, subject to the terms and conditions of the
grant and upon exercise, to subscribe for an aggregate of
113,000,000 shares of the Company with nominal value of
HK$0.10 per share at an exercise price of HK$1.13 per share. The
share options granted have a vesting period of 3 years, i.e. one-
third of the share options shall be vested on the first anniversary;
one-third of share options shall be vested on the second
anniversary; and the remaining share options shall be vested on
the third anniversary of the date of grant respectively. No share
options were exercisable as at 31 December 2014.

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on the Binomial Option Pricing
Model. The contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated
into the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

RARZRABRAEE - £R2014F1 A
28HERM KA ARNR2014F2821H £
MEER - Fitt - ARAREBESRE -
ARBEREEEEREERBEHAEE
EHEBN TN E Sk E SR BEREE -
ARREBA A RIARS °

R201467 A28 » ARARREBEARGR
2014F1 A28 B IR EE IR #ERT &) - )
KRR =ZHATEERETALBEREE
2 Bl #% H 24,000,000 17 K 89,000,000 17 8
REAEE o AR A B RE IR IR B R ER AT T
FHERE URBARAARARE
113,000,000 % & f% EI1E0.10% 7T I 17
TEBATRI1I3BIT - IR HERES
SBHAIE =9 —BREARE—
BEHE =5 BREANRE_BTH
B SR TEREES IR HBESNE=
BEFB - RN2014F 128318 @ &R
At R FIT{E o

ks qun il g 2 AT b AN S
EBEN2EEROBEEZAFEFE B
REBREZ A FEDRE — B MR
EERNGE - BREZSNBRIIAE
AR 2 BMARE - BRI ZFAHEMN
AZHEAREEEER -



31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

32

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date (HK$)

Share price (HK$)

Exercise price (HK$)

Expected volatility

Expected life

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate (based on Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Notes)

Exercise multiple

Post-vesting exit rate

31
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nbi unless otherwise.
b A B HES  HAR

UREEHEURDAERD

RS (#)
BREZAFERRER
Share options granted to
BRERT
Executive Other
directors employees
HITEE HiiEg
REtEBEZ AFE(BT) 0.44 0.39
BR(E (BT) 1.07 1.07
fT{EE (BT) 1.13 1.13
TEAR 18 45.54% 45.54%
TEHA A R EA 10 years 10 years
TEHEARR B 3% 3%
mERAIE(LEBINEES
EEF R AEAE) 2.059% 2.059%
TTEREE 2.8 2.2
BEERAE 0% 5.44%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
determined by the management. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. There were
no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31
December 2014 not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

32

BHRRERBBERENE RIZEK
RZMETHORBERAE)  URED
A SERRRIK BN TERE S HE -
EHMEREHEREET - TBBARRZ
HEH N FENGITEERNTE

BRI IR RIS IR IR - % T A &
LR o

AIE

(@ M2014F12A31BKREMNM
XNEEEARAUBRRABEN
BEAREEWNT :

2014 2013
2014 F 20134
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT

Contracted for BET4
— property, plant and equipment — U BEREE 114,084 67,387
— land use rights — T AR 19,326 14,000
Authorised but not contracted for BIREERETL 94,783 120,698
228,193 202,085
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32

33

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of staff quarters
and office premises are payable as follows:

32

AL )

(b) RN2014%F12A31H' EEE
IEERPBENH R AR E
EHEETHARBERER
HEEENNT

2014 2013
2014 § 2013 £

RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARBTT

Within 1 year 15K 858 438
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F%&B5FR 1,138 5
1,996 443

(c) At 31 December 2014, the Group had outstanding purchase
agreements with some of its suppliers and was required to
purchase from the suppliers an aggregate of 131,324 metric
tons (2013: 60,410) of scrap copper with the price to be
determined at the time of purchases based on market price.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
significant related party transactions during the current and prior
years.

(a) Significant related party transactions
(i) Financing arrangements

33

(c) M2014512A31H KREFBEHE
HHOEEREDAERNEE R
& AREEREES£131,324 24
8 (20134F : 60,410 A WA ) Y 25 8 -
ERENBERRBMEET

BB R 7

B % 55 B 5 9 L 1 30 5 R0 R 0 BB
FARSN - REERAEERIBE R
STATEAMB RS o

(@) EXBEBMLXRS
iy ®WERHE

2014 2013
2014 § 2013 £

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT

Interest expense on loan from Gushan — HAEZE KT S5 446 5,297
Interest expense on loan from Silver BIRERHFI S
Harvest 12 143

458 5,440
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 BEBAEXRSE )

(a) Significant related party transactions (Continued) (@) BEXBELIRS (#)
(i) Other related parties transactions (i) HaEBHAIRS

2014 2013
2014 5 20134
RMB’000
ARETFIT

RMB’'000
AR®T R

HEBEMEmRTEMMHE
BBEREARAR(EM
T HEBEEABSRE

Sale of recycled copper products to
Guangzhou Taiyue Communications
Cable Co., Ltd., (“Guangzhou Taiyue”)
a private company which is 40%
owned by Mr. Fan Dunxian, a key HRE B 40% FFLE
management personnel and beneficial A &])
minority shareholder of the Company

Sale of recycled copper products to
Sichuan Xinshiji#

Purchase of power transmission and

HEBLWERT
7ot g #
[ P )| 8t 4 B B X AT

distribution cables from Sichuan E
Xinshiji#
Purchase of recycled copper products — [@PU)|| F 428 B

from Sichuan Xinshiji BEIRER
Purchase of Rubber Composites from AP )| Frit 42 6 B 2 k)
Sichuan Xinshiji

Processing fee charged by Guangzhou — EMZRHUKEEI N T E

Taiyue

Processing fee charged by Sichuan POt 42 UeER B N T 2
Xinshiji

Administrative fee and consultancy BRIE LRITHE
fee paid to Baohe Fushan* RiBRE~*

HRAXERARB 2 BmD

1,746 44,202
28,843 170,247
35,296 195,817

= 5,315
2,018 =
= 9,350

= 51,174

150 2,725

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group sold
recycled copper products in the amount of RMB28,843,000
(2013: RMB170,247,000) to Sichuan Xinshiji and purchased
from Sichuan Xinshiji power transmission and distribution
cables in the amount of RMB35,296,000 (2013:
RMB195,817,000). As the recycled copper products sold by the
Group to Sichuan Xinshiji were used or were expected to be
used by Sichuan Xinshiji as raw materials for its production of
power transmission and distribution cable products, for
financial reporting purposes, the RMB28,843,000 (2013:
RMB170,247,000) sales of recycled copper products by the
Group have not been recognised as revenue in the
consolidated income statement of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 but as a reduction of the cost of the
Group's purchases of power transmission and distribution
cables.

HE2014F12A3NALFE -
AEBHERARBEARE
28,843,0007C (20134 : AR
170,247,000 7T, ) H) 5B 4 8 & &
F 01| 37t 42 - Sz fE P )|
40 PR BB B A R 35,296,000
(20134 : A R #
195,817,0007T ) HY % i % 4 -
MR AL E T )| 3t 425
HAREMREEHTEHSH M)
A2 AR R M R A AR EE R R
EBEER RUK®HREMS
AEEBEERERERNHEE
A R 28,843,000t (2013
1 AR #170,247,000 7% ) I
AN & EH E2014512 A
3N AILLFENEE K RER
BEA - BERANEBRE
REEBEHRIRD
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (Continued)
(ii) Other related parties transactions (Continued)

*

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, each of Tongxin, Baohe
Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue had a Management Consultancy
Agreement with Baohe Fushan (collectively (the “Management
Consultancy Agreements”), pursuant to which Baohe Fushan
agreed to provide various services to Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji
and Baohe Taiyue. In return, each of Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji
and Baohe Taiyue is committed to pay Baohe Fushan an
administrative fee and a consultancy fee which amounts to
20% and 30%, respectively, of all government grants and
subsidies obtained in connection with the facility of each of
Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue (excluding any
government subsidiaries received through Baohe Fushan
amounted to RMB34,091,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014 (Note 6(a)). The Management Consultancy Agreements
remain in force till 2015.

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid
individuals as disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

33 BEAERS &)
(@) BEXBELIRS (#)
(i) HtBEBAIRS (&)

@ 20144 % 20134612 A31H -
B (RN L TR AN 2L
BEERRNBILFTIL—HER
Bk (578 [ S5 1B
) EBi RABLRAE
MRS - RANFH A FR A DR
BARZERY - (EARIIE
0 RE - RAFH A AR AN
R B A AR S L
THERBEEE KEIHAE
BB EAEE « 4R At 42 MR
N2 8 A 3% 588 BT 15 R S 488 B %
B 20% K 30% (R EiEEE
2014412 B31H IEEEE B
RFNE LR A R #34,091,000
JT 2 fE A BT M BRC M
6a) - ZEEEERMASE
2015 FAT—EABK °

(b) EEEBASHNEMN
AEEXTZEBABNHFH(EE
R EIMBEINTARRES
EFRIR » DA R Y R 10 AT A BE SO A
FTETRSHEMALOFIE) &I

NN
2014 2013
2014 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Short-term employee benefits pSEEL=FAlE 15,115 1,920
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET SRR 129 39
Share-based payments LARS {7 A EREAY 1 3k 5,723 =
20,967 1,959

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see note

7(D)).

BHEWEREEIEIRA] R(R
HEE7(D)) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commaodity price risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customers’ past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and may take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade debtors are normally due within 90 days from the
date of transaction. The Group also offers revolving credit to
its customers. The revolving credit, which provides for a
maximum credit limit that may be outstanding at any one
time, is determined based on such factors as current market
conditions and the customers’ credit history and current
ability to pay. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At 31 December 2014, 2.9% (2013: 10.3%) and 23.9% (2013:
22.1%) of the total trade debtors and bills receivable was
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance.

BA 15 40 % P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B =57 HES - UALESE)
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7R 5% 5 P T A0 R < L B e R R AR A
EEZEFRARNVERAREEBRRIE
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AEEEERRIBZREEZ RE
i FEWCFKIR o

EEEREEERR  MERMAR

MZEEERREX AR -

B ZREMEYHRENE A&
EEeHRMEERRT —ELRE
BENEPETEIEERE - itE
A EETF BRI ERLCE
AR BATHERRES) - X EE B
REFPUREFREMERBRR
MFEER - EHERX—RERS
B HEET OO RAZIH - ANEBE IR
EPRHERER (RRHAIRE
A —RERNRSEER) - R
BEREMARETPHEELEMA
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C ARENE ZREFRMAEA

o

So oip

AEBAZNEERREEXREF
(MTRRFEEMBITE)SEN
BB RHFE  AHEREESE
RS E BENEEATEANER
HEERBERES - R2014F12 A
3B BZERANEREERATEH
AH29% (20134 : 10.3%) 5 23.9%
(20134F : 22.1%) FE 5 Bl A A £ B
NEAZFERAREEXf -
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

34 MEBEEREMITAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE)
(Continued)
(a) cCredit risk (Continued) (a) EERME)

(b)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group'’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 22.

Liquidity risk (b)
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves

of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from

major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements

in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

2014

BRAAEEMAXEE SR E
WEBMELNEERBRNE
FEERBEENMIFE22

FBESER
AEENEEETHEREADE
SER BUBRESRFEES
HERETESMERIEHTRE
SHE  UENEEHRESRD
EeTL -

TRALAEEITERTES R
BERNGEANBRTARIIBE
N REBETDERGRARFTRR
w(BIEEAE RFIR K (8%
8)) & HE BRI R E R SN
RAKEHRZRAFNEEEH

20145
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRXTBRER

More
Within  than 1 year

1year or but less than
on demand 2 years
MENL —FHE
BENUR MENA
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR%TR

Trade and other payables 25 REMENTUR 339,216 =
Obligations under finance leases BLATE FE(E 17,676 15,986
Bank loans and other borrowings $R/7E =& it fE 2% 437,378 322,740

More than Balance
2 years but sheet
less than carrying

5 years Total amount
—FRE BEEMER
RER EH RHEE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%Tn AR%Tn

= 339,216 339,216
26,635 60,297 52,498
= 760,118 690,670

794,270 338,726

26,635 1,159,631 1,082,384
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34 EEBREERESBRITAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SRENE )
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELREEZ)

2013
20136
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
Nﬂfﬁﬂﬁfﬂi/m
More More than Balance
Within than 1 year 2 years but sheet

Tyearor  butlessthan less than carrying
on demand 2years 5 years Total amount
RENAE —ENE —FA BEARR
AFNA WEA REX it RHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETE ARETE

Trade and other payables B o REMENTE 420,671 = = 420,671 420,671
Obligations under finance leases E&TE FHE(E 15,187 15,398 40,222 70,807 60,000
Bank loans and other borrowings $R1TE 5 & H A& = 330,830 124,407 - 455237 424,374
Amounts due to related parties  FEf B 75 08 30,200 - - 30,200 30,200
Loans from related parties REBHANER 90,391 - - 90,391 84,948
887,279 139,805 40,222 1,067,306 1,020,193
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all of the Company’s 75’\2014$ & 2013F12A31H * K
accrued expenses and other payables are repayable within NAE A BT A R E A E IR
one year. BAR—FRNZLT -
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FEEp
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest REBRFEEREZRNRE EGE
bearing borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates and at Ko FEREEBBADAINSAEE
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk ARZBEeRENERRRATE
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group's =R o NEE EE I8 2 BE XY
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out FZAAE R T ()

in (i) below.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34 BBEAKREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E %)
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIREEE)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) F=EEE
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRFMAEFENETEER
the Group's total interest bearing borrowings at the NEEE R FZBS -

balance sheet date:

2014 2013
2014 5 20134
Effective Effective

interest rate Amount  interest rate Amount
BERRI= <8 VB o

% RMB'000 % RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

Fixed rate borrowings:  EEHE

Bank loans and other RITEF K
borrowings HifE 3k 9.49% 690,670 9.87 424,374
Loans from related parties 2 & BB H B E K - - 6.54 84,948
Obligations under finance ~ BAEFME FHET
leases 7.06% 52,498 6.66 60,000
Total fixed rate borrowings & B s 4a%E 743,168 569,322
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) HBEIN
At 31 December 2014 and 2013, all of the Group’s MN20144 K 20135E12A318 -
interest bearing borrowings are fixed rate borrowings, AEBHFAFEBRARE
no sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is BER - I E 25 =R
presented. BRE DT ©
(d) cCurrency risk (d) E¥m=b
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily related to AEBAEAZSFTEENETL(ZSE
receivables, payables and cash balances that are R PR EE R 8L B LA
denominated in United States dollars, currencies other than B FHEMBEIEIE - B RIE
the functional currency of the operations to which the MRS EHREBHEERR -

transactions relate.
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34 BBEAKREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EH &)

(Continued)

(d) currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥mEpsE)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) FARSHELER

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the TR AREFRLEE B F&
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from SHEERER  ZSEERR
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in United TIEBAAB T AT B
States dollars (“USD”) in connection with entities with feEENERIZETL([=Tl)
functional currency in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"). For SHEMBEEREESBEME
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure EoREFEMME - ARE
are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate UARBITE|R » WIALEH
at the balance sheet date. Differences resulting from KB AREE IR E o BN IELA
the translation of the financial statements of the AREITATGEEENHEBA
subsidiaries with functional currency other than RMB A BmEAAEEZREE
into the Group'’s presentation currency are excluded. FIEAMEREVETEENR -

2014 2013
2014 5§ 2013 %

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT

United States dollars EYH
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEHHEEE 88 S8
Loans from related parties KRBT HNER = (84,948)
Amounts due to related parties P RERS 5 5B = (14,877)
Net exposure arising from recognised  EREREAEREE
assets and liabilities FTEE £ RO F R B 88 (99,767)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBREIW
As HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the HRBTEETTE - AEE
risk of movements in exchange rates between the REBBTEET 2 HEXE )

HKD and the USD to be insignificant. BWERTEAX o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group's products are scrap copper. The Group is exposed
to fluctuations in the price of copper which are influenced
by global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group's financial performance. The Group uses
copper futures contracts to mitigate its exposure against
price fluctuations of copper raw materials. The market value
of futures contracts is based on quoted market price at
settlement or balance sheet date. At 31 December 2014, the
Group had outstanding copper futures contracts with a
notional amount of RMB62,043,000. The Group does not
have significant outstanding copper futures contracts as at
31 December 2013.

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

EEASBERANEZREME
BREESR o REB AR R Kt
& M SRR T 2B R R BB A
RENE RS o R BHE S K B) A B
HAEBENMIERABKTH
2. REFFAFHESLREH
B & 8 R A RHE A8 IR B A LB -
HEAHNTERNEEREESR
EXRBNTHREBELE - K2014
F12A8318 ' XEEBERFEE IR
HEAY HELBEAARKE
62,043,0007C ° AN & B 72 2013 12
A31 B EFEFAFRHNE AR

(e A
BAEHK o

i) BLAFEFAENEBEERSA
&
R FERE
TREJNAKEERTANR
FE - ZFIARREREZ
REMREEFE YN ERE
BB REERFEIZRAF
BEFIFEEEN=RAFER
B BRFEFENBENEFR
T2 E T AET AR RS
ABBWABEERERER

— FIRGHE: BEEAFE
B AE R (BIRErE 8
HEBEESEERE
BTSN AR THERE)
SAENAFE-

—  F2qMGE BERE2R
W ABUR (BIREEZDISE
1R R B R B A\ B
BYFERERTAE
R ABBEFTENRF
B TABRBABE
A3 T 5 R Y B A\ B8R
i
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34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34 BBEAKREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EH &)
(Continued)
(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) ) AFEEFEE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BRATFEFENSEMEERE
value (Continued) &(E&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) N (EZERE ()
—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using — FIRHE:EFHEKX
significant unobservable inputs. TR B R A BB =
B AYE °
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 RAFERBEFE 51
during the current and prior years. 2 N 3% 2 Al a4 o

The Group
ES 4]
2014 2013
2014 5 20134

Level 1 Level 1
F1H F1
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETr ARETT

Derivative financial liabilities PTEERMIA
— Copper futures contracts — EEEL 525 -
(i)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at (i) RAOFEUINBETIERNSE
other than fair values TENATE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial 20144 K 20134512 A31 8 -
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not T2 K 7N S S K N B BR ) & i
materially different from their fair values as at 31 TAREEBESHEE A TELE
December 2014 and 2013. BERER -
(g) Estimation of fair values (g) ~AFEMNMFHE
(i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (i) FEERRER
The fair value is estimated as the present value of NEEREFTRARKIB SR
future cash flows, discounted at current market SRBEGZEUSR T AR
interest rates for similar financial instruments at the HEAMBRTHS N EIRET
balance sheet dates. H)o
(ii) Derivatives (i) fT£TH
Copper futures contracts are measured using quoted HEAE G AR RS R mISH
prices in active markets for identical financial R TANREE -

instruments.
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35 ACAQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 15 September 2014, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 65% equity interest of Jin Xunhuan
at a cash consideration of RMB19,500,000 from Shenzhen YinTai
Copper Co., Limited (“Shenzhen Yintai”) and Tianjin Jili Recycling
of Renewable Resources Co., Limited (“Tianjin Jili"). Shenzhen
Yintai and Tianjin Jili acquired Jin Xunhuan from Jin Xunchuan
Electronic Trading Co., Ltd., a private company controlled by the
daughters of Mr. Yu Jiangiu on 16 June 2014. The transaction is
considered by the Company’s directors to be a connected
transaction under the Listing Rules. The acquisition of Jin Xunhuan
was completed on 15 September 2014.

This transaction had been accounted for as an acquisition of
assets as the acquisition does not meet the definition of a

35 ZBWENEBARWEBEE

R2014F9 158 - AR FFILEE W
& LIRS RE AR 19,500,000 JT A%
NRFMEFR DA (DRYIEZER]) BX
EMREANBEEREKFBERAR(X
FERF ) W BB S AR Z 65% B A A o
R2014%F 6 4168 » FHNE R K KEZ
FlEgmtEnN T TEFNFLERAa R
RETFTHEBERARKBESAER - AAQF)
EERARSER EMAANETHEE
X5 o WS ERN2014F9 A 158 5T °

RZEARBBBEE - HRZBBTN
BEBEHNER -

business combination.

The assets acquired in the transaction were as follows:

BRXZWENEEMNT

RMB'000
AREBTT

Prepayment for property, plant and equipment YIZ -~ BB R ER TR 29,230
Construction in progress TEETRE 79
Other receivables HoAth fE IR 21
Cash at bank RITER 654
Assets acquired BUEEE 29,984
Less: Non-controlling interest W R R (10,484)
Total consideration satisfied by: BT AR EFRRE
— Cash paid during the year ended 31 December 2014 —REZE2014E 12 A31 BILEE

SANE S 19,500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition during the year REZE2014F12 AN BILFE

ended 31 December 2014 W g FRTEE AR Y IR & 7t 58

— Cash paid during the year ended 31 December 2014 —REBE2014F12A31HILFE

YIRS 19,500
— Cash and bank balances acquired —FTU IR & MIRTT 4 R (654)

18,846
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2014 and which have not been adopted in the financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

36 ENREMEREAREZ20145F

12831 BIEFEERBET -
MEARZEUREENTE

HEAMBHRETIZEBE - B2 %ER)
BESCMEMEZIENEE2014F12 A 31
B IEFE s R A3 B AR B Rk P I
FAMEET « FTERIR2E - ZEBRIEN
TheRAEBEEBENEE] - LR kE
o

Effective
for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

RT3 B

52 & FIR )

SEHEIR AR

Annual improvements to BB T 3R & 2E Bl 2L 1lJuly 2014
HKFRSS 2010-2012 cycle 2010 % 2012 15 20147 H1H
Annual improvements to BB I & 2E Rl B B 1 July 2014
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 20112 2013 5] 20147 A1H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
TR TA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments
would have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
Statements.

B G ERE 16K LB B GER
EIBIRZMER] - TEREHZ
AJEREZRE

ERUBMEERNE 1555 -
EEEHBA

BRMBMELANFE N

1 January 2016
20161818

1 January 2017
2017%1A1H

1 January 2018
201841 H1H

AEBEEEZSER] ~ BRI L=
BRRERPRBERELNZE  HER
REEEZFETEHREPHRE
BREATE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BZ7FtHES  UARESE)

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2014:

On 19 December 2014, Tongxin entered into the one-year annual
procurement agreement with seven of its suppliers, pursuant to
which each of the suppliers agrees to supply a targeted amount
of copper scrap raw materials to the Group from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2015 at a fixed discount of RMB1,000 per ton as
compared to the same-day average purchase price of the Group
from other suppliers. The annual supply target of the three
suppliers under the agreements is 49,500 tonnes in aggregate.

The Company entered into a warrant subscription agreement with
each of the suppliers on 19 December 2014, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to issue and the suppliers have agreed
to subscribe for an aggregate of 133,650,000 warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.001 per warrant. The warrants were granted on 19
January 2015. In the five years from the grant date, after the
warrants are being vested and become effective, each warrant
will entitle its holder to subscribe for one share at a subscription
price of HK$1.30 per share (subject to adjustment). The warrants
will become vested and exercisable when the relevant suppliers
supply raw materials to the Group.

On 1 February 2015, Tongxin entered into the one-year annual
procurement agreement with three of its suppliers, pursuant to
which each of the suppliers agrees to supply a targeted amount
of copper scrap raw materials to the Group from 1 February 2015
to 31 January 2016 at a fixed discount of RMB2,000 per ton as
compared to the same-day average purchase price of the Group
from other suppliers (excluding the seven suppliers who entered
into the annual procurement agreements and warrant
subscription agreements with the Group on 19 December 2014).
The annual supply target of the three suppliers under the
agreements is 30,000 tonnes in aggregate.

The Company entered into a warrant subscription agreement with
each of the suppliers on 4 February 2015, pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to issue and the suppliers have agreed to
subscribe for an aggregate of 102,000,000 warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.001 per warrant. The warrants were granted on 24
February 2015. In the five years from the grant date, after the
warrants are being vested and become effective, each warrant
will entitle its holder to subscribe for one share at a subscription
price of HK$1.50 per share (subject to adjustment). The warrants
will become vested and exercisable when the relevant suppliers
supply raw materials to the Group.

THIEAREHR2014F12 A31 B34

R2014F12 8198 » SRS HE - ZHER
RN —FHIFEHERE - Bt - SMtE
7 Rl = #2015 1 A1H E|2015F12 A
31 B AL A& [ | H Ath 4 FE S ERAS Y A
A F R E B E 2 T A R 1,000
TCRY(EIS « (ifE B iIZSiE EEE R R
FTAREE - NZEHE T AHEFCF
S IE B EA 24 49,5001 °

R2014E12 B198 » A RIEZHER
FIVRREBRERE Bt - AREE
EEOAMtEBRERE S &
133,650,00017 R #EFE - BITEAEH
RIHERE0.001 87T ° RAREFE R 20154F
1TRA19BEE - B AR RENR -
ERREBRE R EWE - SHRIEE
S TREAEN - ATEREEER1.30
BT (A TR RE KRR G - RIRE
B 1% 1A HE 28 L P P 1m) AN A B R R A L
FrER B R r] TIT(E ©

20152 A18 @ S8 =R EmaTL
—FHNFEHRERGR - B SEER
RIE#/2015F2 A1HE20164%1 8318
ARG E B E A ER (BRR 2014512 A
19 B B AR E 5T 7 F 2 (R ek A R A
BREMENCBEERIN BSHFE B
FHREEREEEENEARE2,0007T -
HEZHENEERREME FALEH -
RzEHz T AREE 2 FERER R
& 3£ /530,000 o

RAREIZEEEN2015F2H48 &
BRI RBREERERZ - Bt - A20)
ERERTEAMEIERERBEA X
102,000,00017 R AR HEFE + BT EAFTH
R FERE 0.001 57T ° RIREEFEE K 2015
F2A2BFEM - EH L AR S FH
A EREEED REILEWE - &)
REEEFBER TRHEARE RO
EF - REBEBSREML1.508T(AIF
LAFHEE) - RAXE BN A B R et
BRI FAREBIZFERA T -
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A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities ~ AN&EBE @A MAFEENKERGAEEREE

of the Group for the last four years is set out below FaEBESHLmT
RESULTS E

Period from

6 August 2010

Years ended 31 December to 31 December

BE1283M1BLEE 2010

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010%8A/6H

220104

20145 20135 20124 2011E 12831 BHR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT

Turnover ] 3,858,943 2,959,004 1,513,133 1,396,375 205,059

Cost of sales SHERKAK (3,817,158) (2,828,880) (1,401,445) (1,321,586) (191,697)

Gross profit EF 41,785 130,124 111,688 74,789 13,362

Other revenue Hip s 439,898 280,565 55,886 28,575 2276

Other net (loss)/income HiF (B8) /WA (1,543) 428 (1,509) 2412 26

Selling and distribution expenses  $H& R A #HEX (22,634) (9,107) (5,927) (4,227) (1,311)

Administrative expenses THEY (102,179) (63,640) (20,413) (22,553) (1,360)

Profit from operations B R 355,327 338,370 139,725 78,996 12,993

Finance costs B (57,630) (33,330) (16,850) (11,920) (720)

Profit before taxation AR A 297,697 305,040 122,875 67,076 12,273

Income tax FisH (49,431) (59,492) (30,583) (18,396) (2,899)

Profit for the period/year /R 248,266 245,508 92,292 48,680 9,374

Exchange differences on BEFHEER

translation of financial BBRENELEZR

statements of non-PRC entities 2,952 4,935 (72) 7,222 285
Total comprehensive income #/FRN2ERELE

for the period/year 251,218 250,483 92,220 55,902 9,659




114 China Metal Resources Utilization BEeBERMNAERAR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERES

At 31 December
R12A318
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

20145 0135 0124 0114 20104
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETTT ARBTT AE®TT ARETT

Total assets BEE 2,408,196 1,694,092 993,035 598,576 312,610

Total liabilities BafE (1,134,893) (1,081,287) (694,713) (476,912) (269,658)

Net assets FEE 1,273,303 612,805 298,322 121,664 42,952
Notes: B 5E

1. The financial information of the Group for the period ended 31 December 2010, and 1. REEEHZE2010F12 8318 I HIRE R E E20114F
years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 are extracted from the 12A31BK2012F 12 A3 B IEFENTBERTY
accountants’ report of the Group as set out on Appendix | to the Prospectus. i E B EN S — AN AEEN SRS ©
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